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Part I: Financial Overview % — 34 : Bf &1 &

As at 31st December

BE+-A=+—-BAL

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Revenue I %5
Real estate it E 19,081,399 22,224,483
Commercial FEES 3,952,516 4,217,006
Property management meE 2,989,241 3,641,262
Infrastructure HE 3,439,021 3,616,156
Investments wE (2,210,169) (2,964,711)
Segment results DEBELE
Real estate HE 3,249,698 11,320,391
Commercial B 12,320,982 9,046,436
Property management Y& 55,083 658,467
Infrastructure HiE 715,951 2,107,057
Investments wE (2,281,636) (5,692,758)
Earnings per share — Basic BRER—ERK HK 305 cents &1l HK 337 cents &l

Earnings per share — Diluted

Dividends per share

HK 305 cents &1l

(restated /& & 5I|)
HK 337 cents 78 lli
(restated /4 & %1|)
HK 65 cents 71l
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Part lI: Business Overview % — % : 2 &l E lI

Overview of the Five Major Segments of the Company

RARAARRERBER—FE

flh

AR

In 2022, contracted sales amount was RMB32,579 million (including decoration o

contracted sales)

Dongsan Jinmao Palace
MAHA Beijing

Hopson MIYA

Hopson Dreams World
Hopson YUNE

Hesong Lanting

Hopson Hushan Guaji Villa

Real Estate segment

&

Commercial segment

[GEZ

E5

In 2022, revenue from commercial properties investment was

approximately HK$3,953 million
T CHRF - GRHEEAARKIB.TIET (BIERIEELIHE) o "I _HR2F  EMERE ZWEKRBE39.5318T

e Asat 31st December 2022, the commercial segment has a
landbank of approximately 7.26 million sg.m., 95% are located
in first-tier cities

e HE-T_—F+A=1—H  BFERBIHRENT268
SEFK + 95% LB AT

stood out with contracted sales of over RMB1,000 million each

RESENT

®BEIR

AEmetit

AR

A IE=

A HEHILEIR

HESER AREAETA LA LSS

Property
management

segment

YIEERRE

In 2022, property management segment
income was approximately HK$2,989 million
T HR2F  PEEERBBRANR
29898 T

The property management segment is
divided into two major segments (i.e. hooplife
technology and property management)
YEEBRIRRD /e EELERRRYEE
BRAIREE

Starting from the middle of 2022, Esteem
Property has fully launched the “Building
Homes with Ingenuity” campaign in more than
200 projects in over 30 cities across the
country, taking 85 service contacts as the
starting point.

T e - RRYEERES B0
BT 200% (EIR B 2EME) [EOER ]
178 - LASSTERRISBRE AT

Investments
segment
RERMR

In 2022, the Group's investments
losses in the primary and the
secondary market amounted to
HK$2,210 million
—E-_F2F 0 SER—ETER
RS AR BB A22.10[88 T
As at 31st December 2022, financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income amounted to
HK$3,562 million; and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to HK$2,643 million
BE_Z-__F+-_A=+—HEAR
FEFEBEMEMBATRR FEE
ER35.62(BETT  RATEFE RIS
BRI B EE /2643188 T

BEAREEER A

Infrastructure
segment

EiEfut

* |n 2022, infrastructure income before
elimination was HK$9,229 million

o “T__FRF EHEMERKA
92.29fB T

e Anarea that commenced construction
during the year of 0.29 million sgq.m.

o AFEHFAIEB0EF K

e During the year, completed construction
area of 0.87 million sg.m.

o AFERTEESTET K

e Comprehensively improved the
informatisation system in terms of
business management, operation
control, and system intelligence,
automation, and user experience

o EEBRAECECEEIRFELEEMN
i,ﬁ%‘?ﬁﬁft - BEt - AFRREE

—E-_FFH®R 03
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Corporate Structure
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Part IV: Corporate and Listing Information M35 : ¥R EHER

Corporate Information

Board of Directors (the “Board”)

Executive Directors

CHU Kut Yung (Chairman)

ZHANG Fan (Co-president)

AU Wai Kin

XIE Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
BAO Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung
IP Wai Lun, William

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron (Chairman)
CHING Yu Lung
IP Wai Lun, William

Nomination Committee

CHU Kut Yung (Chairman)
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

CHING Yu Lung

IP Wai Lun, William

Company Secretary

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, (resigned with effect from 4th July 2022)

solicitor
CHEUNG Man Hoi

Authorised Representatives

AU Wai Kin
XIE Bao Xin

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27th Floor, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law
MinterEllison LLP

Level 32, Wu Chung House
213 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

(appointed with effect from 4th July 2022)

EERER
Exg((E2g))
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REEWR (ER)
R (B 4B )
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MERE (HFHHE)
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Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Chong Hing Bank

Hang Seng Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

Unit 4903-10, 49/F., The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

Representative Offices

16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Guangzhou -

Hopson Office Building
23A West Dawang Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Beijing -

19th Floor, Block 3
No. 695 Lingshi Road
Zhabei District, Shanghai

Shanghai —

Part IV: Corporate and Listing Information 25 [/ &} %

ERETER

FTEARRT
R ERT

o B3R 1T

RBERTT

RIRTT

*hERTT

o B R AR AT

B ERTT

18R 1T
B TR R 1T

o B T 4R 1T (ZEM)
Bt LSELRT
BEREROBFERLITE

EBTPRELELARAA
EE 2/ KIBE1835%
A FAB 461

AMRER

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

FERER

BB

AR

ERFKNEBEHF 9%

IR0 4918 4903-10F

REWEE

& M - BEBMNWEIIEHH
RITE 42158
WIKERE
1612

= - dtmEmEBRE
A K B 2357 FF
BEAIRBAE

iap= — FEmELE
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Part IV: Corporate and Listing Information 25 [0 (5 :

Shareholders’ Calendar

Register of Shareholders

Closure of Register
For Annual General Meeting:
12th June 2023 to 15th June 2023 (both days inclusive)

For Bonus Issue:
4th July 2023 to 7th July 2023 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
15th June 2023

Bonus Issue

Bonus issue of shares: two bonus shares for every ten existing shares

Listing Information

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
00754

Commercial Mortgage-backed Securities Listing

The Company’s 3.85%, 4.80%, 5.30% and 4.35% commercial
mortgage-backed securities listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(trading restricted among certain qualified institutional members)

Senior Notes Listing
The Company’s 7.00% Senior Notes listed on The Singapore Exchange

Securities Trading Limited

The Company’s 6.80% Senior Notes listed on The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited

Guaranteed Convertible Bonds Listing

The Company’s US$250 million 8.00% Guaranteed Convertible Bonds
due 2023 listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock
code of the convertible bonds: 04312) was fully redeemed on the
maturity date of 6th January 2023
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Real Estate Profile ¥ 254\
Beljmg ik R

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Hopson Rega\ Riviera
BERIF=

Hopson Citta Eterna
AEESEE

Hopson International Garden
A ERRERE

MAHA Beijing

et m

Beijing Hopson Desheng Building
EREEEBAE

Hopson Kylin Zone

Hopson Dreams World

aE RN
Yuhe Project

< TE H

Hopson World Garden
et RAEER

Hopson Regal Park
SHEBLT =

Hopson Regal Court
BHERRTR

Beijing Miyun Project
ERBmEER

Makeyan Project

FEHFIE R

Hopson Regal Fortune Plaza
EETRVERS
Dongsan Jinmao Palace
REGKM

Hopson YUNE

EEBE

Beijing Jinmao Palace Phase II
ERE X = 1

Hopson MIYA

& Emelll

Langfang JEF 35

19.

20.

21.

22.

Hopson Regal
BETER

Hopson Regal Mansion
aEHTT =R
Hongchang Project

N =RERE|

Hopson Garden

24 RE

Tlanjln KO£

24.
25.
26.

27.

10

Jingjin New Town
o 3= ¥ 35

TN AT A

Hopson Belvedere Bay
eEERE

Tianjin Hopson International Tower
RKESEFHBKE

Tianjim Hopson International Mansion

REEHE

Dongli Lake Project
REMEE

2AERBRAE

Hopson Development Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

Real Estate Segment i = ffy #2

Dalian X &

28.

Hopson Regal Seashore

AETILT S

Taiyuan X JR

29.

Qinhuangdao & £

30.

Hopson International City

A H B

Hopson Seasky Villa
BHERE

Tangshan /& L

31.

Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian)

EEBEYS(ERLE)

Shanghai /&

32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44.

45.

Hangzhou #1 /t

46.

47.

Hopson Town

& E

Hopson Golf Mansion

EEERARE

Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan
ERIIREE

Hopson Lantern Villa

SEHEE

Hopson International Garden

aEERIEE

Hopson Dongjiao Villa

AERZRIE

Hopson Yuting Garden

AHEMEER

Hopson International Plaza

AEERES

Hopson Fortune Plaza

SEMERES

Hopson Guangfuhui

BEEEE

Hopson Times Garden

& 4 A — 5

=

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence

EEMEBRNE

Shanghai Tea Factory Project
B E R IA B

Hopson Binjiang Court

GBI

Hopson World Trade Centre
MM EEBE PO
Hangzhou Hopson Mansion

N & & 8l & 4 &R

Kunshan £

48.

49.

50.

Hopson International Garden
A& BEBRIE

Metropolis Light

A=

Hesong Lanting

AERF

Ningbo % &

51,

Hopson International City

& E BB

Cixi & ¥

52

The Town of Hangzhou Bay
A AN 2 R B B A

Taicang X 2

538

54.

Hopson Sea Block
AHERE

Hopson Crystal Garden
B HEREIL

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

Hopson Gallopade Park
BERSIEE

Hopson Pleasant View Garden
BERRREE

Hopson Huanan New City

& EER N

Hopson Gallopade Park — South Court
BERSERE

Hopson Regal Riviera
BERIFTR

Hopson Regal Palace
BETRER

Hopson Yijing Huayuan
BHEBERER

Hopson Zhujiang International Tower
BEKIERKE

Hopson Yunshan Xijing
BEZRLESR

Hopson YUNE in Guangzhou
BMEERE

Hopson Belvedere Bay
BEERE

Hopson Plaza

BEES

Hopson Xijing Banshan
BERSFUL

Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park
KIREEE

Hopson Regal International
BETRER

Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa

A A L B R

Qianjin Road Project
K IR B

Hopson TIT International Industrial Park
BETITEREXE

TIT Project (International Park)
TTERE (BHEE)

Hopson Yijing Mingyuan
BEERER

Hopson Joy Mansion
N =



Huizhou 2 )

76.
77.
78.
79.
80.
81.
82.
83.

84.

Yangshuo
5 ¥
Jiangmen
SLF9

Hopson Yujing Bay
BERRE

Hopson Regal Bay
BETRE

Hopson International New City
B E B F

Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park
WIFHEZRIZE

Shidai City Project

i R IE B

Hopson Xiaogui Bay
BE/NEE

Hopson Seaside Garden
aEEFILE

Hopson Yushan Garden
BAEELIEE

Hopson Ziyue Mansion
BERRT

Zhongshan A L]

85.
86.

87.

Real Estate Segment it = 47 i

Bohai Rim

Economic Zone
RAE
7 BB

Qinhuangdao

=]
FEE

Beijing
b=

Tianjin
KE

Yangtze River Delta
Economic Zone
BRI=aM

R

Langfang
JER

Taiyuan

Taicang
AR

Shanghai
£5

Ningbo
s

Kunshan
Ll

Hangzhou
HUM

Pearl River Delta

Economic Zone

BRSI= A

R B

Guangzhou

Huizhou
M

Zhongshan
AL

JE N

Jiangmen /T 9
Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court 89.
BEPILTERLE

Hopson Xijing Garden
BERRTEE

Zhongshan Rainbow Project
GHIIEA g 0.

Hopson Yunshan Regal

BEELTFR

Yangshuo % A

Phoenix Shanshui Shangjing
JBL R L 7K 3R

Shenzhen )& 3|

88.

Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park
YRR TEE

EEAREEBER AR

—E - _FFR
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it 7= #x # (4&)

Completed Incomplete

Group’s area area Total area
interest EXIE®E RTEI@EE BEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
HH ' FrismiE  FAK) FBK) FHK)
Bohai Rim & 3 /&
Beijing it X
1. Hopson Regal Riviera 23A, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing 100% 92,498 - 92,498
BEHRIFER 1b R 5 1= 78 A £ 5% 23 5%
2. Hopson Citta Eterna 107, Chaoyang North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
EERFERR 1k B 5 [ 83 15 1 B 107 5% 100% 30,584 - 30,584
3. Hopson International 31, Guanggumenwai Street, Chaoyang District,
Garden Beijing
S EBRBREE b R EA G R B 2R PO K31 5% 100% 786 — 786
4. MAHA Beijing 8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
#aidtR IR EE EKER 82.50% 140,958 422,641 563,599
5. Beijing Hopson Desheng No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District,
Building Beijing
ERaERBAE  RAWREBFIIREI15R 100% 55,656 = 55,656
6. Hopson Kylin Zone Interchange of Wangjing Futong West Avenue and
Wangjing Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing
R il o IRHAEREREBARNFNERTRER 100% 47,113 - 47,113
7. Hopson Dreams World 500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majugiao,
Majugiao Town, Liangshui River South, Yizhuang,
Tongzhou District, Beijing
&t R4 36 5 N [ 78 SR KR F S B0 S BR RS B A 1 5% 100% 124,254 - 124,254
1% B 500K
8. Yuhe Project Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area,
Dongcheng District, Beijing
EMIER 3 R L & R OR SCAR %6 B I T R 11 5% b 3R 100% - 10,000 10,000
9. Hopson World Garden 500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1 Majugiao,
Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing
& HEHRIEE Jb 5 )N [2 7R 55 5048 1 5% 48 B 500K 100% 16,648 — 16,648
10. Hopson Regal Park Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District,
Beijing
BHEAIFTR Jb 7N [ oK B SR A 100% 38,698 60,291 98,989
11. Hopson Regal Court Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang
Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
BERRTER IRBAGERARNERIRHTAEZEER 100% 366,289 = 366,289
12. Beijing Miyun Project East of Shanzi Reservoir, Bulaotun Village Miyun County
EREEEA BEEHAZEE LT KERA 100% - 12,327 12,327
12 Hopson Development Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022



Real Estate Segment (Continued) it Z= 4z # (#&)

Completed Incomplete
Group’s area area Total area
interest EXITE®E REI@EE HBEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
BB nE PR b R & F 75 K) F 5 K) F 5 K)
18. Makeyan Project Plot A (Southern Region) and Plot D (Southern Region)
of Scientific Research Site of National Environmental
Protection Industrial Park, Tongzhou District, Beijing
SRR R ErGEMNRBERREREXE R AMALIRE R 100% 687,495 — 687,495
KD % &=
14. Hopson Regal Fortune  Building 223, No. 28 Guangqu Road, Chaoyang District,
Plaza Beijing
EETRMERES L RS [ B 2R B8 2857 22357 12 100% 23,864 — 23,864
15. Dongsan Jinmao Palace Southwest of Fenzhongsi Bridge, Fengtai District, Beijing
REGKXN ItRTmEE RS EFREER 59.53% = 140,953 140,953
16. Hopson YUNE Approximately 200 metres from Fenzhongsi Station East
Third Ring Subway Line 10, Beijing
EERE 1b TR = IR M 810 9% 48 9 §8 <F U 3R 49200 K 50.77% - 76,620 76,620
17. Beijing Jinmao Palace 200 metres from south of Songjiazhuang Station,
Phase Il Fengtai District, Beijing
RS ETF =5 LR E A & R 5K & & 4 F ] 200K 22.73% = 76,339 76,339
18. Hopson MIYA 200 metres from Demao Station, Daxing District, Beijing
& HEmetit 1b 7 K B & 48 7% 15 200K 100% — 182,116 182,116

Langfang E§ 3

19.

20.

21.

22.

Hopson Regal
BEFR

Hopson Regal Mansion

BEMFT R

Hongchang Project

it
il
I
m

Hopson Garden

ABEFRE

East of Wenguan East Road, north of National Highway
102, Dachang Hui Autonomous County, Langfang
City, Hebei Province

a3k 48 R Hh T KRR (B bk B 6 52102 Bl & 4k DR R
R 2R A

500 metres east of Bazhou Government, east to
Xinghua Road, west to Yunrui Yujing Community,
south to Wenquan South Road, and north to Yingbin
Road

BN BT RMG00K - RERER  MEERER
NE - EEREREE LEDEE

South of Fujia Road, north of Fukang Road, west of
Longpan Road and east of Yundan Road in Langfang
City, Hebei Province

AR Y™ E R AR - ERE R
BEMRIRDATE - BRBLAR

Interchange of Longteng Road and Fuyuan Road, Anci
District, Langfang, Hebei
At EBY MR EERREZTRERM

90.91%

100%

100%

90%

31,602

BEAREEER A

- 31,502
123,333 123,333
191,596 191,596
201,791 201,791
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) i = 4z # (&)

Completed Incomplete

Group’s area area Total area
interest EXIE®E RTEI@EE BEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
HE vE Pt fE & R K) T 5K F 5 K)
Tianjin X &
23. Jingjin New Town No. 1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town,
Baodi District, Tianjin
TR REEI @ F R EHEKITEE 5% 92.30% 300,774 3,940,877 4,241,651
24. Hopson Belvedere Bay Interchange of Donghai Road and No. 1 Shipcanal,
Tanggu Development Zone, Tianjin
BHEERE REBORAZEEME BRI EERA 92.30% 29,197 - 29,197
25. Tianjin Hopson Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road,
International Tower Heping District, Tianjin (at Beian Bridge)
RESGHEBEBEARE RENTREZAHEEZEROGCEEEER) 98.90% 135,429 - 135,429
26. Tianjin Hopson Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North
International Mansion Road, Nankai District, Tianjin
REEHEBBRAE REMMEFEEKEK LB O 100% - 80,320 80,320
27. Dongli Lake Project West of Dongli Lake, north of Dongli Avenue, East Chitu
of Chitu Town, Dongli District, Tianjin
REHEE KEZEFBERLERENE - FEAE L 92.30% - 1,130,000 1,130,000
REM AR
Dalian X &
28. Hopson Regal Seashore 808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lvshunkou District,
Dalian
EEITIILFER K& i I O [ 8511 $5 88 4E B 808 5% 100% 39,415 100,052 139,467
Taiyuan X J&
29. Hopson International West of Bingzhou Road, east of Tiyu Road and north of
City Eryingpan Street, Taiyuan, Shanxi
& H BRI W 7E K BRI BE AR - BB B A R - — & B4 AL 96.58% 20,391 135,830 156,221
Qinhuangdac 2 £ &
30. Hopson Seasky Villa Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces,
northwestern coast of Liaodong Bay
G HEREA FREmILE  BEEMERIRE 51% — 1,271,834 1,271,834
Tangshan & 1L
31. Hopson Regal Park Caofeidian New City, east of Xiaging Road, and south of
(Caofeidian) Bohai Avenue
EEBETR ERAMBEBEUR 8 KENNE 97.86% 22,097 161,696 183,793
(E i)

Yangtze River Delta &I = & M
Shanghai - &

32. Hopson Town 518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai
CE e LBRTTR L ERS185 100% 17,768 523 18,291
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it Z= 4z # (#&) I I

Completed Incomplete
Group’s area area Total area
interest EXIEE XAEIEE HBEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
HE wE Frib R = T K) 75 K) 7 K)
33. Hopson Golf Mansion 1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai
EERBRAE 815 [ 01 R 75 1095 5% 100% 856 — 856
34. Hopson Sheshan 1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday
Dongziyuan Resort Shanghai
SERUREKE BB L B R R R (% MO 85 1189 5% 100% 30,902 - 30,902
35. Hopson Lantern Villa 199 Nong, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu
District, Shanghai
SHERER B EH IR R A K 1995 100% 2,125 — 2,125
36. Hopson International 1290, Changxing East Road, Dongjing, Songjiang
Garden District, Shanghai
& EBBRER LB T R & B B 129057 94% 4,616 - 4,616
37. Hopson Dongjiao Villa 7, 699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai
& ERABHIE i BT [ 2R A1 1R 699 FF 7 5% 100% 12,602 — 12,602
38. Hopson Yuting Garden 99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District,
Shanghai
EHEHEE LEEHEBSHAESEK9MR 100% 5,046 — 5,046
39. Hopson International 292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai
Plaza
& HE B ES 5 E2924 5 100% 374,016 = 374,016
40. Hopson Fortune Plaza 483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai
EEVEES AT O [ R UL BK 48355 100% 53,357 - 53,357
41. Hopson Guangfuhui Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai
EEEEE EBMITIEEZEME2EE5R 100% 17,631 — 17,631
42. Hopson Times Garden Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Town, Sanlin Town, Pudong New
District, Shanghai
AR5 FIEH R E = AR = M A4 100% 5,618 — 5,618
43. Hopson Asset Seascape Lot E25, New District, Hangzhou Bay Avenue,
Residence Longsheng Road, Jinshan, Shanghai
BEMEBRALE B8 & 1L B B BE AN K BB T (R E25 100% 57,268 — 57,268
44. Shanghai Tea Factory  No.1300 Jungong Road, Yangpu District,
Project Shanghai
FERERER BT E R E T 13005 100% - 37,366 37,366
45. Hopson Binjiang Court  Jiefang Nos. 121, Jiefang Nos. 129 and Jiefang Nos.
130, Dinghai Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai
B EBI EETmSERESEEI214 - 12945 - 100% — 293,593 293,593

1304745

EEAREEBR AR
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it 7= #x # (4&)

Completed Incomplete

Group’s area area Total area
interest EXIEE XAEIEE BEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
=g ' FiismE  FAK) BHK) ERK)
Hangzhou #i M
46. Hopson World Trade No. 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District,
Centre Hangzhou
mMEERE RO TN R K B 1L E& 327 57 95% 87,456 — 87,456
47. Hangzhou Hopson Intersection of Desheng Road and Hanghai Road,
Mansion Jianggan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
MM & 4 8l & B AT EMMT I TREBEMUERRZIXA 100% - 99,127 99,127
Kunshan £ 1L
48. Hopson International Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River, Zhoushi
Garden Town, Kunshan City
SEBERER B2 LI T /) T R 300 JB) B PR 55 B R IR O DA RS 100% 442 135,128 135,570
49. Metropolis Light Interchange of Bailu Road and Huanging Road,
Kunshan, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province
& M= T ERE BN T R LU TR AR JE B BRIR B B AR B R 55.37% 73,174 - 73,174
50. Hesong Lanting Intersection of Yuhubei Road and Huanging Road,
Yushan
& HEE= F 1L F AL B B 5 B ER A R 50.21% = 230,547 230,547
Ningbo £ %
51. Hopson International No. 1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City,
City Ningbo
& H BB R SEUE TN E R KR 100% 8,545 - 8,545

Cixi &%

52. The Town of Hangzhou  Northwestern region of Hangzhou

Bay Bay New District, Cixi
AEMMEBRBRIE  ZRZEMN & E AL 95% 251,712 1,222,059 1,473,771

Taicang X &

53. Hopson Sea Block No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang
BEHE KB BT 558858 97.30% 81,395 22,563 103,958

54. Hopson Crystal Garden No. 27, Qiushui Road, Fugiao Town, Taicang City,
Jiangsu Province
BHEBELR LERE AR T F B WK 27 557 98.10% — 90,571 90,571

Pearl River Delta %I = A&

Guangzhou & /M
55. Hopson Gallopade Park  No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
SHEBRTE J& M R AT & Hp 1L K 38 190 5% 95% 1,184 345,577 346,761
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it Z= 4z # (#&)

Completed Incomplete
Group’s area area Total area
interest EXIEE XAEIEE HEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
HE wE Frib R = 7 K) F5K) 7 K)
56. Hopson Pleasant View  No. 1028 Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District,
Garden Guangzhou
EHRRER J& )M e TR [ N K 38 1028 5% 94.98% 6,605 1,906 8,511
57. HopsonHuananNew  Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou
City
BEERIM B B = B g K8 100% 71,847 335,483 407,330
58. Hopson Gallopade Park- No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
South Court
SERSER J& M 2RI [& AR 1L K 38 190 5% 95% 40,424 = 40,424
59. Hopson Regal Riviera No. 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou
BHERIFR FE&E M8 IR R M B8 58 R 71 9% 99.50% 77,173 548,620 625,793
60. Hopson Regal Palace ~ Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou
BETRED J& N 78 R [ 7R i N K 100% 4,556 - 4,656
61. Hopson Yijing Huayuan Dongxiao South Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
BHEBERER J& M1 8 2R [ 5RO R 100% 15,258 - 15,258
62. Hopson Zhujiang No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou
International Tower
AEKIBEBRAE &N B 55 [ B EE R 114 = 11655 100% 95,746 - 95,746
63. Hopson Yunshan Xiing  Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou
EEELER BMAEREMKEL 70% 8,435 - 8,435
64. Hopson YUNE in Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
Guangzhou
BMEERE J& N 2R 5T [ BB B B 100% 10,4983 356,691 367,184
65. Hopson Belvedere Bay Huangai Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou
BEERE BEMNEILEE R XESE BN RE 100% 28,727 - 28,727
66. Hopson Plaza Interchange of Guangzhou Avenue South and Diejing
Road (opposite to the governmental office of Haizhu
District), Haizhu District, Guangzhou
& HEES BN EIKEEM AN ERES R EER 100% 187,095 — 187,095
CBIRE BT E)
67. Hopson Xijing Banshan  Hongbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District,
Guangzhou
EEERFI JB& 1 E B (% 40 55 $AAT AR el VK /BB 95.50% — 410,010 410,010
68. Zhujiang Technology Machao Industry Estate, Jiufo Town,
Innovation Park Guangzhou
IR A EE BEMN LB SA S R T 55% — 193,513 193,513
EHEREEERAR T _FF®H®K 17



Real Estate Segment (Continued) it 7= #x # (4&)

Completed Incomplete

Group’s area area Total area
interest EXIEE XAEIEE BEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
Y= vE PR b R & 77 3K) T 5K F 5 K)
69. Hopson Regal No. 188, Changgang Mid Road, Haizhu District,
International Guangzhou
HHETRERK BINE KR S i B 18855 100% 25,036 — 25,036
70. Hopson Hushan Guoji  Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City
Villa
& A8 L B R BT AR IR E NE 100% 137,610 386,163 523,773
71. Qianjin Road Project South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
AI#EBRIH B J& N 78 TR [ AT #E 3% DA 100% — 208,863 208,863
72. Hopson TIT International Dawo Village, Tanbu Village, Huadu District, Guangzhou
Industrial Park
EAETITER EZEE & M TE #B [ % 20 A 85 A0 A 65% 29,439 363,605 393,044
73. TIT Project (International No. 489 Xingang Mid Road, Haizhu District,
Park) Guangzhou
TTEE (RHEE) J& N 7 8 TR @ 57 P BR 489 5% 65% - 904,692 904,692
74. Hopson Yijing Mingyuan Adjacent to the Family Healthcare Hospital of the
Province, Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou
SHEBERZN EMEREREEAERRNERS 100% 13,352 1,318,989 1,332,341
75. Hopson Joy Mansion No. 5, Boai East Road, Dali Town, Nanhai District,
Foshan City
A HEN AR BILTEERXFEERERESH 93.70% 9,216 - 9,216

Huizhou = M|

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

18

Hopson Yujing Bay

BEMEE

Hopson Regal Bay

Hopson International
New City

& H BB

Zhujiang New Industry
Innovation Park

KIHUEXEEE

Shidai City Project
AR B

Hopson Xiaogui Bay

No. 1, Longhe East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou

N K O B8 AN B EK 1 5% 95.83%
No. 2, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou
BMTITILE X E — 25 100%
The Corner of Sanhuan East Road, Shuikou Town,

Huizhou
BMAOHRLER=ZBRES 100%
Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng

City
KR T B WA K AR TS 100%
Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay
N 58 )& 79 [ 28 K] e AP 3 BR 100%
The West of Holiday Inn, Anhui Avenue, Aotou, Daya Bay

Area
K& R)REE L EAE R BB A 100%

Hopson Development Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

42,269

57,796

150,471

145,468

1,538,582

113,070

143,799

1,383,667

1,812,078

1,622,730

1,580,851

170,866

294,270

1,383,667

1,812,078

1,768,198



Real Estate Segment (Continued) it Z= 4z # (#&)

Completed Incomplete

Group’s area area Total area
interest EXIEE XAEIEE HEE
Project Location &5 (Sq.m. (Sq.m. (Sq.m.
B H vE PR b R & 77 K) T 5K F 5 K)
82. Hopson Seaside Garden Land located at Changkeng, Yapojiao, Chuan’ao Village,
Renshan Town, Huizhou City
SHEBREER SN AR LU BB AR AT 35 A R U R 92.19% 5,057 = 5,057
83. Hopson Yushan Garden East of Luofu Avenue, Changning Town, Boluo County,
Huizhou, Guangdong Province
SEMEILER BREMEEREFHETRNERA 95.83% 36,382 - 36,382
84. Hopson Ziyue Mansion  Emerging Industrial Park, West District, Huizhou City
(Northern Lot of Shangyi Village)
B ERNT BN TR EEEXR (AR ER) 57.47% = 467,831 467,831

Zhongshan A |

85.

86.

87.

Hopson Zhongshan Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan
Regal Court
BEPILFRE LT KCE B 3 1R B e [

Hopson Xiing Garden ~ Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan
SEERIEE 1L R AT

Zhongshan Rainbow Caihong Planning Zone, West District,

Project Zhongshan
|l S 4T T8 B FIImARZILAER

Shenzhen &3l

88.

Shenzhen Wilcon No. 53 Xiantian Road, Xin Sheng Village,
Industrial Park Longgang Road Office, Longgang District, Shenzhen
AYIBR TR 31| T BE e [ BE i 7 38 % 3T AR A L F B8 B3 5%

100% 18,287
84.70% 43,381
95% -
100% 59,998

426,136

18,287

43,381

426,136

59,998

Jiangmen I F§

89. Hopson Yunshan Regal West to Haojing Park, northeast to the intersection of

Qunhua Road and Duruan North First Road, Duruan
Town, Pengjiang District, Jiangmen City

IPImEIREE AR E A - B
HBrdt — & 22 X ARl

o
HF
2]
E
W
Bl

100% 14,297

160,733 1

75,030

Yangshuo & ¥
90. Phoenix Shanshui The intersection of Shanshui Avenue and Lansheng
Shangjing Road, Xiucheng District, Yangshuo
B JEL L 7K 3% K5 99 38 8 [ 1L 7K K38 B8 JB5 B 22 [ 42.76% 73,063 257,271 330,334
GHAIREEARAR —_T__FF%H 19



Real Estate Segment (Continued) it 7= #x # (4&)

B. Revenue from Property Development

As of 31st December 2022, the Group’s revenue from property
development was HK$19,081 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 14%.

In 2022, property contracted sales amount for the year was
approximately RMB30,532 million, which decreased by 24% year on
year; the average selling price of contracted sales for the year was
approximately RMB22,362 per sg.m..

The Group focused on the three core economic development regions in
China and made in-depth development and active expansion in the
market with signature projects playing a leading role in the respective
regions. For the contracted sales in 2022, the top-level residential project
MAHA Beijing continued to sell well and achieved sales of over
RMB4,700 million, creating a classic luxury apartment; Dongshan Jinmao
Palace achieved contracted sales of over RMBS3,400 million with
significant traffic contribution; Hopson Dreams World, Hesong Lanting,
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa and Hopson YUNE continued to enjoy good
sales, bringing in contracted sales of RMB5,400 million for the Group
with contracted sales of over RMB1,000 million each.

Adhering to the brand philosophy of “enjoying high-quality lifestyle”, the
Group introduced world-class living concepts into China and launched
the global lifestyle brand “Hopson M-Series”, which created a new
pattern in the high-end real estate sector. Making it a mission to enhance
urban lifestyle and quality of living environment and striving to become a
creator of perfect life, the Group provided property owners with full-
scenario living experience through our endeavour to develop quality
products, services and supporting operations. The brand philosophy
released the additional values of the Group’s scarce quality land and
projects, thus strengthening the market competitiveness of the Group’s
high-end products and quality service.

Leveraging our industrial platform, we integrated all-round resource
linkages in commercial, technological, educational, industrial and other
areas, and reached an intention on strategic cooperation with various
local governments. Meanwhile, the Group realised whole-process
standardised management and control of urban redevelopment via “Three
Old Platform”, improved conversion efficiency of urban redevelopment
projects and completed step-by-step the conversion of key urban
redevelopment projects in Xinji Village, Yuangang Village, Fenghe Village
and Jiangjunshan.

B. MEZHERWA

BHE-_ZE-_—_F#+-_A=+—HB &£E80W*
BRI AEEE190.811E7T » AL TE14% -

“EC_FERFHNUEAOEHESBEO/A
R #306.3218 7T - R TFE24%: 2FWAEKN
HEFHHESHBEROR/EFT I RARE
22,3627t °

SEEEER=-AROKESERES - X#Hm
LEBHE PHEEBEESIESEERE - T =
—EMANEEI R BRAEEEELAILLR
BERERE BRAAREATETHEHERE
BlERELH R22 X NERAARE4E
TTIHERE  REERMEL AEERAN &M
HE AEBRLEBRERGEEZHERYE A
EEERMARKAETHETRSERARYE
1018 D A E1EEE -

SERAEEZLE =xBHRINMERD
BEERREEESSIARE BH2RELRE
TRMEIAEE R TRSKMETEN
BR-UEBARTEETTABEAERERD
T -ALBEEENER BREMNEEES
RETEEZSRLERRR BIRARTELE
EHEEE REESENSERREL Lt
MIBEOMME BIETEESHER mE
RIGHTIZEF T ©

SEUNEXFERKTE EaBE B #
B EXF2HUERBE  HZHBUFENK
BEEAFER - A SEABZEFSI|E
REX2RAERELER REENHEAEE
EME  ZHEEWELHEN - BREF - BM
o BEILSESEHENRER -

. Project Completion Volume . IRBxTIE
a. Completed area in 2022: a Z—E__FATIHEE:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F

Area Ratio (%) Area Ratio (%)
Region & [ETR Lt 45l (%) M Lt 191 (%)

(sg.m.) (sg.m.)

(7 3K) (FEFK)
Southern China Eeagteg 88,271 10% 571,191 46%
Northern China ESiaeC 375,044 43% 96,008 8%
Eastern China WS I 402,218 47% 563,595 46%
Total & & 865,533 100% 1,230,794 100%
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it Z= 4z # (#&) I I

B. Revenue from Property Development (Continued) B. ¥ % E W A @)

I.  Project Completion Volume (Continued) . IBTIE@

b. Property development completed area (projected): b. YEMRTIE®E (ES) :
2023 2024 2025 2026 and after
—EC-= —E-NE —EC-RE ZEBZAERNE
Completed Area Completed Area  Completed Area Completed Area
Project Name HE &R TIEE TIEE TIEE TIEE
(sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(EFK) (EFK) (EFK) (EF7K)
Hopson Gallopade Park BERST 107,041 171,648 66,388 -
Hopson YUNE in Guangzhou EMEEEE - 256,937 99,754 -
Hopson Huanan New City BEEFNH - - - 335,483
Hopson Pleasant View Garden EHEBRER - - - 1,906
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EMNEAKITS - - 23,400 525,220
Hopson Xijing Banshan BEESFI - - - 410,010
Qianjin Road Project RIERKIE - - - 208,863
Zhongshan Rainbow Project Bl IEE - - - 426,136
Hopson Yijing Mingyuan AHEEED - - - 1,318,989
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa BHERILBE 224,983 - 161,180 -
Hopson TIT Intemational Industrial Park BETTEREX - - 363,605 -
TIT Project (International Park) TTEE (BRI E ) - 249,321 655,371 -
Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park — ZKI R &8l 2 B - - - 193,513
Hopson Yunshan Regal AEEILF E 52,706 108,027 - -
Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park I% LR E % BEE - - - 1,383,667
Hopson Regal Bay BEWSE - - - 113,070
Hopson International New City A S HEEE %ﬁi& - - - 143,799
Hopson Yujing Bay A AEsE 216,812 - - 1,321,770
Hopson Xiaogui Bay é N - 143,877 210,448 1,268,405
Shidai City Project R BIE B 218,062 124,401 - 1,469,615
Hopson Ziyue Mansion BAERUT 4,851 294,409 - 168,571
MAHA Beijing #gaixm 112,171 - - 310,470
Hopson Regal Seashore AEIILFE - - - 100,052
Talyuan Hopson International City 7: RA BB 135,830 - - -
Hopson Seasky Villa A XREN - - - 1,271,834
Hopson Regal Park BEAEIFS - - - 60,291
Beijing Miyun Project tRBEIER - - - 12,327
Hopson Regal Mansion BEHRTR 123,333 - - -
Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian) é E BETR(EL9) 94,446 17,237 50,013 -
Hongchang Project ~ETEH 128,314 12,651 50,632 -
Hopson Garden BER - - 65,845 135,946
Beijing Jinmao Palace Phase |l it RekNZH 76,339 - - -
Hopson YUNE BHEEE 76,620 - - -
Dongsan Jinmao Palace % 22N 140,953 - - -
Hopson MIYA & Emetf - 182,116 - -
Yuhe Project EMIER - 10,000 - -
Jingjin New Town ORI - 105,607 108,298 3,726,972
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion K 3E2& £ BEE R E - - - 80,320
Dongli Lake Project REBHIER - - - 1,130,000
Hopson Binjiang Court BHEEILR - - 58,229 235,364
Hopson Town /E.\ HE 350 B 35k - - - 523
Hopson Sea Block EHE 22,563 - - -
The Town of Hangzhou Bay A SEMMEBRBRIHH 697,501 220,031 212,538 91,989
Hopson International Garden & & HEEIRTEE 135,128 - - -
Shanghai Tea Factory Project J: BREBRIER - - - 37,366
Hopson Crystal Garden BHEREIR - 90,571 - -
Hopson Mansion aEEIRA R 99,127 - - -
Hesong Lanting AEE=E 230,547 - - -
Yangshuo Phoenix Shanshui Shangjing 5 1 /Bl /& 1Ll 7K 1% 35 - - - 257,271
Total CE 2,897,327 1,986,833 2,126,201 16,739,742
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it 7= #x # (4&)

B. Revenue from Property Development (Continued) B. ¥ % E W A @)

The Group has adequate land banks of excellent quality and at lower £ EEL T g BENE— S mHma X2
costs in first-tier cities, such as Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. Thisis B&E B AR KM T b EE @ Bth 2 M5 E
also one of the Group’s core competitive strengths to sustain persistent HEEENZLOBFES 2 —  FRN > EFF
corporate growth. During the year, the Group balanced the need oflong- B REZEZHRESHXRNEZTE ML +HEHE
term and current development and acquired new lands with an area of 293593 F K - HE T _-__F+_-_HA =+
293,593 sq.m.. The land bank of the Group of 28.72 million sq.m. asat —H @ NEBEEE +HFHE28.728 &8 F 5K -
31st December 2022 is sufficient for the future development of the ZE %M EEBKRKKERERE -

Group.
Il. Locations of Land Banks . *TiFEEDM
a. Usage and Location a. HERH#HE
Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
AHEEER(BEFEK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
& M =M = RE £ R e
Residential *= 4.21 5.33 3.66 5.44 1.74 — 20.38
Shopping arcade [k 1.02 0.24 0.26 0.05 0.31 0.01 1.89
Office MAE 0.62 0.25 0.20 0.15 0.27 — 1.49
Car parks (= 1.16 1.59 0.66 — 0.73 — 414
Hotels B JE 0.25 0.11 0.12 0.18 0.16 — 0.82
Total et 7.26 7.52 4.90 5.82 3.21 0.01 28.72
b. Development Status and Location b. BERMIARME
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEER(BEF S K)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
& M =M = P ti EiR e
Completed properties & & 5k ¥ 2% 1.05 0.44 1.73 0.67 1.08 0.01 4.98
Properties under BERAPYE
development 1.90 1.89 1.34 0.87 1.65 — 7.65
Properties to be FERME
developed 4.31 5.19 1.83 4.28 0.48 — 16.09
Total #Et 7.26 7.52 4.90 5.82 3.21 0.01 2872
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it = #fz 8 (&)

Revenue from Property Development (Continued) B. ¥ % &R UK A (&)

Locations of Land Banks (Continued) . T iREDH @
Development Status and Usage c. BRMAKRAR

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEERR(BEEF LK)

Shopping
Residential Arcade Office  Car Parks Hotels Total
= (k] WAZE FES B IE wEt
Completed properties BEKYE 1.93 0.83 0.62 1.30 0.30 4.98
Properties under development % & f 1) % 5.43 0.41 0.21 1.37 0.23 7.65
Properties to be developed S E R ¥ % 13.02 0.65 0.66 1.47 0.29 16.09
Total BE 20.38 1.89 1.49 414 0.82 28.72
Title Status and Location d FHFERERER#E
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEER(BET LK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing  Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo  Total
&M =M R RE L B At
Land use rights certificates BEEE L E A 3.80 4.00 3.28 1.99 2.76 0.01 1584
and construction works A ERER
planning permits obtained TIEMEIFTE
Land use rights certificates EEE L 2.15 214 1.62 1.45 0.45 - 7.8
obtained but without 8 B3 & R HLAS
construction works BERIERE
planning permits Al
Grant of major approvalsand  HREFFEH K 1.31 1.38 — 2.38 — — 5.07
certificates pending FEHL
Total mEr 7.26 7.52 4.90 5.82 3.21 0.01 2872
EEAREBRBRRT —ZTEZ_FFH® 23



Real Estate Segment (Continued) it 7= #x # (4&)

C. Development Strategies of the Real Estate
Industry

In 2022, facing the global changes and a pandemic both unseen in a
century, the geopolitical situation was characterized by turbulence and
intranquility. While the world economy was subject to mounting downside
risk, China’s economy reeled from a combination of unexpected factors
such as sporadic and frequent outbreaks of the pandemic and extreme
high temperature weather. The triple whammy of demand contraction,
supply shock, and weakening expectations continued to evolve, leading
to increasing complexity, severity, and uncertainty of the development
environment.

The real estate industry is an important industry in China’s economy and
is closely related to people’s livelihood. Since the beginning of this year,
facing the downward adjustment of the real estate market, the growth
value of the real estate industry has dropped by 5.1% compared with the
previous year. Certain real estate companies which had been keen on
reckless expansion before suffered from relatively tight capital chains, and
issues such as difficulties in housing delivery arose in certain places.
Adhering to the principle of “properties are for accommodation, not for
speculation”, all regions and departments actively implemented different
policies according to specific situation of different cities, supported rigid
and improved housing needs for reasonable purposes, increased efforts
to guarantee housing delivery, and promoted the stable development of
the real estate market, which gradually achieved results.

In general, the real estate market has undergone certain positive
changes, but the downward trend continues. Looking forward, we will
adhere to the principle of “properties are for accommmodation, not for
speculation”, adopt both housing purchase and rental policy, support
rigid and improved housing needs, and promote the gradual stabilisation
of the real estate market to maintain stable and healthy development.

In 2022, after determining its principle to be “cash flow-based”, the
Group adjusted its marketing strategies and business ideas of various
regions and projects in a timely manner, which contributed to stable
recovery of sales payments while maximising the control on capital
expenditures. The initiatives to ensure financing and housing delivery
were implemented throughout the year, which effectively controlled risks
and contributed to the stable operation of the Group. At the same time,
reaching its 30-year milestone, the Group achieved significant
enhancement in terms of brand value upgrade, quality improvement,
system construction and technological empowerment.

C. WEXRZEHK

TECCF AFERVMELRBREEM
WHEBORREBE T Lt FREE T 1TRAR M
R BAREBEXIRBREZE BHSAR
REZEBAHRENRETE  FRUEE -
HETHE RHES="SFBRNFERL R
REWEMME  BRIRMN  THREEL -

FHEXREREETNEETE HHERE
SRR - SFNAR BHEMETSNAE
T FHETEERMENL EFTE1% —
LAHERRRNECESHEBER B9
WHERBEEXNR#SZHE  SE &M
BEFEEI] BEELEERBER - FHH
HEMHEERBEERTRK MARRENE
REFHEMSIBEER MREFLEHB -

RNE FHEMBHRT —EREBE(L A
ETTRBECERE TRREZZERIE
EAYINEL EREEBETSE  ER
HEMBEEEEH R EHHFHETHEL T
B REFRERER-

SER-_ZT__FHERES/AEFLITER
BoOREAZRSMHE HBEETHRBREER
B ERMBETHELRNER T KEEES
BEeTH RAE RIXEEFE2FHRE B
BiEFIERR AEBEERELZERM T HE [
RiEESEOFENGE REEEAL - &
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Eigog o
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it = #fz 8 (&) I I

C. Development Strategies of the Real Estate
Industry (Continued)

Recently, the state has issued a series of policies in relation to promoting
the construction of a new real estate system. In December 2022, the
decline in real estate-related indicators narrowed, and new changes
appeared. The decline in real estate development investment in
December narrowed by 7.7 percentage points compared with November.
The rate of decline in indicators such as the sales area of commercial
housing, sales, funds available, and new housing construction area has
also narrowed to varying degrees. As relevant policies come into effect,
positive changes will gradually occur in the real estate market in 2023.
Real estate is an important industry in China’s economy. Although the
market is currently subject to adjustment, there are many favorable
conditions for the future development of the real estate market.

First, urbanization is still in the stage of continuous development in China.
Last year, the urbanization rate of resident population increased by 0.5
percentage point from the previous year, reaching 65.22%, but it was still
not high compared with the level of about 80% in developed countries.
Last year, there was a massive increase in population of urban areas in
China, showcasing the future scope of development in these cities.

Second, reasonable demand in the real estate market will be gradually
unleashed. A number of measures have been introduced in various
places to support rigid and improved housing demand, which will help
increase buyers’ willingness to buy houses.

Third, the supply of the real estate market is expected to gradually
improve. The principle of “properties are for accommodation, not for
speculation” and introduction of relevant policies aim at bringing real
estate back to its basic function by reducing its financial attributes. At the
same time, in view of the further improvement in the housing system
featuring multiple suppliers and various channels of support that
encourages both housing rentals and purchases, the establishment of a
new and healthy real estate market will be accelerated.

Despite certain positive changes in the real estate market, the downward
trend in the real estate market still needs attention. Stages are involved
from the improvement in sales to the production and investment of real
estate. To promote the stable and healthy development of the real estate
market, we still need to make efforts.

C. EXREHK@W

M BREST —RINEBEEZFTOFHE
BEROEBRBRRX - T+ A% Fi
EMBEEERRKE HBEFNEE + A
EARHERBEREREL T - ARETTT
Ea H BnEHEEHE HER IR
¢ FEFRIEBRESHEERELATRREE
MU E - BEEHEBBRREEN —F-=F
FHEMSREZR L ELERBBNE(L - BHE
EEREEERTE BERE M ENHBE
B-EXRREHETSEREGBN DB IIK
1 e

—RRBEDARERBLLHEERER - £
FEEAOBBLEREL EFRS TOSEB D
B EF165.22% - B EEIERR0% L A K
IKERLENARNS - EFRBEFIBWBEAOHK
EEX BURRRENBREM -

CREWETHAIEERIGE LB - &
ATLEBXHAMEMAEDEEER B8
KREBEEREEE -

SREMETSREELESNE - BHIB
] A BBESE  AHERELERR
Al RLREBEN AESIBREEG 5
RN WAL RS B TR R 4T
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it 7= #x # (4&)

C. Development Strategies of the Real Estate
Industry (Continued)

In 2023, the central government reiterates the national housing policies of
“promoting the balanced development of finance, real estate sector and
the real economy”, “properties are for accommodation, not for
speculation” and “implementing different policies according to specific
situation of different cities and giving category-based guidance” in pursuit
of stabilising the real estate market, as well as a regional policy for
developing the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Delta and
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area at full steam. In
light of such situation, the Group will strive to develop and further boost
the sales of residential products targeting improvement demand and rigid
demand in these regions in 2023 to speed up cash collection and cash
inflows of the Group, and put the financial health of the Group in the first
place. In addition, in 2023, the Group will further promote the national
strategic layout of the Hopson M-Series brand, and continue to launch
novel Hopson M-Series works in first-tier cities such as Beijing, Shanghai
and Guangzhou. Hopson M-Series is the Group’s first global aesthetic
lifestyle real estate IP brand. As a global high-end lifestyle creator with an
aesthetic vision and forward-looking concept beyond the times, the
Group customizes differentiated and unique living experience for global
elites. The Group will build the Hopson M-Series brand with the largest
investment and the highest standard, which will become the most
important brand IP in the high-end market in future.

D. Risk Management

In 2022, the real estate market continued to be suffered from unfavorable
factors such as the intensified pandemic, economic downturn, and
industry regulation, which dealt quite a blow on the real estate industry.
These risks, which may have particular impact on particular segments of
the real estate market in particular geographical locations, may or may
not have an overall material impact on the Group’s business operations
and financial condition given that the Group is engaging in diversified
property development projects with principal focus spanning across the
Pearl River Delta, Bohai Rim and the Yangtze River Delta economic
zones. The Group will continue to implement prudent operational and
financial policies in seeking to address the impact of these uncertainties.

Considering the stiff competition in bidding and auctioning for quality
land, the Group actively took forward urban redevelopment projects in
tier-one cities during the year, which enabled the Group to expand into
prime locations in core cities and avoid high land premium caused by
tenders, auctions, listing and bidding. Furthermore, the Group also
collaborated with other developers on individual projects to share the
development cost.

C. EXREHK @
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Real Estate Segment (Continued) it Z= 4z # (#&) I I

D. Risk Management (Continued)

In view of China’s supervision over borrowings by real estate enterprises,
the Group, on one hand, proactively promoted the issuance of various
onshore and offshore financing instruments. On the other hand, the
Group also shortened the development and sales cycle of products
targeting improvement demand and rigid demand, thus accelerating the
pace of cash collection, increasing the relevant amount and improving
the Group’s cash inflow. Under the stringent financial supervision, the
Group has no default loans and has not applied to any financial
institutions for extension of loans due. The Group maintained stable
operation and outstanding market reputation as it has always been.

For details of further risk management measures of the Group, please
refer to the “Risk Management and Internal Control” section on pages
112 to 114 of the “Corporate Governance Report”.

D. ElEE @

AHEREECEEEENRSE  £SE8—F@
BRBEHED IR LAEFSERETIANE
TR FECEEOEETRHENEEERS
MAZABLKNMRTERNEZE FELOE
MEREMREESOESEN  KETEEN
ReERMA-EBRENSBMEE T El%“ﬁ
RARN—SEEFOH SENCERFET
B TEE—UMENESFSTHO®E -

FHEEE—FSNERERER F280
¥E ’a%&ijﬂh%ﬁzﬁ F14BERARBRERE X
REBEEE | B9 o

AHRIREEBR AR —ZT-—_F4FH 27



3

\l\'\\\ ! O . |
A\ LML it T
*\\\m&‘ M




COMMERCIAL,..
SEGMENT.

[GE 3R




BERR : REMFEHEXBREBHNRFE

A. Analysis of Commercial Properties
Investment and its Sources of Revenue

As of 31st December 2022, revenue from commercial properties
investment was HK$3,953 million. The influence of our brand increased
year by year. During the year, we won multiple domestic and overseas
industry awards including the Commercial Real Estate Outstanding
Enterprise Award, the Annual Influential Commercial Real Estate
Operator, the Annual Commercial Real Estate Asset Value Enhancement
Award and the title of the Year Model, and became a highly recognised
and trusted service operator in the industry.

.  Investment Real Estate Business

Hopson Commercial had 7 urban complexes in operation or under
preparation, consisting of the three major product lines of Hopson One
(urban complex), Hopson Plaza (regional deluxe shopping mall) and
Hopson Xintiandi (diverse experience commercial centre), situated at the
core commercial zones of first- and second-tier cities. Integrating the
property functions of shopping mall, office, hotel, apartment and
residence, such complexes were operated with an open mind and
ingenuity, and experienced and communicated through social interaction,
culture, innovation and lifestyle, thereby contributing to urban
development.

The economy continued to face with consumption downturn in 2022 due
to the pandemic. However, under the philosophy of “bucking the trend”,
the commercial segment turned crisis into opportunities. Through delicate
operation, experiential shopping gained traction among teenagers,
without a significant impact on sales volume, customer traffic and
occupancy rate in spite of the pandemic.

The Group accords priority to quality, strives for progress while
maintaining stability, and takes its root in the Greater Bay Area, the
Yangtze River Delta and the Bohai Rim Area. As at 31st December 2022,
the commercial sector has a land bank of approximately 7.26 million
sg.m.. Our land bank in first-tier cities (Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
Shenzhen and areas adjacent to Shenzhen) amounted to 6.90 million
sg.m., accounting for 95% of the total.

Commercial Segment: Investment Real Estate Business and Hopson Commercial Technology Platform
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Commercial Segment: Investment Real Estate Business and Hopson Commercial Technology Platform (Continued) | I

BEMRR REUFHUEXEBRSBHNKZF & (&)

Details of the investment properties of the investment real estate business RZ-ZZ - —_F+-_A=+—H £EEREMKE
of the Group as at 31st December 2022 are as follows: HMEXBREWEFINOT :

Approximate

Group’s interest Existing use gross floor area
Location B EEEERE BAl A% BAREmE
(sg.m.)
(FFK)
Beijing Hopson Desheng Building A B K BE L TR 100% Office/ 55,656
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street g g retail and carparking
Xicheng District ERSPIINARET1158 WNES
Beijing, Mainland China IREERBARE TEREEE
Hopson Kylin Xintiandi AR K B AL 100% Commercial/ 45,564
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West a5 m shop and carparking
Avenue and Wangjing Street EREAAAGH EEYA
Chaoyang District ERERER HEHREEE
Beijing, Mainland China A EBBE K
Makeyan Project AR K B AL R 100% Commercial/ 606,322
Plot A (Southern Region) and BN & office and carparking
Plot D (Southern Region) of KIRIRE X E @ T A EEd
Scientific Research Site of A 3R R WAEREEY
National Environmental Protection Dih 8 [
Industrial Park ERFIE B
Tongzhou District
Beijing, Mainland China
Hopson Regal Fortune Plaza B K L R 100% Commercial/ 36,432
Building 223 A office and retail
No. 28 Guangqu Road BER K285 CE YA
Chaoyang District 2235712 RRERTE
Beijing, Mainland China EETRENEES
Hopson One Shopping Mall AR K B L R 100% Commercial/retail/ 259,903
No. 21 Dawang Road West k5= office and carparking
Chaoyang District FAARLE 215 BE/TE/
Beijing, Mainland China SEEBEY DL WAEREEE
Four serviced apartment units B K B 4b R 82.5% Serviced apartment 56,868
in Block No. 9 and Block No. 10 serviced apartments %[5 [& 55 = 5 85% BREXASE
No. 8 Xiaoyun Road 10RERBRAAE R
Chaoyang District 955 1 A9 T 1R AR 75 =X
Beijing, Mainland China YNGR
Hopson International Plaza FEBKEE LS 100% Commercial/office/ 320,927
292 Jiefang HHE retail and carparking
Yangpu District 202174 EEYS V4
Shanghai, Mainland China AEBBRES TEREEE
Binjiang Court B 100% Under construction 430,418
Shanghai Hopson Binjiang Garden t B oK P i
Jiefang Nos. 121 HERESEHE
Dinghai Road T H i ¥R 8121 5%
Yangpu District BB IGAEER
Shanghai, Mainland China
Hopson Fortune Plaza FEKRE £ 100% Commercial/office/ 51,200
483, Feihong Road 49 A& retail and carparking
Hongkou District T P& 483 5% e Y4
Shanghai, Mainland China SEMEES TEREEE
Hangzhou Hopson World Trade Centre FEAREATA 95% Commercial/office/ 92,418
No. 327, Tianmushan Road LAl retail and carparking
Xihu District i EEYE VYA
Hangzhou X B & 327 5% TEREEE
Zhejiang Province, Mainland China NG EREZH L
Hopson Zhujiang International Tower R AREERE 100% Commercial/office/ 87,404
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road EM retail and carparking
Yuexiu District [ EEYE V4
Guangzhou IR 11411657 TEREEE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China ABEHIEBEAE
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Commercial Segment: Investment Real Estate Business and Hopson Commercial Technology Platform (Continued)

BERR  REUFHEXEBRSBHNKZ T & (&)

Approximate

Group’s interest Existing use gross floor area
Location B SE AL ER BATAZ BHAOEEmE
(sq.m.)
(FFK)
Hopson Plaza REAEERE 100% Commercial/ 156,906
Guangzhou Avenue South BEM retail and carparking
Haizhu District BIRE SEYE
Guangzhou BN KER TEREHE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China AEES
Hopson Regal International FEAEERE 100% Commercial/ 22,575
No. 188 Changgang Mid Road BEM retail and carparking
Haizhu District Bk EEYE
Guangzhou £ @ P B% 18857 TEREEE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China A EBRERER
Hopson Gallopade Plaza REAEERE 95% Commercial/ 25,679
No. 1138 West of Zhongshan Avenue B M retail and carparking
Tianhe District KA & YA
Guangzhou L RAEFE 1138 5] TEREEE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China SERRES
C4 Commercial plot of Regal Riviera, FEAEERE 99.5% Under construction 149,829
located at the east side of Canton Tower BN pesg =
Haizhu District B E
Guangzhou J& M 485 3R R
Guangdong Province, Mainland China TRL ™ R CAR ¥ 1%
Commercial plot located at north of R ARREERE 95% Under construction 371,832
Hopson Gallopade Park, BN T
South of Zhongshan Avenue KTl &
Tianhe District FILKEBEABAEERIL
Guangzhou EES: b
Guangdong Province, Mainland China
Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park i B oK Bz g I 100% Office 59,998
No. 53 Xiantian Road B = PRE
Xin Sheng Village BEMEER
Longgang Road Office AR
Longgang District fili FB & 53 5%
Shenzhen, Mainland China AR TR
Tianjin Hopson International Tower R K BE K E T 98.94% Commercial/ 98,550
Interchange of Fuan Main Street MEE AL REE) office and carparking
and Xingan Road BREAHEAZERZO [
Heping District REGHBERAE WREREFES
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge), Mainland China
Hai Zhu Zhi Hui Ke Ji Yuan B R BE BN 0%" Commercial/office 72,774
South Area and North Area pisgz 35 HE/PBRE

Ruibao Yishe Industrial Zone and
Ruibao Yishe Ruixing Industrial Zone
Haizhu District

Guangzhou, Mainland China

* Under lease arrangement

mE-HTITEEM
WE-HHRATER
& dbE
B ER R E

*
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Commercial Segment: Investment Real Estate Business and Hopson Commercial Technology Platform (Continued) | I

BEMRR REUFHUEXEBRSBHNKZF & (&)

Il. Hopson Commercial Technology Platform

The commercial segment also revolved around the Group’s asset-light
strategy to build smart engineering and smart commercial platforms. The
development service established a full commercial chain smart
ecosystem of asset building, preparation, tenant recruitment and
operation, customer consumption, supplier support, and internal
collaboration in terms of a cockpit platform of asset owners, merchants,
customers, suppliers and operating teams, thus gradually transforming
Hopson Commercial into an “enterprise based on asset service, platform
and technology”.

Hopson Commercial Technology was committed to becoming a leading
integrated operator providing commercial and pan-commercial ecological
technologies all over the world. Centering on science and technology, the
sector managed the life cycle of projects (design, development,
renovation, positioning, leasing, operation, post-B-end operation, etc.) by
means of technologies. It also exploited advanced technology to
empower various business segments.

B. Commercial Development Strategy

In the advent of the post-pandemic era and facing the complicated
international environment, commercial development will be challenged by
more uncertainties. The Group will actively innovate and upgrade its
products and services in the form of new types, new scenarios and new
models based on consumer trends and demands. After years of in-depth
development and deployment, the commercial segment has developed
the investment real estate business and the Hopson Commercial
Technology platform business. This commercial segment comprising two
major management platforms with light assets and heavy assets
respectively, will focus on its original vision and continue to implement the
following strategic plans:

I. Sustainable development of investment real estate
business

The investment real estate business will continuously expand the
commercial area under management and business scale in reliance
on the rich and high-quality land reserves of the Group, steadily
driving the growth of commercial operating service. Moreover, the
Group will continue to optimise its tenant portfolio for investment
properties to enhance the potential of rental income.

Meanwhile, the Group will transform from traditional tenant
management to incubation, vigorously introduce branded
companies and create new intellectual properties with a fixation on
establishing large-scale pan-entertainment product lines in rural
regions. Leveraging the member base of Hopson Tone, the Group
will explore new models for online and offline cooperation, empower
the offline physical businesses and merchants, and step up efforts
in internet marketing and digital operation, in order to facilitate the
sustainable development of heavy asset projects.
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Commercial Segment: Investment Real Estate Business and Hopson Commercial Technology Platform (Continued)

BERR  REUFHEXEBRSBHNKZ T & (&)

Commercial Development Strategy (Continued) B.

Hopson Commercial Technology brand Il
development and innovation

The brand development and innovation of Hopson Commercial
Technology are as follows:

a. New types and models: Hopson Commercial Technology
continuously developed new types and business models. For
example, the Group nurtured the high-end commercial
complex MOHO series products to establish innovative
landmark commercial complexes;

b.  New model: Hopson Commercial Technology facilitated the
cooperation between third-party customers. Through the
introduction of industry content and intellectual properties,
the Group formed a land purchase model for new businesses
in connection with product planning, construction
management, operation and tenant recruitment, and
increased the stickiness of the full-cycle management of
entrusted asset investment, financing, management and
withdrawal.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022
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Commercial Segment: Investment Real Estate Business and Hopson Commercial Technology Platform (Continued) | I
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B. Commercial Development Strategy (Continued)

lll. Technology empowerment

Hopson Commercial Technology strove to conduct commercial
asset operation management for the full life cycle (design,
development, renovation, positioning, leasing, operation, post-B-
end operation, etc.) of all business projects, while vigorously
exploring technological development by providing industry advisory
services and smart solutions with advanced technologies. The
commercial segment built up the urban and industrial pillars
through the “industry + consumption” dual-core system and
provided one-stop service consisting of funding, commissioned
construction, building a closed loop with the industrial chain and
commissioned operation based on the life cycle of the business
entities. In addition, it employed technologies to empower each link
of the whole life cycle (i.e. industrial chain + product chain +
business chain) with the “(B+B)2C” model, providing a series of
empowerment services to customers from the industrial, business
and venture capital incubation circles, including on-site operations,
industrial chain integration and internal management.

C. Risk Management

The risks faced by the commercial segment are primarily market
competition risk and human resources risk:

[ Market competition risk: the industrial growth slowed down caused
the battle for market share more intense due to the vast number of
competitors; and

Il. With the growing size of the projects under management and the
business expansion, more staff were required for project operation,
and the Company had to retain and continuously recruit qualified
employees to meet the growing needs for talents.
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Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management
MEEBERR  SEEHERBERYEEE

A. Revenue Analysis A. BB RD M

As of 31st December 2022, the income of property management #HZE-_ZT-——F+-"HA=+—H YPESZEIR
segment was approximately HK$2,989 million. The property management 8 Uz A 4 /5 7 #5200 8918 JT - ¥ 2 & 2 iRk 18 5

segment is divided into two major segments (i.e. hooplife technology and A& 4 /EHE R R WE S IE MR AR °
property management).
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Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)

MEEERR  SEFHENRRYEEE (B |I

Strategic layout combining hooplife technology and property management:

In-depth development
in the country,
strategize in many cities

RHEE BESH

EEBRHENERYEEENEKIRE :

We set up two headquarters in Beijing and Guangzhou respectively with a dual headquarter
deployment in the country. Our business covers areas in Northern China, Eastern China, Southern
China and Southwestern China which forms four regional operation and management centers
directly managed by the headquarters. We have in-depth development in first-and second-tier
cities including Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Tianjin, Xi’an, Ningbo, Hangzhou and Chengdu.
We strive to create a livelihood of health and abundance for families in China.

FIRMEMD IR B LEBEXGREL2E  EHEEEBEMEL ER EER
e FRAEBEENNARGECELEEEPL FRRAALR B8 EMN X
AT ER MM KEBE-—_KET BOIRRTRRERERE ZRANEE -

= In-depth development in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region

R RORE

An important base for the dual core of headquarters and business

MR R ETEREM

®  Deployment in Yangtze River Delta

mRR=AM

Capture the lead |n the Chinese economy

M Bl A RE S

B | eading in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area

PEEERANEE

Continue to lead in the origin of business

FHEBMEXRTRIL

m  Exploring the Yangtze River Economic Belt

IR TEES

Establish economic belt strategic points

TR P A B S
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Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)
MEEERR  SETHENERYEEE ()

Multi-dimensional deployment in community business chain,
create community operation strategy exclusive to hooplife
ZHEMRHEBEEXHE TERETERBHEREHK

Subsidiaries under Hooplife Technology Group include Guangdong Esteem Property Services Limited, Beijing Hopson Life

Network Technology Limited and Beijing Youyouijia International Travel Agency. We deeply merge business areas in property
management, provide diversified assets management and life services.

BAERMBREEETFRAABHEERERVERBERAF - EREGLERENMRBARATF - b RIEH KB IKTT
HEBRRAFEX - AERMAVEEERHEZ T(ENEEELMAETERS -

40  Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)
MEEERR  SEEFHLENRRDEEE (B)

.  Community Technology

Hooplife Technology Group is a technological, innovative and
comprehensive group company integrating property management,
technological services, commercial full-scenario operations in community
and asset operations. From the perspective of urban development, it
pursues the inclusive development of people, cities and technology and
promotes the harmonious symbiosis of the community ecology.

As a key project of Hopson Group, hooplife has multi-dimensional layout
as to the development of community industry chain from product
planning, design, research and development to promotion and
application, thereby forming a “strategic stronghold” with Esteem
Property as the core. While deepening community development, hooplife
refined an exclusive “community operation strategy”, so as to facilitate
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement for property companies,
continue to create diversified operating income.

Adhering to the corporate mission of “technology makes life better”,
hooplife applies high-quality services to every project under management,
rolls out multi-dimensional layout of the community industry chain, and
conducts deep integration of property management, provide diversified
assets management and life services.

In 2022, the Group continued to empower and upgrade smart
communities with technology and digitalization, as well as to continuously
build the “Internet+Smart Community”. By adopting various technologies
and measures, the Group continuously expanded the service boundary,
enhanced operational efficiency and fully established a community with a
convenience life circle.
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Corporate Working
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MEEBRR  SEEFHLENRERDEEE (B)

Il. Property Management

The property management services of the Group are managed by
Guangdong Esteem Property Services Limited (“Esteem Property”).
Esteem Property, established in 1999, adopted the operating model of
establishing double headquarters in Guangzhou and Beijing, and
possessed the first class property management qualification in China.
Adhering to the corporate philosophy of “creating healthy lifestyle with
people-orientated operations”, with relentless efforts made over the past
two decades, the technology empowerment and the operation
capabilities in community industry of Esteem Property have been at the
forefront of the industry, and its total transaction volume, order volume,
transaction frequency, average revenue per user (ARPU) value,
repurchase rate, customer conversion rate and other business data are
among the best in the industry. Esteem Property joined different industry
competent organizations successively, including the International Society
of the Golden Keys and the Chartered Institute of Housing (CIH). In
addition, Esteem Property won numerous profession awards issued by
industry associations and institutions such as China Property
Management Institute and China Index Academy. Esteem Property is a
large property management company that strives to offer all-rounded,
systematic property management services for mass customers.

With a leading technological strategic layout, diversified service models
and exceptional comprehensive strength, the Group obtained over 40
key awards in the industry, including “2022 TOP 1 China’s Internet
Community Operation Leading Enterprise”, “2022 TOP 1 Leading
Enterprise in China Property Technology Empowerment”, “Top 11 among
2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China”, “2022 Top
100 Leading Property Management Companies in Terms of Customer
Satisfaction in China”, “Leading Digital and Intelligent Technology
Companies at 2022 Top 100 Blue Chip Property Management
Companies Summit”, “Top 100 Companies at 2022 Top 100 Blue Chip
Property Management Companies Summit”, “2022 Property
Management Company with Comprehensive Development Strength in
Guangdong Province”, “2022 Brand of Property Management Company
in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area”, “2022 Outstanding
Contribution Award of Property Management Companies in Guangdong
Province for Taking Social Responsibility and Contributing to Social
Employment”, which not only reflected the industry’s confidence in
Hooplife’'s development prospects and recognition of its technological
capabilities and operational capabilities but also fueled the transition of
property service with vitality and momentum in the age of digital
economy, proving Hooplife as a leading industry player.

Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)
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Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)
MEEERR  GEFLENERYEER (B) ||

Esteem Property possesses the most advanced informatization
management platform and technology. By using smart management
methods and tools that effectively facilitate property reform and
innovation, Esteem Property offers high quality property management
services for over 100 large-scale projects in Guangzhou, Beijing,
Shenzhen, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chengdu, Xi’an and other cities. Over the
years, the Company closely followed the path of internet + smart
community management and strived for continuous innovative
development. It has established a series of comprehensive informatization
management and control systems that cover financial management,
human resources management, engineering management, service
supervision management and other aspects by leveraging on the
technology platform. It is the pioneer among Chinese property companies
in terms of technology and smart transformation.

Regarding operation empowerment, we conduct deep integration of
property management and provide diversified assets management and
life services, which integrated the advantages of each industry segment
and built a community industry ecosystem that covers the clothing, food,
housing, transportation, entertainment, shopping, tourism and other life
services of the residents. The realisability of the platform surpasses
multiple leading enterprises.

There are four service modes of Esteem Property:

a.  Tulip Service Mode: Tulip Service Mode is a customized service
mode for ordinary projects with a monthly management fee of less
than RMB2 per sg.m.. It mainly provides basic property services
such as order maintenance, cleaning, greening, disinfection,
customer service, and engineering maintenance.
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Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)

MEEBRR  SEEFHLENRERDEEE (B)

Sunflower Service Mode: The Sunflower Service Mode is a
customized service mode for mid-to-high-end projects with a
monthly management fee of RMB2 to RMB4 per sg.m.. Through
assigning full-time sunflower housekeepers who are responsible for
communicating with customers 24 hours a day and providing fast,
convenient and comprehensive one-stop upgraded service,
Sunflower Service Mode is an extension of the Tulip Service Mode.
In the process of management and service, it will always meet the
needs of the property owners. On the basis of meeting the daily
needs of customers, it provides fast, convenient and all-round
upgraded services through multiple channels, shortens the distance
between the property company and the property owners, and lets
property owners experience and enjoy the pleasure of being
served. By assigning full-time sunflower housekeepers and using a
dedicated service phone, it provides property owners with 24/7
services. Through the implementation of first inquiry accountability
system, it deals with property owners’ demands in a timely manner,
listens to the property owners’ suggestions and opinions, and
provides customers with personalized services that meet their
needs. The sunflower housekeepers provide uninterrupted service
24 hours a day, 365 days a year, making the property owners’ life
easy and comfortable. Through the promotion of social ethics,
community civilization conventions and environmental protection
awareness, it creates a healthy, civiized and warm community
atmosphere.

Golden Lily Service Mode: Golden Lily Service Mode is a
customized service mode for high-end projects with a monthly
management fee of RMB4 to RMB7 per sg.m.. It mainly provides
proactive, caring, and thoughtful personalized high-end services at
high-end residential projects. The goal of Golden Lily Service Mode
is “zero tolerance for service and zero defect for quality”. By
providing customers with active services, it effectively conveys
property service information to customers, and provides customers
with transparent, proactive, caring and thoughtful services. On top
of satisfaction and content, Golden Lily Service Mode gives
customers more surprises, touching moments and superiority. The
Golden Lily Service Mode requires employees to take the initiative
to identify the potential needs of the property owners. The
advantage of this service mode is “initiative to formulary”,
highlighting its advantages over high-end services of other property
management brands in nature.

b.
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Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)
MEEERR  GEFLENERYEER (B)

MAHA Service Mode: The MAHA Service Mode is a top-level
property customized service mode with a monthly management fee
of more than RMB7 per sg.m.. It mainly provides luxury and top-
notch services such as platinum housekeepers and asset
management services at top-level residential projects. The service
concept of the MAHA Service Mode is to “provide meticulous
customer care and create a better life than ever before”. By
focusing on luxury residential services, it delivers a respectful,
worry-free, and caring service experience, and continues to
improve service quality through paying attention to details. The
MAHA Service Mode focuses on the experiences of customers.
From the on-site reception of the potential customers, the
residential services after the purchase of property to asset
management services, customers only need to contact the
exclusive housekeeper to enjoy the one-stop distinguished and
worry-free services. MAHA Service Mode is committed to building
a high-quality and experienced professional property service team.
Through continuous attention given to details and service
innovation, it provides property owners with a perfect living
environment and lifestyle and redefines the luxury life of the property
owners.

Service
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MEEBRR  SEEFHLENRERDEEE (B)

B. Development Strategies

The property management segment adheres to the corporate mission of
“technology makes life better” and devotes all the effort on becoming an
international leading technology ecological operator. With property
management as the core, this segment has deepened community
development, achieved cost reduction and efficiency enhancement with
smart technology.

Starting from the middle of 2022, Esteem Property has fully launched the
“Building Homes with Ingenuity” campaign in more than 200 projects in
over 30 cities across the country. Taking 85 service contacts as the
starting point, Esteem Property implemented a series of quality
improvement plan centering on the five ingenious features of image
transformation, contact quality improvement, beauty and cleanness
assembly, mobile service and community connection to provide 360° all-
rounded safety escort for property owners, with quality and service
capabilities further transformed and upgraded. Esteem Property closely
follows the wave of “Internet +”, actively explores the construction of
smart communities, utilizes technological and digital techniques to
empower and upgrade smart communities, and continues to deepen the
“internet + “smart community” construction.

Looking forward to the future, in 2023, the Group will steadily develop its
strategic core, return to the community, promote quality upgrades,
deeply cultivate the community economy, superimposed on technology
empowerment and ecological operation, and continue to maintain its
industry-leading position with core competencies. In terms of bulk non-
standard integration efforts, the Group will strengthen community
marketing and gradually carry out community promotion activities
leveraging on its established marketing system. Capitalizing a variety of
partner mechanisms, the Group continues to cultivate the community in
depth, and explore more community consumption scenarios to ensure
profit growth. In terms of continuous efforts in market expansion, the
Group will focus on the market expansion of public construction, urban
services and digital construction projects, with more than 100 resource
partners developed and deployment in several key cities. And in terms of
the dual development of basic property management, the Group will
increase revenue with a focus on service quality on the one hand, and
operation on the other hand. In the post-pandemic era, the Group will
uphold the strategy of deep plowing in the community economy and
concentrate on community operation for the pursuit of revenue
enhancement.

Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)
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Property Management Segment: Hooplife Technology and Property Management (Continued)
MEEERR  GEFLENERYEER (B) ||

C. Risk Management

The major risks and uncertainties faced by the property management
segment are as follows:

Industry risk: The operation of the property management segment
is subject to the regulatory environment of the PRC government on
the property management industry. For example, the fees charged
for property management services are strictly regulated by the
relevant regulatory authorities of the PRC government. In addition,
our business performance depends on the area under
management, which is also subject to the regulatory environment
of the PRC government on real estate development business.

Business risk: The ability of the property management segment to
maintain or improve its current level of profitability depends on the
its ability to mitigate the adverse impacts of operating costs (e.g.
increase in labour costs or other operating costs). The property
management segment may not procure new property management
service contracts as planned or at desirable pace or price; The
property management segment may not be able to collect property
management fees from customers and as a result, may incur
impairment losses on receivables. Termination or non-renewal of
property management services for a significant number of
properties in the property management segment could have an
adverse impact on our business, financial position and results of
operations.
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Investments Segment % & it i

A. Project Investment

In 2022, the Group’s investments losses in the primary and the secondary
market amounted to HK$2,210 million (2021: HK$2,965 million). Financial

AL BEERERBR
ZEIF2F SER—EMBER LTS
ZREBEA2A10BBL(ZETE = —F 12065

assets at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to  (EH L) c IR A FEFBEM S EU AT E 2

HK$3,562 million (2021: HK$4,206 million); and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to HK$2,643 milion (2021: HK$8,317

million).

BB EEBIBEEBITL(ZEZ—F 420618
BIL) BRATEEBERINERZUEKEEES
2643 B (ZE = —F : 8317 B L) °

For the year ended 31st December 2022
BE-ZE-_-—F+=-H=+—-HLFE

Dividend
Gain/(loss) Fair value income and
on disposal gain/(loss) other income Total
HE WS ATE BREWAR
J(EBR) W& (EBR) Hi g A &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET THERT THERT FET
Listed securities: EWES:
— Equity securities, Hong Kong —BRAEFS  BE (1,461,606) 47,540 35,072 (1,378,994)
— Equity securities, United States — J& A" E % » & (1,521,406) 1,298,288 - (223,118)
Unlisted securities: FEETHESE:
— Equity securities, debt securities — P& 235 5 - (& #E
and investment funds BEMKREES 15,527 (181,215) 255,756 90,068
— Structured investment —HEEMRE
products E (1,567,399) 866,210 3,064 (698,125)
(4,534,884) 2,030,823 293,892 (2,210,169)
For the year ended 31st December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HBHILFE
Dividend
Gain/(loss) Fair value income and
on disposal gain/(loss)  other income Total
W NEFE BRERAR
(E51B) W=/ (ER) RN ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
Listed securities: EmES:
— Equity securities, Hong Kong —BRAEFES BE (589,878) (8,248) 71,249  (526,877)
— Equity securities, —BRARES
Mainland China HR B K B (6,834) 13,444 81 6,691
— Equity securities, United States ~— JR AR & % » = 2,203,354 (3,239,981) —  (1,036,627)
Unlisted securities: ELETHES
— Equity securities, debt securities — IR A5 5 - (EH1E
and investment funds BEREEES (35,785) 55,697 348,722 368,634
— Structured investment —EEEERE
products E (936,800) (874,993) 35,261 (1,776,532)
634,057 (4,054,081) 455,313  (2,964,711)
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B. Development Strategies of the Investments
Segment

Under the investments segment, the Group focuses on investments in
high-and-new technology and medical science and technology
companies. The Group believes that high-and-new technology will
become the most important driving force behind the future development
of the world and China, and the Group should and must embrace it to
ensure its long-term development. In accordance with the Group’s
current development trend and based on the Group’s existing high-
quality land reserve resources and excellent commercial real estate
performance, efficient management tools are essential to maintain and
increase the Group’s asset value for some time in the future. Investments
in listed equity in the secondary market can be one such liquidity
management tool. As the Group makes investment allocations with a
view to holding investments for medium to long term, it will be able to
alleviate the uncertainty brought about by short-term market volatility. By
way of these investments, the Group can obtain higher capital returns
and stable cash flow for its surplus assets, thereby further enhancing the
shareholder value. In addition, the Company also has an allocation of
certain financial instruments such as structured notes and share options
if necessary to fully capitalise on asset management tools and address
the change in market volatility, thus reasonably striking a balance
between investments income and the effects caused by the market risks.

C. Risk Management

The investments segment attaches great importance to risk management,
and insists on investing only in securities are extremely liquid and can be
converted into cash at any time.

The risks of the investments segment are mainly market risks. Market risk
mainly refers to the risk of loss of its self-owned funds investment due to
adverse changes in market prices in the Group’s business activities. The
market risk of the investments segment is mainly stock price risk. Stock
price risk mainly refers to the risk of changes in the market price of the
equity securities invested which could bring loss to the Group. With high
uncertainties, stock price risk is one of the major market risks that the
Company faces. The Group closely monitors the price fluctuation of
relevant assets and has adopted relevant preventive measures. The
Group tracks any variation in investment scale and value-at-risk (VaR) of
securities positions on a daily basis to monitor the impact of relevant
risks. By implementing diversified investment strategies, the Group
properly controlled and timely adjusted total investment amounts of
various securities and managed the market risk effectively.
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Infrastructure Segment E i iy 15

A. Revenue Analysis

At present, the construction companies and construction design
companies under the infrastructure segment are primarily engaged in
undertaking the construction works and construction design of self-
owned projects of the Group, as well as external contracted works. The
development in the infrastructure segment always strives to the principle
of maintaining balance between progress and quality, targeting on
improving efficiency and making progress at a steady pace. We have
enhanced our construction schedule planning management and
construction progress management, and implemented strict inspection
procedures so as to ensure quality construction works and timely
delivery. We have also strengthened the level of safety construction,
which will be beneficial to the general image of the Group. The
development speed and quality of the infrastructure segment are of equal
importance with “quality in stability, steady progress” as its motto. The
total annual output in 2022 was approximately HK$9,229 million, with
area under construction of approximately 4.21 million sg.m. and
completed area of approximately 0.87 million sg.m., providing strong
support for the production and operation of the Group. The fine furnishing
contracted sales of the infrastructure segment in 2022 was RMB2,047
million, which was basically the same as compared with last year.

A RIFRERDH

EERBRO TREEZREATMBERTEA
BRIZZAEEEAEEEENTIIEER ﬂli%:
BE R MEINKBEER  AZRBOER
FERFAREHESWEMRA - ZEE®R
BEERIT - MABATREETHEE MAEET
BIEEE B BWE REEA4K RIEH
AT EXBERT RORIRFAEERE
BRg ERRBEREREEREYE B
TE BT S _FEEEREBENA
R 20 L EEHEEY B421EFE FH K
BRITHEBEORSTEFYF K AEEEEEER
BEM MEERRR-_FS__FHRBREELEY
HEABARM2047EL MEFEEREFF -

Million sg.m.
AEFHK
12 4
10 |
8 4
6 4
4.21
4 4
2 1.37 0.87
: 922 H | |
Total GFA New construction area Pre-sale area Completed construction area
BEmE FFEE TEEEE T A
Unit 2022 2021 Year-on-Year
Results Figures BEEE BN =S —EZ—%F 54
Income from infrastructure A EZEE WA HKS million
investment before elimination AEETT 9,229 10,598 (13%)
Intra/inter-segment D EB A U S HK$ million
BEET 5,790 6,981 (17%)
Area under construction FREXREIEE million sg.m.
during the year BEFEK 4.21 10.12 (58%)
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Infrastructure Segment (Continued) E 22 iz 8 (&) I I

B. Development Strategies

In 2022, while making every effort to ensure performance, the
infrastructure segment further promoted the application of, among other
things, smart construction cloud platform, verification of bills for the
construction period, automated settlement, automated talent evaluation,
talent cultivation, everyone with a certificate, establishment and
improvement of corporate benchmark price database, and smart building
materials, with an aim to push ahead its strategic goal of technological
transformation. The improvement in platform automation and
management expertise of employees facilitated work quality and work
efficiency. In order to achieve orderly growth in pre-sale and completion
filing, the infrastructure group made active plans for various regions and
projects to ensure major milestones could be met.

C. Risk Management
The risks faced by the infrastructure segment are as follows:

| The comprehensive strength of some subcontractors was not in
line with the volume of business they undertook. Problems such as
lack of contract spirit persisted.

I The engineering pipeline management and control system and
implementation mechanism needed to be further improved. Certain
control requirements could not be effectively implemented at the
project level. Support from other pipelines for on-site production
needed to be enhanced.

M After the promulgation of the Regulation on Ensuring Wage
Payment to Migrant Workers, there was a gap between relevant
management measures and the requirements of local regulatory
authorities, and the phenomenon of migrant workers asking for
wages in various places has seriously affected the on-site progress
and the Group’s image.

In view of the aforesaid risks, the infrastructure group launched and
implemented relevant effective measures, including but not limited to
grading new subcontractors while placing limits on the volume of
business subcontractors may undertake, compelling subcontractors
whose progress was seriously lagging behind to clear and leave the
construction sites or introducing third parties to participate in
construction, formulating new positive and negative incentive measures
for progress reward and punishment, adjusting organisational structure
and staffing to ensure the quantity and quality of onsite production and
quality safety personnel at the project level, strengthening the real-name
management system of on-site migrant workers to prevent
misappropriation of wages of migrant workers, comprehensively
improving the management level of migrant workers with a smart labour
system, etc.
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Part VI: Directors’ Profile £ <35 : EE& N

Executive Directors #{T&=

CHU Kut Yung, aged 34, graduated from the Renmin University of China, majoring in Finance. She joined
the Company in 2008 and held the position as Assistant to President from 2009 to 2011. Ms. Chu has
been appointed as an executive Director of the Company since 7th November 2011 and was appointed
as the Executive Vice President of the Company in March 2012. Ms. Chu had been the Deputy Chairman
of the Company since 11th July 2013 and further appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 10th
January 2020. She is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee; and a member of the Option Shares
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chu has solid experience in investment and management.

RIERR 3457 RENFEARKRESHERYE - REAITRZTT/N\FMARAR RZZTNFE-ZT
——FRETREYE BT F 1+ AtBEZATAERRNTESE N2 G- AEZTEELR
AIRBGRGE - AxtE T =F LA+ AREZAALARARER YR -_ZT-_TF— A+ AKE—
FREAADFRLE - WIHFARATIREEESTF  UREREZES@IKE - RLTEARBHRER
BIRLEER -

ZHANG Fan, aged 57, holds a postgraduate qualification. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in March 2018
as chairman of the eastern regional company. In 2019, Mr. Zhang worked as the vice-president of the
Group cum manager of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area investment development
committee of the Group. Mr. Zhang has been appointed as the co-president of the Group since January
2020. Mr. Zhang has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company since 1st November 2020.
Mr. Zhang has substantial experience in corporate investment and operational management, primarily
responsible for the optimization of the Group’s overall investment management system and operation
management system, improvement in the Group's primary and secondary land development models
and national land development work, successfully expanding various first-level projects; formulating
reform measures such as the Group's development strategy and action plan, co-investment mechanism,
adjustment of key position personnel, organizing the establishment of a large-scale operation
management and control system, coordinating management and control operations, development and
other pipelines to improve management and control operation efficiency and per capita effectiveness, and
assisting projects to introduce industrial resources from multiple dimensions, strengthening the Group's
legal work, and continuous improvement in the risk control level of the Group's investment. He is also a
member of each of the Option Shares Committee and the Finance Committee of the Company.

R 57 5% MIRARE - KT/ \F=ZANBEAKE  ZEERFBEHARNEER - —T—NF © EF
SEREHFANERREHREZEGEME - BT _TF AR - RELEZERAEEMEER - B -F
“ZE+ AR RELEBZERAARMITES - RALELERE KEEBEF I AAFEELR -
TEARSEERNRATEERANELSERERANEL TERE L ——ARFEAUAREE L iRR
Tie KERZE—RIAE  SIEREBREBMNITE S - RIE  BRELASFESRERE
HRBENELEERE  BRELES HELEGESRSEEEERERAGYE - YHBHA RS
HESIANERZAR - RIEKEZFETIE  TERIEERENRBRENIKT - RITALARBREZES R
BBEESEEBZKE -

AU Wai Kin, aged 67, has been an executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au joined the Group in 1995. He is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Au graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University in
Guangzhou and has over twenty years’ experience in construction of buildings, town planning, real estate
investment and property development. He is also a member of each of the Option Shares Committee and
the Finance Committee of the Company.

BEE 67 5% B NANEFHERTES - BEEAR - NWNAAFNEAKE - YAERARZRFAFZ
B - WEXREMPIUARES - BELERTRE WMHRS  HERBEMMERRT BB T2FE% -
BITRARRIBERZESRIBRERTALIKE °
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XIE Bao Xin, aged 42, joined the Group in July 2002 and was the General Manager of Finance and
Investment Management Centre of the Group and the members of the Group established in the
Guangzhou District. He graduated from the Sun Yat-Sen University Lingnan (University) College and
obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics. He has over ten years of experience in real estate and finance
management. Mr. Xie has been appointed as executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since 11th July 2013. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a member
of each of the Option Shares Committee and the Finance Committee of the Company.

HEE 25 R_ZTZE_FELANMALEE  BECASEMKEKREDOAERAEEEMNLERF]
MISEBRER LR - WEENFILARER (KB) Bbr - WESKESLBM - RREHERMIEER
TEHERETHELR - BT =FtA+ A SEEEZERTARNMTESRYBELE  BAK
RRIZETFRRZES - WIIRARRBERERZEEIMBREERAZKE

BAO Wenge, aged 44, is a Vice President of the Group and chairman of Hospon Commercial Technology.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the Tianjin University
of Commerce and obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics. Mr. Bao joined the Group in 2000. He has
worked in the real estate industry for over 20 years and successfully carried out several large-scale real
estates projects. He is familiar with the operation of commercial properties, office buildings, residential
projects, and hotel and property management. He has over 20 years of experience in real estate operation
and management, marketing and operation management. Mr. Bao has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since 18th November 2014. He is also a member of the Option Shares Committee
of the Company.

BIHE - 46 5% RAAKERBHFABMBRESE - RI/AARAET FRARZES - REXNKER
FASWHERBEBELEM - HEEN _ZETFNALEKE - WRFHEX TR +F - WKIHHEH
SEREMERR - RABREYE  BFE  TTHAZLE  UARBERYEER - BREHELE
RER MSEHEREBEERIAEO —+FLR -HA T NF+— A+ \BREZEARARNITES
WINBARFBREREEZKE °
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Independent Non-Executive Directors &3 IEH1TES

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 67, has been an independent non-executive Director since 2nd July 2010.
Mr. Tan currently serves as Senior Advisor to a Hong Kong based boutique merchant bank in the capacity
of Responsible Officer for Type 1, Type 4 and Type 6 Regulated Activities licenced under The Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). He is also an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the audit committee of a local bank. Prior to this, Mr. Tan was the managing
director and head of the Hong Kong investment banking business of Barclays Capital. Mr. Tan holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Alberta and has obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from City University in the United States of America. He is a Fellow Member of
the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 27 years of experience in the banking industry in both
Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Tan had held senior positions in several major and international financial
institutions including Citicorp, JP Morgan Chase and HSBC. Mr. Tan has a wide breadth of experience
in corporate and investment banking as well as capital markets. Mr. Tan was formerly the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association. He is the chairman and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

FBREEE 67 BE-ZTF Lt A-HRBHEEBYIIFNTES - RELERA—HAESBEREERTZER
B - WIRERBREBEOE 571 EEFFRAEKRAIBERIRATET 2 E1H F4HERECATIEAEE
BZABAB - BINA—RAMRITHBE I IENTES - WIEAEZZEGERE - LA %L L A Barclays
Capital 2 ER R R BB ERITERS ZEE o BRITAERFA University of Alberta RI32 247 + WES
ZB City University TR ERET 24 - HANMEABAIRBEE L - REERNMEARBBZRITERS
1 27 F4EER o BRI AE R Citicorp » JP Morgan Chase MBS ETT5 2 R AR BIEE & B T S AR BRAL -
BRAEENREERBERITURERATSHALEZLER - RAEEBEBSEEEAEATSAGZREIER - BA
ANARIBZEZES FHEESRMERD HEALRSZECEAZERLKE URRERZEEKE -

CHING Yu Lung, aged 53, has been an independent non-executive Director since Tst July 2015. Mr.
Ching currently serves as the chief financial officer of a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ching
also serves as the independent non-executive director of each of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay
Area Development Company Limited (stock code: 737), Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (stock code:
1047) and Luzhou Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code : 1983), all of them are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and an executive master degree in business administration from Tsinghua University in
1992 and 2006, respectively. Mr. Ching is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 30 years of experience in auditing, corporate finance
and accounting. He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the
Company.

BUE 583 BT AFtHA - BRUEBIIFNTES - BAERER—HRBRIALETHORRZ
HEM ISR - BAEENMARIRITEBBRER AR (RO : 737) ~ RETAR AR (RO :
1047) FOBMIRITIRG AR AT (RGN : 1983) (HIRBERPAER L) ZBIIEHITES  thH 5l
R AN ER T NFREEEPNABRIEEREELTEN MEEAZTHRAE IEEEELEN - 12
EERBBETAGREBFTARETTAGERGE  TAZEAMSHEHBEEE REEMEH -
ERERSTHTHEEED 0 FLR - BNARRAZEZZES  FMHEES  REZEBRMERS
SEEATRGEEGEHIKE -
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IP Wai Lun, William, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive Director since 6th May 2021. Mr.
lp currently serves as a managing director of Amasse Capital Limited. Prior to this, Mr. Ip has been the
executive director in the mergers and acquisitions department of SMBC Nikko Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited from April 2012 to January 2021. Prior to SMBC Nikko Securities (HK) Ltd., he has served as the
managing director and head of the investment banking department of Cantor Fitzgerald (HK) Capital
Markets Ltd. For over 14 years prior to this, Mr. Ip has also worked at several major investment banks
of Chinese and European background. Mr. Ip also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Kantone Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1059). Mr. |p obtained a Bachelor of Science in Economics and
a Master of Science in Economics from London School of Economics and Political Science, University of
London. He also earned a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the Wharton School of Finance,
University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Ip has been a Responsible Officer for Type 1, Type 4 and Type 6 (including
giving advice on matters falling within the ambit of The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs (as amended from time to time)) and regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Ip has over 27 years of investment banking experience in Asia,
with a focus on Greater China and Japan. Mr. Ip is a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder of the CFA
Institute, the U.S. He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the

Company.
EEM 665 BT —FRANAREEBEYIINMTES KEALER/BEEARRR AR 2 EHHLE
IRl T ——FMAZE T —F— AR - BEEEME SMBC HEE S (FE) BRAANERL

WITES - Ebﬂ)\ SMBC HEIES 27l » REEEEMNREE (BF) EAMBERARZEFALERIEZ
BIRITHEE o Elil:ZE\JE’] 14 /0 BEEENERNERAGHREARBMNE R 2 KRB ERTT - EEAEDN
REBREEBRAR (RO : 1059) KBV TES - EXEERBAZEMABUALLEZSLT (London
School of Economics and Political Science, University of London) 78 5% 4% jfs £33 22 83 - Eafy K 4% £330 &2
B B4 - WEE & AE R KERIERER (Wharton School of Finance, University of Pennsylvania) 481
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Mr. Lucas Ignatius Loh Jen Yuh (appointed as the Co-president with effect from 1st July 2021), aged 55, was the President
and the Chief Executive Officer of China, Capitaland Limited between 2014 to 2021. Mr. Loh joined Capitaland Limited in 2001.
Mr. Loh worked at Temasek Holdings between 1996 to 2001. Prior to 1996, Mr. Loh worked at the Inland Revenue Authority of
Singapore. Mr. Loh obtained a Bachelor of Science (Real Estate) from National University of Singapore. He also earned a Master
of Business Administration (MBA) from Oklahoma City University and completed the Advanced Management Program at Harvard
Business School.

BER(BE_T_—FtA " PREZARARABFEAY) b RIE—MFE_T - - FHBETIEEH
(Capitaland Limited) & P E @R ([SIEPED EFERTE - BEER T —FNANEEE -BZBEEE NN
FE T FHBE G EBIAEHIER (Temasek Holdings) e IR — A NNE R BEETBRFINERED - BRE
MEFMERLRENEHEEBSETEM - FHAEERR NG STASEXIBERBE TS84 WK IEERHE
Blg 2 #EREERRIE -

HE Hui, aged 42, is an Assistant President of the Group and President of Hopson Capital Group. Ms. He graduated from
University of International Business and Economics with a Bachelor degree. She joined the Group in 2004 and has served as
Financing Manager, Vice General Manager and then General Manager of Investment and Financial Management Centre, General
Manager of group operation platform, General Manager of Hopson Capital Investment and others. Ms. He has wide exposure in
capital market operation, equity investment and investment and financing of real estate.

g - 4257 AEBEPBAHRSLEEASHEAH - AIXETEXENEINEHEESH KRG BEL B[ - R-_FTTMFEN
BALKE ARETRELE SEREEMBEEPLAALERALE SEPAKLE AEEAREAK
BERU -AZtHELENEAMGEE REREUARFHERBELR

CAIl Zhonghui, aged 43, is an Assistant President of the Group and the Executive Vice President of the Business Management
Sector. Mr. Cai graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University with a master degree. He joined the Group in 2007. He has engaged in
marketing, residential and commercial operations, investment and other work in the Group. He took lead in the management of
a number of residential real estate and commercial complex projects, and has extensive investment and management
experience.

BPE 435 AKEPELY RHEFEFTHIEH FEEEXNFTIUAR BELBU -R_FTLFMBAR
SE EXAEBEERNEZEEH VELRBXEZ RESFI LERBZECTSHE BEXSFABER HAYE
BREMEEEBER -
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Financial Review

Turnover

(i)

(i)

Recognised Sales

In 2022, the Group recorded a turnover of RMB23,312 million
(HK$27,252 million), down 9% (denominated in RMB) and down
11% (denominated in HK$) comparing to RMB25,498 million
(HK$30,734 million) in 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the
sluggish environment and weak property sales as affected by the
epidemic.

In respect of property development business, a total GFA of
1,014,411 square metres (2021: 1,235,695 square metres) was
delivered in 2022. The major projects delivered include MAHA
Beiing (#4&4t5) and Hopson Dreams World (&4 tE5241) in
Beijing, Metropolis Light (& ##%88=) in Kunshan and Hopson Xijing
Garden (& 4 =&1tE) in Guangzhou.

Contracted Sales

The Group recorded total contracted sales of approximately
RMB32,579 million in 2022, down approximately 23% comparing
to approximately RMB42,299 million in 2021.

In 2022, Guangzhou and Huizhou had in total twenty-seven
projects on sale and the contracted sales amounted to RMB8,312
million, representing 26% of the total contracted sales of the Group.
The major projects were Hopson YUNE in Guangzhou (B & 448
=), Hopson Ziyue Mansion (& 4 515 /%), Hopson Hushan Guoji
Villa (& 451U BIFE) and Hopson Yunshan Regal (& 411 F 8).

There were seventeen property projects on sale in Shanghai, mainly
comprising Hesong Lanting (& MEI=), Hopson Sheshan
Dongziyuan (&4 4111 34 [&]) and Hopson Dongjiao Villa (& 4 B 41
BlIZF). Contracted sales of Shanghai amounted to RMB3,299

million, representing 10% of the total contracted sales of the Group.

Twenty projects in total were on sale in Beijing and Tianjin, and the
combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin were RMB20,968
million, representing 64% of the total contracted sales of the Group
in 2022. The major projects were MAHA Beijing (48 & 1t 5), Hopson
YUNE (&448%E), Dongsan Jinmao Palace (R££%fF) and
Hopson MIYA (& Hmet}).
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Part VII: Financial Review (Continued) £t 24 :

Gross Profit

Gross profit in 2022 amounted to HK$8,281 million (2021: HK$13,145
million) with a gross profit margin of 30% (2021: 43%). The decrease in
gross profit margin was mainly due to higher cost of projects delivered in
the property development segment in 2022.

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

Fair value gain on investment properties as at 31st December 2022
amounted to HK$10,072 million (2021: HK$10,451 million). As at 31st
December 2022, the Group owns 19 (2021: 18) investment properties.

Other Gains, Net

Other gains as at 31st December 2022 amounted to HK$202 million (2021
HK$292 million), comprising (1) changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments of HK$144 million; (2) net exchange losses of HK$17 million;
and (3) other net gains of HK$75 million.

Operating Costs

The operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing, general
and administration decreased by 39% to HK$4,498 million in 2022 (2021:
HK$7,367 million). The change was primarily attributable to the decrease
in provision for impairment of assets during the year.

Finance Costs

Gross interest expenses before capitalisation in 2022 increased to
HK$7,884 million (2021: HK$7,509 million), up HK$375 million or 5%.
The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in interest rate of
borrowings from banks and financial institutions in 2022 as compared to
the previous year. The effective interest rate of the Group’s borrowings
was approximately 6.5% per annum (2021: 6.3%).

Taxation

The effective tax rate was 30.4% in 2022, decreased by 6.1 percentage
points as compared with last year, which was mainly due to the fact that
the land appreciation tax rate applicable to the major projects delivered in
2022 was lower than that for major projects in the previous year.
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$8,762 million in 2022 (2021:
HK$9,759 million). Basic and diluted earnings per share was HK$3.05.
During the period under review, excluding the effect of the net of tax gain
from investment property revaluation of HK$7,703 million, adding back
the net of tax loss from disposal of subsidiaries and joint ventures of
HK$1 million, the net of tax expenses for early redemption of commercial
mortgage-backed securities of HK$3 million and the net of tax from
donations of HK$18 million, the underlying profit amounted to HK$1,081
million, representing a decrease of HK$3,675 milion, or 77.3%, as
compared to last year. The overall decrease of the underlying profit for
the year was mainly due to the decline in the gross profit of recognised
sales from delivered projects.

Segment Information

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(70%). In 2022, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Huanbohai Area, Pearl River Delta
and Yangtze River Delta. Southern China (including Guangzhou, Huizhou,
Zhongshan and Yangshuo) contributed 25% of the total revenues of the
Group, 30% from Eastern China (including Shanghai, Hangzhou,
Kunshan, Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang) and 45% from Northern China
(including Beijing, Tianjin, Langfang, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao).

Liquidity and Financial Position

As at 31st December 2022, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$298,714 million and total liabilites came to HK$200,336 million,
representing a decrease of 14% each as compared to 31st December
2021. The decrease in total assets was mainly attributable to the
decrease in properties under development for sale. The decrease in total
liabilities was mainly attributable to the decrease in borrowings.

The Group’s current ratio as at 31st December 2022 was 1.64 (31st
December 2021: 1.79). Equity as at 31st December 2022 decreased by
13% to HK$98,378 million from 31st December 2021, mainly due to the
decrease of non-controlling interests during the year. The net asset value
(“NAV”) per share as at 31st December 2022 was HK$34.24.

As at 31st December 2022, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 67% (31st December 2021: 67%).
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Part VII: Financial Review (Continued) £t 24 :

As at 31st December 2022, the Group had cash and bank deposits
amounting to HK$18,394 million (31st December 2021: HK$36,312
million), of which approximately HK$2 million (31st December 2021:
HK$2 million) was charged by certain banks in respect of the processing
of mortgage facilities granted by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s
properties. 96.71% of the cash and bank deposits were denominated in
Renminbi, 0.80% in Hong Kong dollars, 2.48% in United States dollars
and 0.01% in other currencies.

Total borrowings from banks and financial institutions amounted to
HK$79,861 million as at 31st December 2022, representing a decrease
of 13% or HK$11,904 million as compared to those as at 31st December
2021. Gearing ratio, measured by net bank and financial institution
borrowings, senior notes, convertible bonds and commercial mortgage-
backed securities (i.e. total bank and financial institution borrowings,
senior notes, convertible bonds and commercial mortgage-backed
securities less cash and bank deposits) as a percentage of shareholders’
equity, was 79% as at 31st December 2022 (increased by 9 percentage
points as compared with 70% as at 31st December 2021).

All of the bank and financial institution borrowings were either secured or
covered by guarantees and substantially denominated in Renminbi with
fixed interest rates.

All of the asset-backed securities and commercial mortgage-backed
securities were secured and denominated in Renminbi.

All of the senior notes were unsecured and denominated in United States
dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

All of the convertible bonds were unsecured and denominated in United
States dollars.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured and substantially
denominated in Renminbi.
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The Group’s borrowings repayment profile as at 31st December 2022
was as follows:

As at 31st December 2022
WZBZZE+ZA=+-H

| B E A (28) ||

AEER-_F-_—_F+_A=T-HZHEEE
REBWT

As at 31st December 2021
RZB--¥+-A=+-H

Asset-backed

Bank and Bank and securities and
financial Commercial financial commercial
institution  mortgage-backed Senior  Convertible Other institution  mortgage-backed Senior Other
(HKS$ million) borrowings securities notes bonds  borrowings Total  Percentage borrowings securities notes  borrowings Total  Percentage
RITR RITR BEXH
HBEE BRER R R EHREE
(B8ET) [ENT ERES BARE &% HitEE A& fhtt B8 ARERESF BERE HE4BE g {74
Within one year —FR 20,340 785 1,846 1,949 2534 27,454 (28%) 20,782 3,134 4,608 2,383 30,907 (26%)
One to two years —Z@F 14,746 9,761 2,325 - - 26832 (27%) 31,224 857 1,832 - 33913 (29%)
Two to five years MEERE 21,587 - - - - 21,587 (22%) 22,318 10,700 2,314 - 35332 (30%)
After five years nER 23,188 - - - - 23,188 (23%) 17,441 - - — 17441 (15%)
Total @i 79,861 10,546 417 1,949 2,534 99,061 91,765 14,691 8,754 2,383 117,693
Less: Total bank B BITERR
deposits and cash Beied (18,394) (36,312)
Net borrowings BEFE 80,667 81,281

As at 31st December 2022, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$217,745 million (31st December 2021: HK$203,902
million) for short-term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$121,218
million (31st December 2021: HK$88,692 million) were unutilised.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December 2022, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$80,138 million (31st December 2021:
HK$95,980 million) and the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries of
HK$11,903 milion (31st December 2021: HK$9,411 million) were
pledged with banks and financial institutions for loan facilities used by
subsidiaries.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31st December 2022, the Group provided guarantees to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$20,170 million (31st December 2021: HK$17,502
million).
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Part VII: Financial Review (Continued) %+ 8% : Bt & E & (&)

Commitments AIE
The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2022 were as follows: AREBR _BE_—_F+_A=+—H2Z&¥ENM
™
As at As at
31st December 31st December
2022 2021
R=-ZFZ-Z R-ZE_—%F
+ZA=+—H +ZH=+—8H
HK$ million HKS$ million
ER- 35 BEAT
Capital commitments B RS
Contracted but not provided for BRI4EREE
— Property construction costs — W ERE R 2,040 3,211
— Capital contribution to associates —HEARZHE 316 329
— Capital contribution to joint ventures —BEBRAIZHE 450 129
— Acquisition of equity investments —IWERERE 2,339 2,329
5,145 5,998
Property development commitments W) 5 B R AR
Contracted but not provided for [SERORER e Lo
— Property construction costs — W EEER AR 28,363 30,780
28,363 30,780

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of leased
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease are as follows:

AEERZHABHEENEZ TAIEHEEM

EmEMAKEHE

SHEPE - RETAFHLE

HARBERZZEENESERNT

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2022 2021
R===Z= RZT_—F
t=A=t+-8 t+-A=t-~
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAERT BEAT
Amounts payable THE A 2 518
— Within one year ——FnR 2 14
2 14
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EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Full Redemption at Maturity of Convertible Bonds

On 10th January 2022, the Company issued US$250 million in aggregate
principal amount of 8.00% guaranteed convertible bonds due 2023 (the
“Bonds”) under specific mandate (the “Bond Issue”). The Bonds were
guaranteed by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The
Bonds would be convertible into ordinary shares of the Company upon
conversion. The Bonds had been listed on the Stock Exchange since
11th January 2022 (stock code of the Bonds: 04312), and matured on
6th January 2023 (the “Bonds Maturity Date”). On the Bonds Maturity
Date, the Company has redeemed the Bonds in full at aggregate principal
amount of US$250 million together with accrued interest in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Bonds (the “Redemption”). Following
the Redemption, the Bonds were forthwith cancelled in full and there are
no outstanding Bonds in issue. The Company is discharged from all
obligations under and in respect of the Bonds.
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Principal Activities FEEK

The Company is an investment holding company. lts subsidiaries, A AT A—REEZER AR HETEFAF -

associates and joint ventures are principally engaged in investment BtE AT RS AT FENREIN AR mE
holding, property development, commercial properties investment, 2% E  HEWERE WEEE HENKE
property management, infrastructure and investments businesses. g

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributionsto ARNEEHE ST -_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2022 by geographical IZih@ 2| H v XM ESEHKEE RN 2B

locations is as follows: BatrmT

Contribution to

Turnover operating profit

HREHMNz

R =gt

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET AT

Guangzhou BE M 7,950,109 1,135,681
Beijing b= 11,582,504 2,521,663
Shanghai Hpis! 8,235,723 7,345,347
Tianjin RAE 596,162 44,476
Huizhou LY 360,753 (172,945)
Others Hity (1,473,243) (1,781,037)
27,252,008 9,093,185

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year KXEFBHE T -~ F+_-_A=+—BIFEE

ended 31st December 2022 is as follows: WMEKDHB DN EEBIWNNOT ¢
Turnover
EERE
HK$'000
FET
Revenue from property development MEZRINE 19,081,399
Revenue from commercial properties HmEMEKXKEWNRS
investment 3,952,516
Property management income MEEEUWA 2,989,241
Infrastructure income HEl A 3,439,021
Investments losses HEEIE (2,210,169)
27,252,008
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Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 10% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
5% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 8% of the Group’s turnover while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 1% of the
Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
43 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 176 of
this annual report.

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year (2021: HK50
cents per share, amounting to a total of HK$1,082,724,000). The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2022.

Bonus Issue and Share Capital

The Company has allotted and issued 237,449,317 and 261,194,254
new ordinary shares by way of bonus issue to the then qualified
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 29th July 2022 and
15th December 2022 respectively.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
36 to the financial statements.
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Convertible Bonds

On 10th January 2022, the Company issued US$250 million in aggregate
principal amount of 8.00% guaranteed convertible bonds due 2023 (the
“Bonds”) under specific mandate (the “Bond Issue”). The Bonds were
guaranteed by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The
Bonds would be convertible into ordinary shares of the Company upon
conversion. The Bonds had been listed on the Stock Exchange since
11th January 2022 (stock code of the Bonds: 04312), and matured on
6th January 2023 (the “Bonds Maturity Date”). On the Bonds Maturity
Date, the Company has redeemed the Bonds in full at aggregate principal
amount of US$250,000,000 together with accrued interest in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Bonds (the “Redemption”). The
Company considers that there would not be material impact on the
financial position of the Group as a result of the Redemption. Following
the Redemption, the Bonds were forthwith cancelled in full and there are
no outstanding Bonds in issue. The Company is discharged from all
obligations under and in respect of the Bonds.

The conversion price of the Bonds (the “Conversion Price”) was initially at
HK$20.16 per share. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bonds,
the Conversion Price is subject to the price reset mechanism and
adjustment for any adjustment event. On 20th June 2022 (which is a
price reset date), the Conversion Price was adjusted to HK$15.42. As a
result of the distributions made by the Company by way of final dividend
and bonus issue for the year ended 31st December 2021, the Conversion
Price was adjusted to HK$13.85 with effect from 9th July 2022. As a
result of the bonus issue for the six months ended 30th June 2022, the
Conversion Price was further adjusted to HK$12.59 with effect from 12th
November 2022. As the number of shares issuable upon conversion of
the Bonds will be determined by the net share settlement mechanism,
the number of shares issuable upon full conversion of the Bonds would
not exceed 126,425,097 shares with an aggregate nominal value of
HK$12,642,509.7.

The board (the “Board”) of Directors is of the view that the Bond Issue is
an appropriate means of raising additional capital since it would provide
the Company with additional funds for refinancing its existing
indebtedness, as well as supplementing the Group’s working capital for
general corporate purposes.
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Convertible Bonds (Continued)

The net proceeds from the Bond lIssue were approximately
US$247,500,000. As previously disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 17th December 2021 in relation to the Bond Issue, the Company
intended to utilise the net proceeds from the Bond Issue for the following
purposes: (i) approximately 95% for refinancing (a) the US$400 million
5.80% guaranteed senior notes due 2022 issued by Hopson Capital
International Group Co Ltd (“Hopson Capital”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 13th January 2021 (the “January 2021
Notes”) and (b) the US$100 million 5.80% guaranteed senior notes due
2022 issued by Hopson Capital on 4th February 2021 which were
consolidated to form a single series with the January 2021 Notes
(collectively, the “2021 Notes”); and (i) approximately 5% for general
working capital purposes. Based on the net proceeds of the Bond Issue (i.e.
US$247,500,000) and the maximum number of shares issuable upon full
conversion of the Bonds (i.e. 126,425,097 shares), the net price per
share is HK$15.27.

During the year, the Company has fully utilised the net proceeds from the
Bond Issue for the intended purposes as disclosed.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 37 and 48 to the financial statements respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda regarding the calculation of the
distributable reserves, the Company’s distributable reserves amounted to
HK$738,627,000 as at 31st December 2022 (2021: HK$1,367,166,000).

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$18,245,000 (2021: HK$171,589,000) to various charitable
organisations.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

Properties and Equipment and Investment
Properties

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to
the financial statements respectively.
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Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in Notes 1, 17 and 18 to the financial statements
respectively.

Borrowings and Debentures

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2022 are set out in Note
32 to the financial statements.

On 13th January 2021, Hopson Capital issued 5.80% guaranteed senior
notes due 2022 in an aggregate principal amount of US$400,000,000 (the
“Original US$400 Million Notes”). On 4th February 2021, Hopson Capital
issued additional 5.80% guaranteed senior notes due 2022 in an
aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000, which were
consolidated and formed a single series and ranked pari passu with the
Original US$400 Million Notes (collectively, the “January 2021 Notes”).
The due and punctual payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on, and all other amounts payable under, the January 2021
Notes were guaranteed by the Company (as parent guarantor) and
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company (as subsidiary
guarantors). The Directors believe that the issue of the January 2021
Notes would allow the Group to obtain financing from international
investors and improve its capital structure. The Group intended to use
the proceeds from the issue of the January 2021 Notes for refinancing
and general corporate purposes. The January 2021 Notes matured on
12th January 2022 (the “January 2021 Notes Maturity Date”) and Hopson
Capital has repaid the January 2021 Notes in full in aggregate principal
amount with accrued interest on the January 2021 Notes Maturity Date.

On 18th May 2021, the Company issued 7.00% guaranteed senior notes
due 2024 in an aggregate principal amount of US$300,000,000 (the “May
2021 Notes”). The due and punctual payment of the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on, and all other amounts payable under,
the May 2021 Notes were guaranteed by certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company (as subsidiary guarantors). The Directors
believe that the issue of the May 2021 Notes would allow the Group to
obtain financing from international investors and to improve its capital
structure. The Group intended to use the proceeds from the issue of the
May 2021 Notes for refinancing existing indebtedness.
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Borrowings and Debentures (Continued)

On 28th June 2021, the Company issued 6.80% guaranteed senior
notes due 2023 in an aggregate principal amount of US$200,000,000 (the
“Original US$200 Million Notes”). On 28th July 2021, the Company
issued additional 6.80% guaranteed senior notes in an aggregate
principal amount of US$37,500,000, which were consolidated and
formed a single series and ranked pari passu with the Original US$200
Million Notes (collectively, the “June 2021 Notes”). The due and punctual
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, and all other
amounts payable under, the June 2021 Notes were guaranteed by
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company (as subsidiary
guarantors). The Directors believe that the issue of the June 2021 Notes
would allow the Group to obtain financing from international investors
and to improve its capital structure. The Group intended to use the
proceeds from the issue of the June 2021 Notes for refinancing existing
indebtedness.

On 21st July 2021, Hopson Capital issued 5.25% guaranteed senior
notes due 2022 in an aggregate principal amount of HK$720,000,000 (the
“July 2021 Notes”). The due and punctual payment of the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on, and all other amounts payable under,
the July 2021 Notes were guaranteed by the Company (as parent
guarantor) and certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company (as
subsidiary guarantors). The Group intended to use the proceeds from the
issue of the July 2021 Notes for general corporate purposes. The July
2021 Notes matured on 20th July 2022 (the “July 2021 Notes Maturity
Date”). Hopson Capital has repaid the July 2021 Notes in full in aggregate
principal amount with accrued interest on the July 2021 Notes Maturity
Date (the “Repayment”). The Company considers that there will be no
material impact on the financial position of the Group as a result of the
Repayment. Following the Repayment, the July 2021 Notes were
cancelled, no July 2021 Notes were remained outstanding and the Group
does not have other offshore notes that are due to mature by the end of
2022.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on pages 318 to 320 of this annual
report.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

A. Framework Agreement

On 26th April 2018, the Company, Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai
Hong entered into a framework agreement (the “2018 Framework
Agreement”) setting out, among other things, the principal terms in
relation to the services to be provided/premises to be leased by Chu’s
Controlled Entities (where referred to in this section, comprising
companies which are associates of either Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu
Wai Hong) to the Group, as well as the services to be provided/premises
to be leased by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 15th June 2018,
the 2018 Framework Agreement, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the annual caps of the maximum aggregate annual
transaction amount for the transactions were approved by the
independent Shareholders.

On 2nd July 2019, the Company, Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai
Hong entered into the supplemental framework agreement (the
“Supplemental Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the scope of
services to be provided by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities under
the 2018 Framework Agreement was extended to include a new
transaction, namely the provision of construction work by the Group to
Chu’s Controlled Entities for their certain property development projects (the
“New Transaction”). Save and except for the extension of the scope of
services to be provided by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities under
the 2018 Framework Agreement pursuant to the Supplemental
Framework Agreement, all other terms and conditions under the 2018
Framework Agreement remained unchanged and continued to be in full
force and effect. In light of the extension in the scope of services to be
provided by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities pursuant to the
Supplemental Framework Agreement to include the New Transaction,
and the respective annual transaction amounts in respect of certain
transactions under the 2018 Framework Agreement (the “Revised
Transactions”) for each of the two financial years ended 31st December
2020 were expected to exceed the relevant maximum aggregate annual
transaction amounts (the “Annual Caps”) for the relevant periods, the
Directors proposed to (i) revise the Annual Caps in respect of each of the
Revised Transactions and (i) set the proposed Annual Caps for the New
Transaction for the two financial years ended 31st December 2020.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Framework Agreement (Continued)

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 29th August
2019, the Supplemental Framework Agreement, the New Transaction,
the Annual Caps for the New Transaction and the revised Annual Caps
for the Revised Transactions for the two financial years ended 31st
December 2020 were approved by the independent Shareholders.

The 2018 Framework Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Framework Agreement) expired on 31st December 2020. Since the
Group intended to continue certain recurring transactions contemplated
under the 2018 Framework Agreement and to enter into certain new
recurring transactions with Chu’s Controlled Entities, as well as
companies which are associates of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who is the
controlling shareholder of the Company (“Mr. M.Y. Chu’s Controlled
Entities”, together with Chu’s Controlled Entities, “Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities”) in the three financial years ending 31st December 2023, the
Company, Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong
entered into a framework agreement (the “2021 Framework Agreement”)
setting out, among other things, the principal terms in relation to the
services to be provided/premises to be leased by Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities to the Group, as well as the services to be provided/premises to
be leased by the Group to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities (the “2021-2023
Transactions”) on 30th April 2021. The 2021 Framework Agreement is for
a term commencing from the date when it becomes unconditional and
ending on 31st December 2023.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 29th June 2021,
the 2021 Framework Agreement, the 2021-2023 Transactions and the
maximum aggregate annual transaction amount for the 2021-2023
Transactions for each of the three financial years ending 31st December
2023 were approved by the independent Shareholders.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Framework Agreement (Continued)

Mr. Chu Mang Yee is the controlling shareholder of the Company. Both
Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong are the sons of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee and the brothers of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board, the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang Yee and the sister
of Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong). In addition, Mr. Chu Yat
Hong also indirectly owned approximately 18.31% of the shares of the
Company. Accordingly, each of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Mr. Chu Yat Hong
and Mr. Chu Wai Hong is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and the 2021 Framework Agreement and the 2021-2023
Transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such
continuing connected transactions are set out as follows:

2021-2023 Transactions under the 2021 Framework Agreement

(i) Construction

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, the Group has
appointed Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to carry out construction
works for certain property development projects of the Group. The
construction fees payable by the Group to Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities and the other terms for this transaction were determined by the
parties with reference to (i) the market prices offered by independent third
parties for providing similar services and (i) the latest stipulated standards
and guidelines prescribed by Construction Committee of the region
where the project is located. During the year ended 31st December
2022, total construction fees paid/payable by the Group to Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately HK$499,349,000 (2021:
HK$815,161,000).

(i)  Consultancy service on cost control for construction work

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, the Group has
appointed Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to provide the Group with
cost control services for its construction work including the preparation of
project settlement based on completion data such as built drawings, and
the issuance of completion accounts. The fees payable by the Group to
Chu Family’s Controlled Entities and other terms for this transaction were
determined with reference to (i) the market prices offered by independent
third parties for providing similar services and (i) the standards and
guidelines prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of where
the project is located. During the year ended 31st December 2022, fees
for consultancy service on cost control for construction work paid/
payable by the Group to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities amounted to
approximately HK$27,526,000 (2021: HK$5,993,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Framework Agreement (Continued)

2021-2023 Transactions under the 2021 Framework Agreement
(Continued)

(i)  Office lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities have leased certain premises located in Guangzhou, Shanghai
and Shenzhen to the Group for office use. The rent payable by the Group
to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities and the other terms were determined
with reference to the prevailing market rents paid by lessees who are
independent third parties for leasing similar premises located in nearby
areas, or leasing premises of the same grading. During the year ended
31st December 2022, rental paid/payable by the Group to Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately HK$14,644,000 (2021:
HK$15,309,000).

(iv) Information technology related services and enterprise resource
planning (“ERP”) system services

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, the Group has
appointed Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to provide information
technology related services to the Group, including the planning,
consulting, development, implementing, marketing and maintaining of the
Group’s information technology systems for the management of smart
offices, labour, operations, financing and the property industry. The
Group has also appointed Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to provide
ERP system services to the Group, including establishing and maintaining
of ERP systems. The fees payable by the Group to Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities and the other terms for this transaction were
determined by the parties with reference to the market prices offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services. During the year
ended 31st December 2022, information technology related services and
ERP system services fees paid/payable by the Group to Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately HK$65,507,000 (2021:
HK$94,489,000).

(v)  Marketing services

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, the Group has
appointed Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to provide marketing services
to the Group, including marketing services in relation to the expansion of
online and offline customers of property projects of the Group, the
expansion of resources required by the property projects of the Group,
the set-up of offine marketing channels, and the suggestion of
operational strategies with respect to sales agents, the media and system
platforms. The fees payable by the Group to Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities and the other terms for this transaction were determined with
reference to the market rate, including the market rates for property
projects located in first tier cities, second and third tier cities and the
outer regions, of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). During the year
ended 31st December 2022, the fees paid/payable by the Group to Chu
Family’s Controlled Entities for provision of marketing services amounted
to approximately HK$84,743,000 (2021: HK$409,637,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Framework Agreement (Continued)

2021-2023 Transactions under the 2021 Framework Agreement
(Continued)

(vi  Management of a property development project

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, the Group has
appointed Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to provide services to the
Group in relation to the management of a property development project
of the Group, involving the urban renewal of the Lingshan village, a village
located in Guangzhou. The management services provided by Chu
Family’s Controlled Entities to the Group include but are not limited to
services in relation to the management of the division of labour, project
teams, human resources, financial matters, operational matters, and
settlement of costs. Chu Family’s Controlled Entities are also responsible
for liaising with current residents of Lingshan village, and managing the
payment of their relocation compensation. The fees payable by the Group
to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities and the other terms for this transaction
were determined with reference to the market price offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services. During the year
ended 31st December 2022, there was no property development project
management fees paid/payable by the Group to Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities (2021: Nil).

(vi)  Building design

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities have appointed the Group to provide building design services for
certain property development projects of Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
in regions including Xian, Beijing, Guangzhou, Hebei, Shanghai, Chengdu
and Tianjin. The fees payable by Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to the
Group and the other terms for this transaction were determined by the
parties with reference to (i) the market prices offered by independent third
parties for providing similar design services and (i) the latest standards
and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local authority on the fees for
providing similar services. During the year ended 31st December 2022,
the fees received/receivable by the Group from Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities for provision of building design service amounted to
approximately HK$197,527,000 (2021: HK$85,829,000).
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Part VIII: Report of the Directors (Continued) 2 J\ £ %

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Framework Agreement (Continued)

2021-2023 Transactions under the 2021 Framework Agreement
(Continued)

(viii)
For the three years ending 31st December 2023, Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities have appointed the Group to manage vacant properties of
property development projects of Chu Family’s Controlled Entities,
including the provision of services in relation to the key holding, ongoing
maintenance and regular inspection of such vacant properties. The fees
payable by Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other
terms for this transaction were determined by the parties with reference
to the market prices offered by independent third parties for providing
similar services in regions including the Guangdong province, Zhejiang
province, Tianjin, Beijing and Shanghai. During the year ended 31st
December 2022, the fees received/receivable by the Group from Chu
Family’s Controlled Entities for provision of vacant property management
service amounted to approximately HK$65,158,000 (2021:
HK$67,413,000).

Management of vacant properties

(ix) Office lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, the Group has leased
certain premises located in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Beijing to Chu
Family’s Controlled Entities for use as offices. The rent payable by Chu
Family’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other terms for this
transaction were determined with reference to the market rents charged
by independent third parties for leasing out similar types of properties.
During the year ended 31st December 2022, the rent received/receivable
by the Group from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities for office lease
amounted to approximately HK$28,930,000 (2021: HK$32,683,000).

(x)  Operational and building management

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities have appointed the Group to provide operational and building
management services for certain property development projects of Chu
Family’'s Controlled Entities, including pre-development management,
operations management, and information technology systems
management. Such pre-development, operations and information
technology systems management services cover services such as the
oversight of applications for the necessary permits and authorisations
from the relevant governmental agencies, and overall day-to-day
management of the property development projects. The services fee
payable by Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other
terms for this transaction were determined by the parties with reference
to the pricing standards of independent third parties for providing similar
services in the industry. During the year ended 31st December 2022, the
fees received/receivable by the Group from Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities for provision of operational and building management service
amounted to approximately HK$192,940,000 (2021: HK$251,228,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Framework Agreement (Continued)

2021-2023 Transactions under the 2021 Framework Agreement
(Continued)

(xiy  Construction

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities have appointed the Group to provide construction services for
certain property development projects of Chu Family’s Controlled Entities.
The construction fees payable by Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to the
Group and the other terms for this transaction were determined by the
parties with reference to (i) the market prices offered by independent third
parties for providing similar services and (i) the latest stipulated standards
and guidelines prescribed by Construction Committee of the region
where the projects are located. During the year ended 31st December
2022, the construction fees received/receivable by the Group from Chu
Family’s Controlled Entities amounted to approximately HK$61,383,000
(2021: HK$300,499,000).

(xii) Refurbishments and renovations

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities have appointed the Group to refurbish and renovate buildings
and facilities of property development projects of Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities, in preparation for the sale of such buildings and facilities. The
fees payable by Chu Family’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the
other terms for this transaction were determined by the parties with
reference to the pricing standards of independent third parties for
providing similar services in the industry. During the year ended 31st
December 2022, there was no refurbishments and renovations fees
received/receivable by the Group from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
(2021: HK$7,670,000).

(xiii) Smart technology services

For the three years ending 31st December 2023, Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities have appointed the Group to provide smart technology services
to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities, including smart supervision services (for
example, services in relation to setting up CCTV surveillance systems),
preliminary management services through the use of existing centralised
smart supervisory systems, smart management consultancy services for
vacant properties, and the consultation services in relation to the
integration of online and offline operations for businesses and the
community (for example, the development of software or mobile
applications for shopping malls). The fees payable by Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities to the Group and the other terms for this transaction
were determined by the parties with reference to the pricing standards of
independent third parties for providing similar services in the industry.
During the year ended 31st December 2022, the fees received/receivable
by the Group from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities amounted to
approximately HK$79,175,000 (2021: HK$609,178,000).
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Part VIII: Report of the Directors (Continued) 5 \E% : EFSHE (B) | I

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Framework Agreement (Continued)

2021-2023 Transactions under the 2021 Framework Agreement
(Continued)

For further details about the 2021 Framework Agreement and the 2021-
2023 Transactions, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 30th April 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 9th June
2021.

B. Confirmation from the Independent Non-executive
Directors and Auditor

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

(i) a. the above transactions have been conducted between the
parties on normal commercial terms or better, which are, on
terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;

b.  the above transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of the business of the Group;

C. the above transactions have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the 2021 Framework Agreement on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole;

(i) in respect of the 2021 Framework Agreement, during the year
ended 31st December 2022,

a. construction fees paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities amounted to approximately HK$499,349,000 (2021:
HK$815,161,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap
on construction fees paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30th April 2021 (the
“2021 Announcement”);

b. fees for consultancy service on cost control for construction
work paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
amounted to approximately HK$27,526,000 (2021:
HK$5,993,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap on
fees for consultancy service on cost control for construction
work paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021
Announcement;

c. rental paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities for
lease of offices amounted to approximately HK$14,644,000
(2021: HK$15,309,000), which has not exceeded the annual
cap on rental paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
for lease of offices in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the 2021 Announcement;
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

B.

(i)

82

Part VIII: Report of the Directors (Continued) £ \Z 5 : EE LR E (&)

Confirmation from the Independent Non-executive B.

Directors and Auditor (Continued)

in respect of the 2021 Framework Agreement, during the year (i)
ended 31st December 2022, (Continued)

d. information technology related services and ERP system
services fees paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
amounted to approximately HK$65,507,000 (2021:
HK$94,489,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap
on information technology related services and ERP system
services fees paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021
Announcement;

e. marketing services fees paid/payable to Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$84,743,000 (2021: HK$409,637,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on marketing services fees paid/
payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in respect of the
year concerned as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement;

f. there was no fees paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities for management of a property development project
(2021: Nil), which have not exceeded the annual cap on fees
paid/payable to Chu Family’s Controlled Entities for
management of a property development project in respect of
the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement;

g. building design fees received/receivable from Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$197,527,000 (2021: HK$85,829,000) which have not
exceeded the annual cap on building design fees received/
receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in respect of
the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement;

h.  fees received/receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
for management of vacant properties amounted to
approximately HK$65,158,000 (2021: HK$67,413,000),
which have not exceeded the annual cap on the management
fees received/receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021
Announcement;

rental received/receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled
Entities for lease of offices amounted to approximately
HK$28,930,000 (2021: HK$32,683,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on rental received/receivable from
Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement;
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Part VIII: Report of the Directors (Continued) 5 \E% : EFSHE (B) | I

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

B. Confirmation from the Independent Non-executive
Directors and Auditor (Continued)

(i) in respect of the 2021 Framework Agreement, during the year
ended 31st December 2022, (Continued)

j. operational and building management services fees received/
receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities amounted to
approximately HK$192,940,000 (2021: HK$251,228,000),
which have not exceeded the annual cap on operational and
building management service fees received/receivable from
Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement;

k.  construction fees received/receivable from Chu Family’s
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$61,383,000 (2021: HK$300,499,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on construction fees received/
receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in respect of
the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement.

there was no refurbishments and renovations services fees
received/receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities
(2021: HK$7,670,000), which have not exceeded the annual
cap on refurbishments and renovations services fees
received/receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021
Announcement; and

m.  smart technology services fees received/receivable from Chu
Family’s Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$79,175,000 (2021: HK$609,178,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on smart technology services fees
received/receivable from Chu Family’s Controlled Entities in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the 2021
Announcement.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits of Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rules 14A.56. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Connected Transaction

Acquisition of 100% of Equity Interest of a PRC Company
which owns a piece of land in Shanghai, the PRC

On 3rd August 2022, (i) Shanghai Hebo Properties Consultancy
Company Limited* (E/8&BEHMERMABRAFT), a company
established in PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Purchaser”); (i) Shanghai Zhujiang Investment Group Company Limited*
(EBITIREEB AR AR, a company established in PRC (the
“Vendor”); and (i) Shanghai Bozheng Properties Company Limited* (/&
EEEE AR AT, a company established in PRC and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Vendor (the “Target Company”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA”) whereby the Vendor agreed to sell, and
the Purchaser agreed to purchase, 100% of the equity interest in the
Target Company (the “Target Equity”) which owns the piece and parcel
of land numbered 234A-01 of No. 69, Fuxing East Road ({8 5 &), Yu
Yuan Jie Dao (& & #738), Huangpu District (&2#5[%), Shanghai (the “Target
Land”), at the cash consideration of RMB790,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).
The Target Land shall be used for residential purpose solely. The change
of registration of the ownership of the Target Equity from the Vendor to
the Purchaser at the relevant PRC governmental department is subject to
the fulflment (or waiver, if applicable) of the conditions precedent
provided under the SPA, including but not limited to the release of the
Target Equity from an existing mortgage having been obtained and the
Purchaser being satisfied with the results of the due diligence in respect
of the Target Company. The Vendor is ultimately controlled by Mr. Chu
Wai Hong. Mr. Chu Wai Hong is the elder brother of Ms. Chu Kut Yung,
the chairperson of the Board and an executive Director, who is a
connected person of the Company. As such, Mr. Chu Wai Hong is an
associate of Ms. Chu Kut Yung and therefore a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the Vendor, being a company ultimately
controlled by Mr. Chu Wai Hong, is also a connected person of the
Company. As the Target Company is a subsidiary of the Vendor, it is an
associate of the Vendor and therefore also a connected person of the
Company. The Acquisition did not constitute a notifiable transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, however it
constituted a non-exempt connected transaction of the Company which
is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval) requirement
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2)(@) of the Listing Rules. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3rd August
2022.
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Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31st December 2022 are set out in Note 43 to the
financial statements. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, namely transactions under the 2021
Framework Agreement, and the SPA (which are subject to disclosure
and/or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements). Save for the
aforementioned, other related party transactions as set out in Note 43 to
the financial statements did not constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Fan (Co-president)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Xie Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Bao Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
Mr. Ching Yu Lung
Mr. Ip Wai Lun, William

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Amended
and Restated Bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”).

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Xie Bao Xin, Mr.
Bao Wenge and Mr. Ip Wai Lun, William will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors’
Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tan Leng Cheng,
Aaron, Mr. Ching Yu Lung and Mr. Ip Wai Lun, Wiliam and considers
them to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 43 to the financial statements and the sections
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Connected
Transaction” of this annual report above, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates,
joint ventures or holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which any of the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31st December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Continued)

Interests in shares of the Company

RRBRGFERE

Number of shares of the Company

EATRIRMGEE
Approximate
percentage
of shares of
Personal Family Corporate Other the Company
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total in issue
HE#T
R 17 49
=i BAERZ RKEER AEERE  HttEz &5 Aok
Mr. Au Wai Kin (a) ER{E 2k & () — — 45,919,500* — 45,919,500* 1.60%
Ms. Chu Kut Yung (b) “KfE#aZ +(b) 1,331,000* - 5,342,634* - 6,673,634* 0.23%
Notes: st -

a. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 45,919,500 shares of the Company through Yield Plentiful
Incorporated, a company wholly-owned and controlled by him.

b. Ms. Chu Kut Yung held 5,342,634 shares of the Company through Ju Rong
Investment Holdings Limited, a company wholly-owned by her.

* Long position in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2022, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
holding company or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and no
Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe for equity or
debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2022, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BEERTHAZARKRSG  HER®
LESHBEEZEZRXRE @

FERR

B EXTEFTRITHEHN KD BEKG &
EFEHBEZED AR —EENREZIN
RZTE-—F+-_A=+—H BAQFTRE
BAEMEEROEI6IKETE 2B Z L MAT
L THEEBRAARBRGHEERIEES
MEEIEP EXVEFE2 R FE3D EAB AR T
WEZERNIAR

Approximate
percentage of

Capacity and Number of shares of the
Name of Shareholders nature of interests issued shares  Company in issue
2BTRM HEBRITRAG
IR & B BORERME A BMABED
Sounda Properties Limited (“Sounda”) (Note (i) Beneficial owner 1,544,444,229* 53.75%
MEBEARARIED () ERHEA
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Note (i) Interest of controlled corporation 1,544,444,229* 538.75%
KA A () S NER £
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”) (Note (i) Beneficial owner 526,073,256* 18.31%
RERERRRAB(ESED (7)) ERHEA
TheBest Investments Limited (“TheBest”) (Note (i) Interest of controlled corporation 526,073,256* 18.31%
TheBest Investments Limited ([ TheBest ) (3% (i) XA E
Clear Build Investments Limited (“Clear Build”) (Note (i)  Interest of controlled corporation 526,073,256* 18.31%
Clear Build Investments Limited ([ Clear Build ) (57 (i)) =¥ kB # 25
Mr. Chu Yat Hong (Note (i) Interest of controlled corporation 526,073,256* 18.31%
K — M5 & (3 (i) S NE £
HSBC Holdings plc (Note (i) Interest of controlled corporation 38,105,287~ 1.33%
E 8 12 I A IR~ 7 (72 (i) REAE RS 38,142,085" 1.33%
Trustee 154,843,129* 5.39%
ZFEA
Custodian (other than an exempt 67,496" 0.002%
custodian interest)
AEARBETEE AERIN 67,496" 0.002%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

i 1,544,444,229 shares (Long position) were held by Sounda which is wholly owned by
Mr. Chu Mang Yee. Mr. Chu Mang Yee was deemed to be interested in 1,544,444,229
shares under the SFO.

ii. 526,073,256 shares (Long position) were held by Farrich which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TheBest. The entire issued share capital of TheBest is held by Clear Build
which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Yat Hong. Each of TheBest, Clear Build and
Mr. Chu Yat Hong was deemed to be interested in 526,073,256 shares under the
SFO.

. 2,663,313 shares (Long position) and 109,142 shares (Short position) were held by
HSBC Bank plc which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc;
190,352,599 shares (Long position) and 38,100,439 shares (Short position) were held
by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HSBC Holdings plc. HSBC Bank plc, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and HSBC Asia Holdings Limited are the controlled corporations
of HSBC Holdings plc and thus HSBC Holdings plc was deemed to be interested in
193,015,912 shares (Long position) and 38,209,581 shares (Short position). Out of
198,015,912 shares (Long position), 154,843,129 shares (Long position) were listed
derivatives — convertible instruments and 391,480 shares (Long position) were
unlisted derivatives — cash settled. Out of 38,209,581 shares (Short position), 63,611
shares (Short position) were unlisted derivatives — cash settled.

Long position in the shares of the Company

Short position in the shares of the Company

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who, as at 31st December 2022, had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. However,
the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange loss as a
result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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Employees

As at 31st December 2022, the Group, excluding its associates and joint
ventures, employed a total of 10,482 (2021: 11,775) staff, the majority of
which were employed in Mainland China. Employees’ costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$2,399 million for the year ended
31st December 2022 (2021: HK$2,263 million).

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance,
market practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract,
motivate and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management comprises salaries, bonuses,
discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director’'s fee and fee for
representation on board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 8 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Redemption and Sale of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Hopson Capital has repaid the 2021 Notes (which were listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)) in full in
aggregate principal amount with accrued interest on 12th January 2022,
being the maturity date of the 2021 Notes. The 2021 Notes have been
cancelled and delisted from the SGX-ST accordingly.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2022.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 93 to 119 of this annual report.
Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the

Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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Permitted Indemnity

The Bye-laws provide that the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

A directors’ liability insurance is in place to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the
Directors.

Environmental Policy

For the environmental policy of the Group, please refer to “Sustainability
Report” on pages 120 to 168 of this annual report.

Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

For the relationships with employees, suppliers and customers of the
Group, please refer to “Sustainability Report” on pages 120 to 168 of this
annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a property developer in China, the Group is subject to various national
and local laws and regulations relating to, among others, land acquisition,
development of real estate projects, real estate transfer and sale, real
estate financing, construction safety and environmental protection. On
the listed company level, the Group is also subject to the Listing Rules,
the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the SFO
and/or the laws, rules and regulations of the jurisdictions where the
Group companies are incorporated. The Company seeks to ensure
compliance with these requirements through various measures such as
internal controls, trainings and oversight of various business units at
different levels of the Group. The Group highly values the importance of
ensuring compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
in PRC and in Hong Kong by the Group that have significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

For details regarding the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to
“Sustainability Report” on pages 120 to 168 of this annual report.
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Changes in Information of Directors and
Chief Executives

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes in information
of Directors/chief executives subsequent to the publication of the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30th June 2022 are set

Part VIII: Report of the Directors (Continued) 2 )\ Zf
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out below:

Name of Directors

Exns

Details of Changes

BEFE

Ms. Chu Kut Yung Pursuant to a renewal letter entered into between the Company and Ms. Chu Kut Yung in the
second half of 2022, Ms. Chu Kut Yung’s annual remuneration (including housing and work-
related allowances) has been increased from HK$2,500,000 to RMB5,000,000 with effect from
1st April 2022.

BERAABERAEBRZIR S _FTH¥FIL2BNR KEBRZTOHEFEH (B
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Rzt

Mr. Ching Yu Lung Elected as an independent non-executive director of Luzhou Bank Co., Ltd. (listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with stock code: 1983) on 20th September 2022 and his
qualification as independent non-executive director was subsequently approved by the Sichuan
Office of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission on 13th March 2023.
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Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 27th January 2022. Ernst & Young (“EY”) has
been appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 22nd
February 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of PwC.
EY has been re-appointed as the auditor of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 10th June 2022. A resolution for the re-
appointment of EY as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting in 2023.

For further details regarding the change of auditor of the Company,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 27th January
2022 and 28th January 2022, respectively and the circular of the
Company dated 28th January 2022.

On behalf of the Board

CHU KUT YUNG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2023
For identification purposes only
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Part IX: Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance Shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
that is applicable to the corporate governance report for the year ended
31st December 2022 (“CG Code”), except for the code provision F.2.2
as described below.

Code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the
Board did not attend the annual general meeting for the year 2022 (the
“2022 AGM”) due to her other business commitment. Mr. Xie Bao Xin, an
executive Director who chaired the 2022 AGM, together with other
Directors who attended the 2022 AGM were available to answer
questions at the meeting to ensure effective communication with the
Shareholders. Despite her absence at the 2022 AGM, the Chairman of
the Board had reviewed all relevant documents of the 2022 AGM before
the meeting, and all records and minutes of the 2022 AGM were
circulated to her after the meeting for her information.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31st December 2022.

Business Model and Strategy

In view of the continuous macro-control measures and the ever-changing
market conditions in the PRC, the Group had made reasonable planning
in its business development model in line with its overall strategic
development premise, in order to keep up with the market trend and
deliver fruitful reward to the Shareholders in a persistent manner.

The Group has implemented scientific management and arrangement in
respect of the residential properties for meeting regular demand, mid-end
residential properties for customers who seek to improve living
environment and high-end deluxe residential properties, and created a
business development model for maintaining profitability in high-end
residential properties, guaranteeing cash flow in residential properties for
meeting improvement demand and regular demand, and generating
stable and continuous cash flow through investing in investment
properties such as commercial properties (investment real estate). On the
basis of the coordinated development of the properties for sale and for
investment, the Group will also further integrate resources and acquire
more competitive strengths through diversified and professional
development strategies.
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Business Model and Strategy (Continued)

It is expected that the growth in the sales of diversified residential
properties and in the cash flow of investment properties will become the
main profit drivers of the Company in the future.

For the strategic development direction of the Group, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 55 of this annual report.

Board of Directors

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised the following five executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Fan (Co-president)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Xie Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Bao Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
Mr. Ching Yu Lung
Mr. Ip Wai Lun, William

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors’ Profile” on pages 56 to 59 of this annual report, which
demonstrate a balance of core competence, experience and
qualifications having regard to the business of the Group. Pursuant to the
Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and their re-
election is subject to a vote of Shareholders at the annual general
meeting. The Board believes that the independent non-executive
Directors, with diversified backgrounds and industry skills, shall offer
experience, make independent judgement and provide advice on issues
relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and the overall
management of the Company to ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and
determines the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The
Board also monitors and controls operating and financial performance in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have
access to timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make
further enquires when necessary. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice on issues relating to the Group’s business at the
Group’s expenses. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal actions against its Directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

During the year, there are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess the
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion. With their specific expertise in various sectors
(including, among other things, experience in corporate, investment
banking capital markets, auditing, corporate finance and accounting), the
independent non-executive Directors can bring independent and
objective views to the Board, give constructive advice and scrutinize the
performance of the Company.

Of the three independent non-executive Directors, at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Six Board committees, namely the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Option Shares Committee, Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee and Finance
Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the execution and daily
operations of the Group’s business to the management.
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Board Meetings/General Meetings

The Board met nine times in total during the year ended 31st December
2022 at which the Directors considered and approved significant matters
including, among other things, interim and final results of the Group,
statutory financial reports and natifiable transactions undertaken by the
Group.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors are as follows:
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEERE EERH
Executive Directors BTES
Chu Kut Yung K 0/9
Zhang Fan R 0/9
Au Wai Kin B (8 32 0/9
Xie Bao Xin WEE 9/9
Bao Wenge 8 A% 0/9
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUKHITES
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREE)E 9/9
Ching Yu Lung fRange 9/9
Ip Wai Lun, William EEMm 9/9

Seventeen additional Board meetings were held during the year ended
31st December 2022 for the purposes of approving some operational
matters such as the provision of guarantees by the Company in respect
of bank loans granted to the Company’s subsidiaries. Those Board
meetings related to operational matters normally would not require the
attendance of the Independent non-executive Directors.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors are as follows:
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Ching Yu Lung Range

Ip Wai Lun, William EEMm

417
3/17
16/17
17/17
417

0117
o017
017

96  Hopson Development Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022



Part IX: Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 25 j1 & 5

Board Meetings/General Meetings (Continued)

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive Directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are available for inspection
by all Directors.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Company held four
general meetings. The attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings is set out below:
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEERE EERE
Executive Directors BTES
Chu Kut Yung KER 0/4
Zhang Fan RN 0/4
Au Wai Kin EeEgE 0/4
Xie Bao Xin HEE 4/4
Bao Wenge 0 315 0/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIkHTES
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREE)E 2/4
Ching Yu Lung TR angEe 3/4
Ip Wai Lun, William EEMm 4/4

Non-Executive Directors

Each of Mr. Ching Yu Lung and Mr. Ip Wai Lun, William is appointed for a
3-year term which is subject to renewal. Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron is
not appointed for a specific term. Having said that, the Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years in accordance
with the Bye-laws.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chu Kut Yung, who was appointed as the Chairman of the Board
with effect from 10th January 2020, is responsible for managing and
providing leadership to the Board in terms of formulating overall
strategies, business directions and policies of the Company. The
Chairman is also responsible for overseeing effective functions of the
Board, application of good corporate governance practices and
procedures, and encourages the Directors to make full and active
contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the support of the executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and receive complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

The daily operation and management of the Company is monitored by
the executive Directors and the senior management. Following the
resignation of Mr. Xi Ronggui as an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1st November 2020,
no Chief Executive Officer was appointed. Mr. Zhang Fan, who has been
the co-president of the Group since January 2020 and was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company with effect from 1st November
2020, is mainly responsible for the Group’s overall investment and
operational management and the formulation of the Group’s development
strategies. Further, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company is primarily
responsible for ensuring that the funding requirements of the business
were met and closely monitoring the operating and financial results
against plans and budgets, taking remedial action when necessary and
advising the Board of any significant developments and issues. The
Board is of the view that the Company satisfies the requirement for
separation of responsibilities as required under code provision C.2 of the
CG Code.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Ms. Chu Kut Yung; and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Messrs. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron, Ching Yu Lung and Mr. Ip Wai
Lun, William. The Nomination Committee is responsible for nomination
and selection of Directors. Proposed new Directors are selected based
on skills and experience that will enable them to make positive
contributions to the Board. The Nomination Committee is currently
chaired by Ms. Chu Kut Yung and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions of the Nomination Committee
include, among other things:

° to formulate the nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) for the Board’s consideration and implement the Board’s
approved Nomination Policy;

° to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, culture, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nomination for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular chairman and chief executive; and

° to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board
Diversity Policy”), as appropriate, and review the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. Individual
attendance of the members is set out below:

FRN REZEEETT—ReZ-@ARNKE
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEERE EERE
Chu Kut Yung KR 0/1
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREE)E A
Ching Yu Lung 2 ange 1/1
Ip Wai Lun, William 2B 1/1

During the year, the Nomination Committee had performed the following
works:

° implemented the Board’s approved Nomination Policy;
° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
° reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

° evaluated the performance and contribution of the retiring Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the three independent non-
executive Directors (namely, Messrs. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron, Ching Yu
Lung and Mr. Ip Wai Lun, Wiliam) and is currently chaired by Mr. Tan
Leng Cheng, Aaron. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
Directors and senior management of the highest calibre and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee has specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities and are posted on the Company’s website. The principal
functions of the Remuneration Committee include, among other things:

° to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

° to establish guidelines for the recruitment of the chief executive and
senior management;

° to recommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for
the remuneration of Directors (including non-executive Directors
and the chief executive) and senior management;

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

° to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
including benefits-in-kind, pension rights and compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

° to review and approve the compensation arrangements in
connection with dismissal or removal for misconduct of Directors
and senior management;

° to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

° to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment;

° to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules;

° to determine the criteria for assessing employee performance;

° to consider the annual performance bonus for executive Directors,
senior management, and the general staff, having regard to their
achievements against the performance criteria and by reference to
market norms, and make recommendations to the Board;

° to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

° to conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Bye-Laws of the Company or imposed by legislation and the Listing
Rules.

The Remuneration Committee has been delegated with the function of
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management and has been provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Two meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee during the year
to assess the performance of Directors and review and approve the
remuneration of Directors. Individual attendance of the members is set
out below:
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FNZEENFARTMAEINTHESEE
BURRA R EEEZ2HM - BHIKEHE
EMBREINMT

Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEBRRE EERY

Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREES
Ching Yu Lung TRange
lp Wai Lun, William EE MW

2/2
2/2
2/2

No Director was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising executive
Directors) of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2022 by
band is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
M AR Bl (B )

BEEESRETRAS 2 HH -
AAFERERE BENTERRE T
—E+ A=+ B EE 2 HEEE RS
T :

Number of individuals

AE

$0 to $1,000,000

$1,000,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000
$3,000,001 to $4,000,000
$4,000,001 to $5,000,000
$5,000,001 to $6,000,000
$6,000,001 to $7,000,000
$8,000,001 to $9,000,000

078 7T = 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 7 7T Z 2,000,000 JT
2,000,001 7% 7T 2 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 % 7t = 4,000,000 7T
4,000,001 7T = 5,000,0007% 7T
5,000,001 /% 7t & 6,000,000 7% 7T
6,000,001 7% 7T = 7,000,000 JT
8,000,001 7% 7T 2 9,000,000 7T

Further details of the executive Directors’ remuneration for the year
ended 31st December 2022 are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial
statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the fees payable to EY for audit and audit related
services amounted to RMB12,000,000 (2021: HK$7,685,000 paid to
PwC, the Company’s former auditor who resigned with effect from 27th
January 2022) and RMB350,000 (2021: HK$6,392,000 paid to PwC, the
Company’s former auditor who resigned with effect from 27th January
2022) was paid for non-audit services which comprised tax compliance
and consulting services.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors (namely, Messrs. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron, Ching Yu Lung and
Mr. Ip Wai Lun, Wiliam) and it is currently chaired by Mr. Tan Leng
Cheng, Aaron. The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit
Committee have sufficient accounting and financial management
expertise or experience to discharge their duties. However, the Audit
Committee is authorised to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice if it considers necessary and has been provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties. The Audit Committee has
written terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website.
The principal functions of the Audit Committee include, among other
things:

° to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

° to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards, the Audit Committee should discuss
with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations before the audit commences;

° to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

° to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;

° to ensure the management has fulffiled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

° to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated
with adequate resources and is effective; and

° to review the external auditor's management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

In year 2022, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, business
management and preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With
respect to the results of the Company for the year ended 31st December
2021, the Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and
the external auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
control, risk management, financial reporting matters and effectiveness of
internal audit function. This review by the Audit Committee included an
appraisal of the integrity of the financial statements and the annual report
of the Company. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Group’s interim
results for the six months ended 30th June 2022 as well as the external
auditor’s remuneration. Further, the Audit Committee considered matters
relating to the proposed appointment of EY as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of PwC.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment or resignation of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to ExZE @R G A FEL = r‘j EECERHE
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2022, there were two T {E - AR EHEESR T - FEFE1TMW
Audit Committee meetings. Individual attendance of the members is set A EBIZZE & &% o E7 EX =] Hj FeZNBR
out below: HH
Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held
HEEBRE B XK
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREES 2/2
Ching Yu Lung FRunEE 2/2
Ip Wai Lun, William B3 2/2
Board Committees EEZET
In addition to the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and RBRIBEZREZE S - HFHEESNEZEZTE S H -
Audit Committee, four other Board Committees have been established to 75 2 % 37 5 4P 1. ExeLEeRPhESTSY
assist the Board in the execution of its duties. TTHEAS

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee was
established on 4th October 2005. It presently comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors (namely, Messrs. Tan Leng Cheng,
Aaron, Ching Yu Lung and Mr. Ip Wai Lun, William) and is chaired by Mr.
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron. The primary function of the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee is to review all
continuing connected transactions and related party transactions to
ensure that they are conducted on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and to recommend
to the Board corrective measures in such transactions if needed.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2022, one meeting was held by
the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee.
Individual attendance of the members is set out below:

BEEZE=Zm)
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()

K%E*§::$+*H:+*E¢$FW '
@X%/Eﬁ@}\ix%éi FRITT—RE
fEARKBELFEEZNBEREINIMT

Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEBAB EBRY

Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BEIE
Ching Yu Lung 2ange
Ip Wai Lun, William ZEm

1/1
1/1
11

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November 2005
and comprises any two executive Directors. Its primary function is to deal
with the allotment and issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise
of options granted or to be granted under the Company’s share option
scheme.

No meeting was held by the Option Shares Committee during the year
2022.

(3) Finance Committee

The Finance Committee was established on 21st December 2018 upon
passing of the relevant Board resolutions and comprises any three
executive Directors. Its primary function is to approve and deal with debt
financing for the Group’s matters which are within the normal and
ordinary course of business and do not require approval by the
Shareholders in general meetings. Such debt financing include borrowing
or raising any money by and for the Company or any of its subsidiaries in
its normal and ordinary course of business, or securing by guarantee the
payment of money on the debt obligations or the performance or
fulfilment of any obligation of any subsidiary of the Company under any
loan agreement, finance document or contract for raising money entered
into by such subsidiary in its normal and ordinary course of business;
provided that the power and authority of the Finance Committee shall not
be extended to:

i. matters outside the normal and ordinary course of business of the
Company or its relevant subsidiary;

ii. any decision to change the general character or nature of the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a group;

ii. matters relating to any notifiable transaction or connected
transaction within the meaning of the Listing Rules;

iv.  matters which, according to the Listing Rules, require approval at a
full Board meeting or by the independent non-executive Directors;
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Board Committees (Continued)

(3) Finance Committee (Continued)

V. matters which, according to the Listing Rules or the Bye-laws of
the Company, require approval by the Shareholders in general
meeting; or

vi.  matters involving a conflict of interest for any Director.

The Finance Committee has specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. A chairman shall be nominated
for each Finance Committee meeting among the three committee
members. Meetings of the Finance Committee shall be held as and when
the Finance Committee considers necessary.

No meeting was held by the Finance Committee during the year 2022.

Company Secretary

Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara of MinterEllison LLP, an external service
provider, has resigned as the Company Secretary with effect from 4th
July 2022 and Mr. Cheung Man Hoi has been appointed as the Company
Secretary to replace Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara with effect from 4th July
2022.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Ms. Mok Wai Kun,
Barbara and Mr. Cheung Man Hoi has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31st December 2022.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function and a summary of work on corporate governance
during the year is set out below:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance, legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted the Nomination Policy as approved
by the Board which aims at setting out the procedures and criteria for the
nomination of a candidate for directorship in the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to the
Board for it to consider and make recommendations to the Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings of the Company or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies or appoint as an addition to the
Board. The chairman of the Nomination Committee will, upon his own
motion or receipt of a nomination from a Board member (as the case
may be), convene a meeting of the Nomination Committee or circulate a
resolution in writing to the members of the Nomination Committee to
consider the same in accordance with its terms of reference. The
Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate in
evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as conducting interviews,
background checks, presentations and third-party reference checks. In
conducting this assessment, the Nomination Committee will consider,
inter alia, diversity in all its aspects (including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge and length of service) and such other
factors as it deems appropriate for maintaining a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate to be appointed to
the Board or any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider the following criteria:

(i) reputation for integrity;

(i) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the business and
industry;

(i)  commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to
the businesses of the Group;

(iv)  merit and potential contributions that such candidate may bring to
the Company and the Board;

(v)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(vi) in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director,
compliance with the criteria of independence, as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(Vi) board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company; and

(viii) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination

Committee or the Board from time to time as appropriate.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013. The
Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance to ensure that the Board
has the appropriate balance and level of skills, experience and
perspectives required to support the execution of its business strategies.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through considering a
number of factors when appointing a new Director, including gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merits and contribution that the selected candidates are
expected to bring to the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of, among others,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, skills,
professional experience, knowledge and length of service) to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the
Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of educational
background, professional knowledge, industry experience and length of
service. The diversity mix of the Board as at 31st December 2022 is
summarised in the following charts:
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Area of Expertise and Experience
Area of expertise and experience

EXAHRER

BEXAERER

No. of Directors

(Total number of Directors on the Board: 8)
E=gE

(ESgESEH™: N\R)

Real estate and business management
FIERBEEER

Finance, accounting and internal control
BT~ &t R ER

Construction and engineering
EEREIRE

Human resources and talent development

ANERRANT BE

As at the date of this annual report, there is one female Director (i.e. Ms.
Chu Kut Yung, who is also the Chairman of the Board). Going forward,
the Company aims to at least maintain the existing level of female
representation on the Board and will continue to take opportunities to
further improve gender diversity over time, by paying due regard to the
proportion of female and male representation in the Board when
identifying potential candidates for directorships.

During the year, the Nomination Committee also reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of mechanisms to ensure independent
views and valuable experience and input are available to the Board.
Taking into account the following channels, the Nomination Committee
considered that the Company had in place mechanisms which remain
effective to ensure a strong independent and valuable element on the
Board:

° Annual presentation sessions on business segments performance
are arranged for independent non-executive Directors providing
opportunities for them to express their views and inputs;

° Annual meeting between the Chairman and all independent non-
executive Directors without presence of other Directors providing
effective platform for the Chairman to listen independent views on
various issues concerning the Group; and

° Independent professional advice would be provided to independent
non-executive Directors upon reasonable request to assist them to
perform their duties to the Company.

To support diversity across the Group, the Group adopts “zero tolerance”
to any form of discrimination, including gender, age, nationality, ethnicity,
physical and marital status through employee networks, mentoring
programmes, equitable hiring practices, policies and awareness raising
events and training for all employees to support inclusive behaviours.
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Area of Expertise and Experience (Continued)

The Board also recognises the importance of achieving diversity at the
workforce level. As at 31st December 2022, the gender ratio of the
workforce of the Group (including the senior management) was 2 male to
1 female. In striving to maintain gender diversity in the workforce, the
Group adopts considerations and measurable objectives similar to those
applicable to the Board level when identifying and recruiting key
personnel across the Group’s operations.

Further details on the gender ratio of the Group and initiatives taken to
improve gender diversity across the workforce including senior
management are set out in “Sustainability Report” on pages 120 to 168
of this annual report,

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) aiming at
setting out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits as
dividends to the Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy, in
considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance between
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth and rewarding
the Shareholders. In addition, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend distribution ratio. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

(i) the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
expected working capital requirements and capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position and future expansions plans;

(i)  the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the
Company;

@iy  the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity ratio
and the relevant financial covenant;

(iv)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the
Group;

(v)  the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s
norm; and

(vi)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Bermuda, the
Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws, and any
other applicable laws and regulations. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to
determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the
Company in the future.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole
and absolute discretion to update, amend and modify the Dividend Policy
from time to time. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time.

Accountability and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, financial position and prospects. It is also
responsible for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other
price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. The
management provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2022, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and maintaining sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests. The Directors
confirm that the Group, through its Internal Control Department (which
serves as the Group’s internal audit function), performs regular checks on
office procedures, practices and systems to safeguard assets from
inappropriate use, maintains proper accounts and ensures compliance
with regulations. The regular reviews also cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. The Internal Control Department
reports directly to the Group Supervisory Committee which in turn reports
independently to the Board. The Internal Control Department is
independent of all management functions of the Group and has direct
and independent access to the Board. Summaries of major audit findings
and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Accountability and Internal Controls (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2022, no frauds and irregularities, risk
management and internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws,
rules and regulations have come to the attention of the Audit Committee
to cause it to believe that the systems of risk management and internal
controls were inadequate. The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with
the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal controls systems to safeguard the
Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests, while management is
responsible for designing and implementing an internal controls system
and monitoring the operational effectiveness. A sound and effective
system of internal controls is designed to identify and manage the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, in order to provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our Risk Management Framework

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal
controls systems and reviews their effectiveness on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee and the Supervisory Committee support the Board in
monitoring our risk exposures. The Audit Committee, acting on behalf of
the Board, oversees the following processes:

(i) regular reviews of the principal business risks (including
environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) risks), and control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks; the strengths
and weaknesses of the overall internal controls system and action
plans to address the weaknesses or improve the assessment
process;

(i) regular reviews of the business process and operations reported by
the Supervisory Committee and the Internal Control Department,
including action plans to address the identified control weaknesses,
status update and monitoring the implementation of
recommendations; and

(i)  regular reports by the external auditors of any monitoring issues
identified in the course of their work and the discussion with the
external auditors about their respective review scope and finding.

The Audit Committee will then report to the Board after due review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management. The Board
considers the works and findings of the Audit Committee, the Supervisory
Committee and the Internal Control Department in forming its own view
on the effectiveness of the system.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls (Continued)

Our Risk Management Framework (Continued)

The ESG Working Group was established on 31st March 2022 and
comprises 9 members, including Mr. Xie Bao Xin, an executive Director,
as the chairman of the ESG Working Group and other 8 members from
different departments of the Group. Its primary function is to manage the
Group’s ESG matters including but not limited to assessing risks related
to sustainable development, formulating and implementing sustainable
work strategies and monitoring the progress of its work, and regularly
reporting to the Board on the progress of sustainable work development
and preparing sustainability reports in accordance with disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules. During the year, the ESG Working
Group had, among other things, monitored and assessed the progress
made by the Group in achieving its ESG-related targets and goals,
formulated and made recommendations on sustainability strategies in
light of the latest ESG trends and related risks faced by the Group, as
well as prepared for ESG reporting of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2022.

For the year ended 31st December 2022, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, Supervisory Committee and the ESG Working Group, has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management system
of the Group by conducting a formal risk assessment process to identify,
prioritise and assess the key risks (classified by strategic risks, operational
risks, financial reporting risks, compliance risks and ESG risks) faced by
the Group. Action plans for each key risk have also been identified. No
significant areas of concern that may affect the risk management
functions of the Group have been identified. The Board is satisfied with
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management system of the
Group.

Our Internal Controls Framework

Internal controls guidelines have been established by the Supervisory
Committee and the Internal Control Department to set out the internal
controls and corporate governance framework of the Group. In
establishing the internal control guidelines, we have taken into
consideration our organisational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

The Group conducts its affairs having close regard to the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations. The Group has established procedures to identify and
evaluate events or circumstances which potentially involve or constitute
inside information and restrict dissemination of such information to a
need-to-know basis before disclosure. Prior to disclosure, the Board is
responsible for ensuring that any inside information relating to the Group
is kept strictly confidential. The Group has also designated persons to be
responsible for making any necessary announcement in respect of such
inside information to ensure consistent and timely disclosure and to
respond to external enquiries about the affairs of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls (Continued)

Our Internal Controls Framework (Continued)

The Board and the Audit Committee oversee the internal controls of the
Group, assisted by the Supervisory Committee and the Internal Control
Department. The Audit Committee meetings are held twice in a year,
which include assessment over effectiveness of internal controls system
and reports the result to the Board.

Internal Control Review

The Group, through its Internal Control Department, performs regular
checks on office procedures, practices and systems to safeguard assets
from inappropriate use, maintains proper accounts and ensures
compliance with regulations. The regular reviews also cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Summaries of major audit findings
and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Supervisory
Committee and the Audit Committee at least once on an annual basis.

For the year ended 31st December 2022, no frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws, rules and regulations
have come to the attention of the Audit Committee to cause it to believe
that the system of internal controls was inadequate. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and is satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group.

Compliance with Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As part of the process of reviewing the financial statements, the Audit
Committee reviews the Group’s compliance with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements including the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and Securities and Futures Ordinance and also the financial
reporting compliance; for notable exceptions on code provision F.2.2 of
the CG Code, please refer to page 93 of this “Corporate Governance
Report”.

Whistleblowing and Anti-Corruption Policies

A whistleblowing policy for employees, customers and suppliers to voice
concerns about possible improprieties of the Company in a confidential
and anonymous manner and an anti-corruption policy to promote an
anti-corruption culture have been put in place by the Company. The
policies require its officers and employees to adhere to high ethical
business standards and monitors the implementation of anti-corruption
measures through a team with relevant law enforcement experience in
PRC under the overall supervision of the Audit Committee.
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Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance
issues under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and
enhance their awareness of their continuing obligations as Directors and
good corporate governance practices.

During the year, each of the Directors had been provided with training
materials. Each of the Directors had noted and studied the training
materials provided by the Company. The Directors had provided the
Company with their respective training records pursuant to the CG Code.
During the year, all Directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development by way of attending training or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. A summary of the record of training received by the
Directors during the year is as follows:
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Training on corporate governance,
regulatory updates and development
and/or other relevant topics
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Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Communication have been maintained
with the media, analysts and fund managers through meetings.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments.
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Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations (Continued)

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with its
Shareholders. The Shareholders’ communication policy sets out the
framework in place to promote effective communication with
Shareholders so as to enable them to engage actively with the Company
and exercise their rights as Shareholders in an informed manner. In
implementing the Shareholders’ communication policy, the Company
seeks to promote continuous communication and engagement with the
Shareholders through various means and channels, as further elaborated
below.

The Company strives to ensure that Shareholders have ready, equal and
timely access to all publicly available information of the Company that is
accurate, comprehensible and informative. The Company provides
detailed press releases and reports to its Shareholders on the Group’s
business and financial positions with timely annual reports and interim
reports, to ensure that they are effectively informed of the Group’s status
and developments. General presentations are made immediately after the
announcement of financial results. The website of the Group is also
updated regularly to keep investors and the general public informed of
the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet and
communicate with Shareholders, providing a forum for the Shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend the annual general meetings.
External auditors are also available at the annual general meetings to
address Shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions are proposed for
each issue considered at the annual general meetings. The 2022 AGM
circular was distributed to all Shareholders not less than 21 clear days
prior to the annual general meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution and other relevant information. The procedures for conducting
a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the annual general
meeting at the beginning of the meeting.

Further, the Company has a dedicated hotline and a dedicated email
account for receiving enquiries, feedback and suggestions from the
Shareholders. Views and concerns received will be consolidated and
discussed at the management and the Board level as and when
necessary.

The Company has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy and
considered that the implementation of such policy was effective during
the year.
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Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations (Continued)

In March 2022, the Board proposed to make certain amendments to the
existing Bye-laws of the Company (the “Proposed Amendments”),
primarily to (i) provide more flexibility in relation to the conduct of general
meetings of the Company by allowing general meetings to be held at
different physical locations simultaneously, or to be held as hybrid
meetings or electronic meetings which may be attended by the
Shareholders by means of electronic facilities; (i) reflect the latest
amendments to the Listing Rules, particularly Appendix 3 to the Listing
Rules concerning the core shareholder protection standards which came
into effect on 1st January 2022 and to bring the existing Bye-laws up-to-
date with the applicable laws of Bermuda; and (i) incorporate other
consequential and housekeeping amendments which are in line with the
above amendments.

Following the Shareholders’ approval of the Proposed Amendments by
way of special resolution at the 2022 AGM held on 10th June 2022, the
Company has adopted the amended and restated Bye-laws with effect
from 10th June 2022. The latest version of the Amended and Restated
Bye-Laws is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholder(s) holding on the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, request the Board to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM”) for transaction of any business or resolution specified in
the requisition to be added to the meeting agenda.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
signed by all the requisitionist(s) (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Unit 4903-10, 49/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The SGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. In the event that the Board fails to proceed to convene the
SGM within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”).
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Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

Shareholders’ Right to Propose Resolutions at General
Meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (i) not less
than 100 Shareholders, may submit to the Company a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at an annual general meeting
of the Company or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The written request/statement must be signed by all the requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists, and it must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong (Unit
4903-10, 49/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6)
weeks before the annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one (1) week before the general
meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided that if an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the resolution or statement
on each such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given to any
other Shareholder by giving notice of the general effect of the resolution
in any manner permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and,
so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and,
where it is not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall
be served or given as soon as practicable thereafter.
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Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through
the below contact details and we will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address: Unit 4903-10, 49/F., The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central
Central
Hong Kong

Tel No.: (852) 2537 3086

Fax No.: (852) 2537 2834
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About This Report

Report Profile

This report is the eighth sustainability report published by HOPSON
DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson Development” or “Hopson”
or the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
summarising the Group’s performance in relation to environment, society
and governance as well as various corporate social responsibility events.
The following sections of the report cover the Group’s efforts and
performance in relation to communications with stakeholders, operation,
environmental protection, employees and social responsibility.

The Group firmly believes that it is the responsibility of an enterprise to
lead the society, operates with good moral values and respects the
communities and protects natural environment. As a reputable real estate
developer, the Group has persistently adhered to the corporate
philosophy of “Mutualism with an insistence on integrity and innovation”
over the past three decades. In addition to taking on the corporate
responsibility for sustainable development by providing services to
achieve win-win situations, we also attach importance to personal
integrity and compliance operations. Hopson is committed to becoming
a cross-regional and cross-industry world-class enterprise with high
social responsibility. It sets up five core values as its operating principles,
and implements these principles into the daily operations of the Group,
so0 as to fulfill corporate social responsibility more effectively.

Firstly, in order to enhance the internal operational efficiency and
commodity values, the Group devotes itself to addressing important
environmental and social issues related to its own businesses. Secondly,
the Group regards enhancing the market value of the enterprise as one
of its development priorities, thereby enhancing its core competitiveness.
Thirdly, the Group attaches great importance to the integrity of its
employees and the corporate, and believes that they can inject the Group
with steady “vitality” and promote the long-term sustainable development
of the enterprise. Fourthly, the Group will continue to grasp the market
demand, seek innovation, and utilise new mindsets and new technologies
to stand out from numerous real estate developers. Lastly, considering
the philosophy of mutualism as the greatest honour, the Group
undertakes to provide excellent services to the public and bring a positive
impact to society.
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Reporting Guidelines

This report has been compiled in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (‘ESG Reporting Guide”) under
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Report Scope

This report summarises the sustainable development vision of the Group
and the environmental, social and governance practices and performance
for the financial year from 1st January 2022 to 31st December 2022. The
report covers the Group’s management policies, strategies, related
materiality and objectives relating to environmental, social and
governance aspects, and the associated policies implemented by the
Group. The report primarily sets out the Group’s property development,
commercial properties investment, property management, infrastructure
and investments businesses.

Reporting Principles

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Reporting Principles”
stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide, including:

o Materiality: The Group focuses on environmental, social and
governance issues that have a significant impact on the Company’s
business and stakeholders. Therefore, the Group conducts
materiality assessment on a regular basis to identify and prioritise
each material issue, and utilises them as the basis for compiling
and responds to them through this report.

° Quantitative: This report discloses quantitative data and annual
comparative data where applicable to objectively assess the
Group’s environmental, social and governance performance. This
report uses data collection tools to record and monitor various
environmental and social indicators, and strictly monitors the entire
process.

° Balance: This report describes the performance of the Group in an
unbiased manner, including the results achieved by the Group and
areas for improvement.

e  Consistency: This report uses consistent methodologies with the
past to allow stakeholders to compare. If there is any change in the
scope of data collection or the method of calculation, this report will
make special instructions for the reference of report users.

Report Approval

The Board is responsible for leading, decision-making and overseeing
environmental, social and governance measures, policies and
procedures, and has reviewed and approved the publication of this
report.
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Board Statement

As the top leadership of the Group, the Board is responsible for overall
monitoring, guidance and review of the Group’s environmental, social
and governance issues and climate-related risks and opportunities. The
Board is responsible for planning the overall environmental, social and
governance strategic direction of the Group, while the Environmental,
Social and Governance Working Group (the “Working Group”) is
responsible for assisting the Board in monitoring the Group’s
environmental, social and governance development. The Working Group
is responsible for implementing measures specified by the Board to
promote the sustainability development in the Group’s daily operations.
The Working Group holds not less than one meeting every year, and
must regularly report to the Board on the progress of sustainable
development regularly.

The Group evaluates and prioritises environmental, social and governance
issues through the annual materiality assessment. The results of the
materiality assessment are reviewed and approved by the Board to
formulate relevant management policies, strategies, and objectives. For
details, please refer to the “Materiality Assessment” section in this report.

The Board understands that setting environmental, social and
governance-related objectives is conducive to the long-term development
of the Group. The Board is responsible for the final review and approval
of environmental, social and governance-related target settings, and the
Working Group regularly monitors and reviews the progress.
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Communications with Stakeholders

The Group has established long-term, stable, transparent and open
communication mechanisms and feedback channels with stakeholders,
SO as to accurately understand stakeholders’ opinions on the Group’s
environmental, social and governance performance and disclosure. The
Group collects feedback and suggestions from various stakeholders
regularly, and formulates the direction, objectives and strategies of
corporate operations base on actual feedback and viewpoints. We
supervise and manage relevant issues in order to respond to the
concerns of stakeholders.

Stakeholders
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Objectives
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To establish employees’ responsibility and nurture them

to be a stakeholder
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To achieve a win-win situation and mutual enrichment

To provide innovative solutions to social affairs

Shareholders To maximise shareholders’ values
[ EHERREEZAL
Business partners
SIERBH ZH#E KRAZE
Customers Customers are our bosses
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Community
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Materiality Assessment

The Group values the management of materiality assessment and
expects to better understand the issues concerned by stakeholders. In
2018, the Group entrusted an independent third-party consultant to
conduct an online survey, interviewing over 800 external and internal
stakeholders, including the Group’s management, employees, investors,
shareholders, suppliers, contractors, customers, mass media partners
and non-governmental organisations (NGOs), etc., to collect feedback
from various stakeholders on the importance of the above topics, and
evaluate the importance of such topics every year. The Group also
entrusted a third-party consultant to conduct the materiality assessment
this year. The analysis of industry and market trends can help the Group
understand the sustainable development issues that the industry are
concerned about. The Group’s 24 material issues cover four aspects,
namely environment, employment and labour, operation management
and community. After referring to the analysis results, the Board
confirmed that the materiality matrix and the eleven issues with high
materiality this year remained unchanged from last year.

The eleven issues with high materiality included energy consumption,
emission of greenhouse gases, green building, employment benefits,
occupational health and safety, employee training and career
development, customer satisfaction, quality of services and products,
supply chain management, compliance with laws during operations, as
well as anti-corruption.

ERMRT

AEBEGEENNENERLR  HEEAMR
TERANGEETRINZEE ASER T —
NFZRBUEF=ZTERETTH LEASH
EoaHEBBN\ARIMBREAINEEEE T
ERAEEEEE BT REELE BRE #
e AREE BT HRAEEHRIIERF
BEZAERN RESVNEARTEZERE
BUNRE YEFEHRREZEEEL - K
SETRAFEZRF T EHAETEENR
- BEBBAOMTERTESBE  UHAEE
THROEMEINAFEERAE - ASEH
“tmERERENESE  ARER - EEX
BT BEEEBERUHR -BEZE2Z0MER
B HEEZENEZMHETER MAFE
AEENEENERENR T - HEEEEZAE
B EFXRBEEL -

T EHREEZRERREEREARBRL AE
REHN SEe2E RBEEN BEXEER
e REFILBEXER FEFPMEE R
BRER®RE HEREE LEREHNE
SRR ARRESHE -

BHEIREEBRAR —T__FF® 123



Part X: Sustainability Report (Continued) % + % : B R R KRE (8)

Sustainable development issues

ARERREERE

Environment @
RIE

Energy consumption
BEIRE IS M

Emission of greenhouse gases
BERBHNK

Waste disposal management
REEYE R

Usage of water and efficiency
IKEIRERIER R
Usage of materials and efficiency
WEHE BB & R as
Biodiversity

£ &R

Green building

R 1B S

Compliance with the employment and labour laws
BIE &S TENIETER
Employment benefits

EIREMN

Recruitment and retention of talents
AT B KA

Employee participation

EBRE2HEE

Occupational health and safety
BEERNEZE

Employee training and career development
BEEINRBFEER

Employee diversity and equal opportunities
BTZHRMEETERS

Child labour and forced labour
e S E

Employment and Labour Practices @
EEREZEIER

® 6 & © 6 & 60 ©

Customers’ health and safety
BEERREEZ S

Customer privacy

BEF LR

Customer satisfaction
BEEWEE
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Based on the total score given to each issue, the Group ranks the overall
materiality of the ESG topics in a matrix diagram, where the Y-axis
represents the importance of relevant topics to stakeholders, while the X-axis
represents the importance of such topics to the Group. The matrix is as
follows:
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Materiality matrix of ESG issues of Hopson Development
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Responsible Operations

Hopson Development attaches great importance to corporate
compliance and is committed to maintaining the highest standards of
business ethics. The Group strictly abides by various national laws and
regulations, upholds the corporate philosophy of “mutualism with an
insistence on integrity and innovation”. By formulating a number of policy
guidelines, reporting mechanisms and preventive measures, the Group
strives to curb all corruption and bribery in the value chain. The Group
firmly believes that compliance operations are the cornerstone of
corporate success, and is committed to establishing a sustainable supply
chain in terms of environment, society and governance. At the same
time, the Group actively communicates with suppliers and implements
management to establish a long-term mutual benefit Partnerships.

Putting the customer first, the enterprise can have a long-term future. The
Group adopts innovative and intelligent property management, and
strives to provide comprehensive and diversified real estate services and
sustainable high-quality properties. The Group considers the needs of
customers, safeguards and protects their rights and information security,
and constantly advances with times through innovative technology,
striving to create a “U Life”.
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Compliance Operations and Anti-Corruption

Hopson Development is committed to achieving and maintaining
compliance operation to protect the interests of investors and other
stakeholders. The Group strictly abides by the Regulations on
Administration of Development and Operation of Urban Real Estate, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Administration of Urban Real
Estate, other relevant commercial operations and the real estate industry
laws and regulations. It also formulates policies such as the Employee
Behaviour Supervision and Disciplinary Action Management Policy and
the Authorisation and Approval Process Management Measures to
strengthen internal management. By establishing a perfect supervision
and restraint mechanism and clearly listing the accountability details, the
Group regulates the code of conduct that employees should comply with
in performing their duties, and ensures that all employees abide by
corporate integrity and business ethics.

The Group has strengthened its integrity management and adopted a “zero
tolerance” attitude towards any form of corruption and bribery. The
Group strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law. In
order to further implement the principle of operating with integrity, the
Group has also formulated internal policy guidelines such as the
Employee Behaviour Supervision and Disciplinary Action Management
System and the Notice on Strict Control of Business Dealings with
Relatives of the Board of Directors and Senior Management. During the
reporting period, the Group updated and issued the Exact Compliance
with Instructions Regulation of Hopson Development Holdings, which
further clarifies and standardises the basic behaviours, compliance and
accountability of employees. We strictly forbid employees from asking for
or accepting bribes in various forms, or seeking illegal benefits by taking
advantage of their positions, engaging in malpractices for personal gain
and colluding with others. Meanwhile, the Group has established a
monitoring and punishment mechanism in accordance with the
Provisions on the Investigation of Misconduct and Law Incompliance of
Employees. Upon confirming any misconduct or violation of the
regulations by the employees, the Group will immediately terminate the
labour contract and transfer them to the administrative and judicial
authorities. Through a series of internal policies, the Group establishes a
clean working environment, reducing fraud opportunities and preventing
employees from engaging in inappropriate actions.
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The Group actively carried out anti-corruption training to enhance the
knowledge and understanding of all directors and employees on business
ethics and anti-corruption system. In addition to requiring all employees
to watch online training videos produced by the Group’s human
resources department, the Group carried out compliance and clean
government training through information systems and offline cultural
publicity. During the reporting period, the Group conducted three
compliance and clean government trainings for more than 400 people,
including those at the director level or above in all the centers and
institutions of the Group, and the training hours exceeded 1,600 hours.

According to the Administrative Measures for the Audit of Hopson
Development, the Group clearly defined the responsibilities of the
Supervision Department of the Audit and Supervision Center, including
reviewing the daily operation compliance and reported cases, proposing
corrective measures and related follow-up actions, and effectively
preventing, identifying and responding to integrity problems by
establishing a sound internal inspection mechanism. In addition, in order
to effectively supervise the Group’s business activities and maintain a
clean working environment, the Group has also set up a “complaint and
report mailbox”. If employees find any violations, they can complain and
report through email, WeChat public account or other channels. During
the reporting period, the Group did not find any corruption-related
irregularities.

Supply Chain Management

The Group focuses on the sustainable development of the supply chain.
Comprehensive supply chain management is necessary to ensure the
quality of products and services. The Group has continuously
strengthened supply chain management and established a
comprehensive supply chain management system. The Group
implements strict requirements in the various aspects including selection,
cooperation and management. A guideline for sustainable development
is added to select the most suitable supplier for the Group, aiming to
empower the real estate industry and create a high-quality lifestyle service
operator of the whole industry chain.

The Group strictly complies with the Bidding Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and has a range of internal policies such as the
Administrative Measures for the Cooperation Unit List of Hopson
Development Holding and the Budget and Tendering Preconditions
Management Rules to ensure that the Group’s tender work is in
accordance to the laws and regulations. These policies stipulate that the
transparent bidding method must be adopted in all strategic procurement
of the Group, and suppliers must be selected from the Cooperation Unit
List. When admitting suppliers into the Cooperation Unit List, relevant
qualification examinations will also be carried out to ensure that each
warehousing supplier has relevant qualifications and meets the Group’s
quality standards. In 2022, the quality control company conducted
inspections on 595 entities when selecting suppliers into the list.
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In order to standardise the bidding process, the Group has formulated
the Administrative Measures for Bidding of Hopson Development
Holdings to set up the indicators for selection of various stages, and
added sustainable development guidelines to respective leasing
agreements. The agreement template clearly stipulates that the leasee
has to comply with relevant national regulations, and execute local laws
and regulations relating to sustainable development requirements at the
same time. The Group is committed to continuously promoting suppliers
to enhance their awareness of environmental, social and governance
management, and expects to create a sustainable supply chain with
suppliers.

During the suppliers screening stage, the Group invites three to six
suppliers to bid, principally based on their market popularity and past
supply records. The Group, according to its development needs,
estimates the service cost based on factors such as the content of their
tender submissions, the quality of past services, past raw material prices,
quotations and market prices, then selects suitable suppliers for the
Group. At the same time, the Group also invites local quality suppliers to
participate in bidding according to project scale and pricing, seeking to
promote supplier diversity and providing more local employment
opportunities. As of 31st December 2022, the Group cooperated with
507 suppliers.

Number of suppliers by region
(As of 31st December 2022)
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In order to ensure the suppliers can meet the Group’s requirements of “High
quality, high standard and high orientation”and optimise the supply chain
management, the Group has formulated the Implementation Rules for
Cooperation Partner Evaluation, which stipulate that after the Group
establishes the supply relationship, the suppliers are to be assessed by
the Group every quarter for their product quality, goods supply ability,
performance of on-sale service and post-sale service. In addition, the
Group implements a whole progress and multi-dimensional close-loop
management on suppliers. The Group conducts supplier-related training
on a regular basis to enhance the capabilities of suppliers in all aspects.
The Group conducts supplier-related training on a regular basis to
enhance the capabilities of suppliers in all aspects. At the same time, the
Group also conducts assessment on cooperation unit list inclusive audit,
quality assessment, historical result inspection and the Implementation
Rules for Third Party Assessment Management in bidding documents.
The Group is dedicated to the more systematic and intelligent
management of suppliers by conducting quality control follow-up using
the smart construction management platform developed by Yuanzhi
Technology Group.
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In order to strengthen the management and control on cooperation units
and optimise the supplier list of the Group, the quality control centre of
the Group worked with the residential investment department,
commercial management and construction management department,
flagship production and construction management department, and chief
engineering office, and took two months to conduct a comprehensive
examination and evaluation of the eight types of cooperation unit (i.e.
curtain wall, fire protection, comprehensive decoration, power supply,
weak current system, commercial electro-mechanical integration,
greening & landscape, pile foundation) on the list by the five departments
of the Group in cooperation with each region and project. As of 31st
December 2022, a total of 1,975 cooperation partners have been
evaluated.

In terms of supplier integrity, the Group has always adhered to fairness
and justice, and has a “zero tolerance” attitude towards suppliers who
violate compliance commitments. The Group conducts a continuous anti-
corruption monitoring and evaluation of suppliers, requires suppliers to
sign integrity agreements. In addition, the Group has set up an official
WeChat public account for auditing, monitoring and complaints. In case
any complaint is received through the public account, the Group will
immediately launch an investigation and follow-up actions. The Group
also conducts pre-warehousing data review and multi-department on-
site inspections on suppliers who apply for inclusion in the cooperation
unit list through the Supplier Management Center. While the suppliers are
bidding, the Group conducts background investigations and reviews on
the result of suppliers cooperating with other top 100 real estate
companies in order to identify environmental and social risks in the supply
chain.

The Group deeply integrates the concept of sustainable development
with the supply chain, and promotes the awareness of sustainable
development between suppliers and the Group. In addition to requiring
suppliers to comply with national standards and local regulations on
environmental protection, the Group also requires suppliers to provide
ISO or other quality system certification and environmental protection
system certification in the bidding technical requirements. At the same
time, the contract terms indicate the relevant management requirements
on labour rights, labour health and safety, environmentally friendly
materials, and green construction. The Group supervises and manages
the environmental responsibilities of suppliers throughout the whole
process from pre-bid assessment, on-site inspection, contract
performance, engineering practice to supply source tracking
management, so as to promote the green development of the industrial
chain.

Product and Service Quality

The Group always adheres to the brand philosophy of “enjoying high-
quality lifestyle”. Not only does the Group commit to developing high-
quality products and services and introduces world-class living concepts
into China, it has also created the “U Life” philosophy and established the
“UP Product Value System” (in which “UP” stands for “You” and “Perfect”)
based on such philosophy in order to allow more people to experience
the philosophy and objective of “U Life”.
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The Group has put further effort into the design of its services and
products from four dimensions:

. —.I-j: II'E

7R S 8] DA 70 {8 4 J2 RO AL AR 7% Mo E mm O RRRT ¢

Place level e Service level e Facility level e Community level
o %F‘sﬂ 5 PTRE m o ARIRFEE ° AwRMEREE s FARUEER
EE
J . J O J . J/
Real Estate Management EihEEIE

The real estate development projects of the Group are in strict
compliance with domestic construction regulations and practices, such
as the Construction Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Regulation on the Quality Management of Construction Projects, in order
to ensure the quality and safety of all delivered projects to meet the

AEENEHERZREERETEANE
EERBMED (R EARKMBERZER)
(BRIEREEHFRIE  BRKEINH
HFEmENABERLZERE - RTRHEZTKD
mMEMER  AKERY (IREERKE

national standards. To continue to complete high-quality projects, the  ME#HA|) - ARG K BB TR E 8B KB 4A

Group has formulated the Implementation Rules for Project Quality #%ZE# B S EXFANBE WIELITEE S
Inspection and Acceptance. The document clearly sets out the entre B 1Z - ?‘Egﬁz IRZEE 1% EIAZEF95% LA
project quality inspection, acceptance management organisation B/ TI2E 2 RKAK100% @ AR EE
structure and the responsibilities of various departments. It also proposes & i 3t & & & &8 %y\ TR ADPNRE% - 2T ¥ EHE
goals for project quality, requiring a one-time delivery rate of 95% or IEB TRIAFEEMEEE > MEIPEBRW TIEREF

above, a rate of 100% for final qualified project quality of units, and an B EH|E 7T LA E » 815 :
owners’ complaint rate of less than 5% on quality issues when handing
over the units. For the quality verification work at different stages of the
real estate project development, the document regulates the inspection

and acceptance work for nine major areas, including:

On-site inspection and acceptance for construction materials and equipment, such as rebar,
acceptance for cement, wall bricks, kitchen equipment, fire control equipment, lighting control equipment, etc.
construction work BEMBRZERNESRE - MHEH - KR BE - HBE&E B ESRE Bl
BEIRRK 2R
7] Inspection and acceptance for samples from various construction processes
& T8 bt T A2 B0 B AR BRI
%] Inspection and acceptance for inspection lots from various construction processes
FIE M T RIZ AR R BRI
”} Inspection and acceptance for individual engineering task, including sanitary equipment
installation, switch socket panel and lighting installation, and various construction equipment

Inspection and 1

systems
FPEIERY EREGERAELE FAHGEAR BALE UESBEERERER
FS

] Inspection and acceptance for partitioned (itemised) construction, such as curtain wall,
waterproofing project, ground foundation engineering, etc.
DE(FHE) TRBU - B PR IRE - MEERTRESE

Inspection and 3] Inspection and acceptance for “two points, one stroke” construction quality, including

acceptance for ancillary inspection and acceptance for project sample flats, sales centres, gardens and municipal

facilities ancillary facilities

HEBRERNK (M — R ITREERYW BREBEETSHEN HEFRL BMURTHREERKT
1

Inspection and 7/ Completion inspection and acceptance for construction of flats and units

acceptance for flats and BUTRER TR

units s} Inspection and acceptance for comprehensive construction delivery

BFEMRNK ITREaREREK

] Contract payment upon completing inspection
T2 & [A) & B B KA 3R
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To enhance more effective and proactive management of the project
team, the Group establishes project quality reward and disciplinary policy
for projects of different qualities in accordance with the Implementation
Rules for Reward and Punishment on Quality and Safety of Project
Management Personnel and the Implementation Rules for Reward and
Punishment on Quality and Safety of Construction Units, and carries out
reward and punishment based on the performance of project
management personnel and construction units.

Property management

In respect of property management, the Group strictly abides by the
Regulation on Realty Management of the People’s Republic of China,
and formulated and complied with the Measures for Inspection of
Community Property Management of Hopson Group, which specify the
scope and methods of property management and set up a reasonable,
safe and efficient property service supervision mechanism. The Group’s
scope of property management includes the comprehensive property
management and the handling of complaints from owners, housing
management and maintenance, environmental sanitation, landscaping,
public security and vehicle management, comprehensive management of
engineering and common facilities, and management of vacant flats. The
Group will carry out supervision and inspection on all aspects, the
relevant property management personnel are required to conduct
monthly community inspection activities pursuant to the above
documents and rules. The Group requires the property management
personnel to fill in the Community Daily Property Service Inspection and
Acceptance Form and the Two-point and One-stroke Property Service
Inspection and Acceptance Form, as well as summarises and sorts out
the issues in daily operation by convening on-site coordination meetings,
and reports on the improvement progress, in order to continuously
improve service quality. With the strict implementation of various
mechanisms, the property management service of the Group is
accredited with ISO 9001 quality management system certification.

The Group has continuously deepened the construction of the digital
system, equipped with a smart life equipment and facility management
system, and carried out unified remote monitoring and management of
power supply and distribution, water supply and drainage, fire protection,
elevators and other equipment within the scope of management, and
established a centralised management structure, in order to further
improve work efficiency.
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Pandemic control

In order to prevent the further spread of COVID-19 and protect the
physical and mental health and safety of customers, the Group adopted
comprehensive pandemic prevention measures and strict prevention
mechanisms to reduce the infection risk. By introducing intelligent means
to strengthen management methods, the Group protects the interests of
customers in a pragmatic and practical way. In terms of personnel entry
and exit, the Group adopted a face recognition machine and a smart car
travelling system to check the identity and vehicles of foreign personnel,
which reduced the risk and avoided the close contact of staff with
customers and foreign personnel to a great extent. Meanwhile, the Group
has also adopted security robots to patrol and inspect public areas 24
hours a day, and intelligent sweeping robots to patrol and clean public
areas, and used intelligent elevator control systems and delivery robots to
timely deliver supplies to residents and reduce personal contact. The
Group understands that due to the inconvenience of traveling during the
pandemic, some residents feel depressed during the lockdown period.
For this reason, the Group has specially implemented the Internet hospital
convenience service. With the slogan of “being the first responsible
person for your own health”, the Group provides customers with a series
of convenient service measures, such as online consultation, medicine
delivery, famous doctor live streaming, health mall and so on. The Group
invited famous doctors and big shots to share hot health activities and
seasonal health preservation methods via live streaming, so as to
enhance the happiness of residents.

In addition to intelligent pandemic management, the Group also has strict
requirements for the staff in the property community. The Group ensures
the employee safety by monitoring the vaccination progress of employees
and arranging reasonable work schedules, and adopts the strategy of not
allowing the unmonitored employees’ returning to post without
authorisation, and regularly disinfects the office area and strictly controls
the personnel. The Group timely closed the sales offices during special
periods and strictly controlled the on-site personnel flow during normal
opening hours to ensure customer safety. In addition to pandemic
prevention preparations, the project site also implements a single
customer reception mechanism. During the reporting period, Esteem
Property won the “Anti-pandemic Pioneer Enterprise” award with its high-
quality service and strong comprehensive strength.
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Daily disinfection for pandemic prevention
in the property office area
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Customer Service

The Group focuses on establishing long-term cooperative and trusting
relationships with customers, and provides high-quality property
management services to residents and tenants. The Group has been
upholding the customer service standards of “separate handling, unified
collection and unified management”, and has attached great importance
to customer feedback. The Group has developed four major customer
feedback collection channels, including 400 national customer hotlines,
e-mail, WeChat public account and property service centre set up in
regional offices. The collected customer and resident feedback will be
input into an unified customer relationship management (CRM) system
and database for swift and effective following-up of customer opinions.
To ensure service quality and efficiency, the Group adopts a smart
customer service system to handle customer feedback. The online
services of the smart customer service system cover whole-process
services such as registration, invoice issue, responsible department
handling, mission upgrade, customer follow-up visit, satisfactory
evaluation and the whole audit process. After completion of the service,
customer satisfaction will be accurately recorded. In addition, customers
can also participate in satisfaction surveys through mobile devices or
computers.

Esteem Property Anti-epidemic Pioneer Certificate
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As of the reporting period, Esteem Property has won a number of BHEREHAN EWEEEFLRBE HEELE
property service awards in terms of customer service: ZIEMERTE FERIRE

i 2022 China Five-star Property Project
o 20229 E A ERYH*ER
b < 4

4 N
@
AR RS 2022 Guangdong, Hong Kong, Macau and the Greater Bay Area Property Services
FEREOEESARAE W00NEBRAEEBYWERERBELE
e e

@ A 2022 Guangdong Province Property Services Comprehensive Development Strength
Mﬁm m Enterprise
FEERY o
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IS BRI VERAROAENEE

2022 China's Leading Brand Enterprise in Professional Operation of Property Services
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Guided by customer experience improvement in all directions, the Group ARNEBENUE A IESZEEE% AEH B IR
is committed to improving the customer life quality, and customers can IEA RBP4 ERYE @ BF 7] f£ % N &£ & [F &
experience convenient life while enjoying the thoughtful property MM ¥EEREFAEBENEE - BTIRS
management services of the Group. In order to improve customer ZEEBREE ANEBZXFEHEER &
satisfaction, the Group gradually realized digital transformation, summed HEEZLWEINEFLFER -BTHAEBLHE
up customer needs and management experience collected from daily 4 B (LALES TEIEAFIEELE
operations, and combined them with digitalisation to create a “Hooplife” AR 75 ¥ & APP o {K =L = 1) 2 5k 2 1 ) % IR 75
smart community service platform APP. The mature property service BEZ - @BBHEHMBEETLMEL MY EEL
system of Esteem Property connects the residents and tenants with the & I8 i | Uit B9 |50 238 AR 75

property service through the Internet to achieve end-to-end express

service.
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"Hooplife" brings convenience to residents

[E45E | BEFHRERNRER

During the pandemic in COVID-19, “Hooplife” greatly guaranteed the
people’s lockdown living standards. Through online shopping malls
reserving rice and flour, grain and oil, fresh vegetables, daily necessities
and other materials, the owners could place orders through “Hooplife”,
so that they could enjoy convenient services without leaving home.
With its own supply chain advantages, Hooplife integrates resource
channels in many ways, and provides efficient online property
management services for residents with “Internet+”, creating a one-
kilometre smart community life circle. The Group is committed to
promoting the property management informatisation, focusing on the
020 smart living mode to meet the residents’ property management
needs.

“Hooplife APP” not only considers users’ procurement needs, but also
adds core service functions such as online repair appointment,
community announcement and smart housekeeper, so as to keep
abreast of community affairs announcements and prevent emergencies
such as water and power outages. Meanwhile, residents and tenants
can also make maintenance appointment service, so that maintenance
work can be completed quickly and conveniently. For any
dissatisfaction with the Group’s services, they can also report and
complain online through the APP, and the Group will provide immediate
response to solve customer complaints. The Group will continue to
develop new functions in the Hooplife APP and add traditional property
services to the platform to meet all the customer needs in their daily
lives. Up to now, new service sections such as community shopping
malls, online medical consultation and travel services have been added
to “Hooplife App”.

Meanwhile, the Hooplife APP newly includes ideas with sustainable
development design. Through the Internet of Things technology, the
Group set up Hooplife garbage bins in the property community to
promote the residents’ garbage classification and protect the
environment. Residents can choose the garbage type by scanning the
code, weigh the garbage in real time, settle the points and synchronise
them to the “Hooplife APP” account. Residents can use the points to
exchange daily necessities on the hooplife APP, and achieve
environmental protection while improving the customer experience.

. Smart trash can
== BV
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In order to obtain customer feedback in an all-round way and ensure the
best service for customers, the Group has also established a customer
service and complaint handling mechanism. The Group strictly regulates
our customer service staff to perform the relevant procedures and
standards in handling complaints pursuant to the Manual for Prime
Service Center of Hopson Group. At the same time, the Group
formulated the Regulation on Customer Complaint Management, which
standardises and regulates the management on customer complaint
handling. The Group categorises complaint and implements tier
management to firmly regulate complaint handling principles and
duration. Upon receiving complaints, employees are first required to
make a record in the Customer Complaint Handling Form within the CRM
customer service system, and assign the case to relevant business
departments to conduct follow-up and supervision to ensure that the
complaints are properly settled. After an issue is settled, the customer
service staff are required to pay a follow-up visit to the customer and file
the customer’s needs of a closed case in the Customer Complaint
Handling Form. During the reporting period, the Group received 1,935
complaints about products and services.

In respect of marketing management system, the Group has formulated
the Implementation Measures for Employee Behaviour Supervision and
Disciplinary Action Management System (“Implementation Measures”),
which standardise the authority and duties and service attitude of
employees. The Implementation Measures sets out the marketing
management system, pursuant to which, employees are strictly
prohibited from making unauthorised changes to the benchmark price,
rental or sales price list or contract terms, promising customer discounts
without permission, and misrepresenting sales information, etc. The
Group is also in strict compliance with sale regulation such as the
Regulatory Measures on the Sale of Commercial Houses and the
Regulatory Measures on the Advance Sale of Commodity Houses in
Urban Areas to crack down on vicious competition, and avoid
unscrupulous sales practices, false information promotion and other
similar circumstances. During the reporting period, the Group had no
cases of illegal sales.

The Group strictly prohibits vicious competition and requires employees
to fair sales methods to improve the customer service quality. The Group
has formulated the Manual for Prime Service Center of Hopson Group,
which specifies the organisation structure of the sales team, the duties of
each position and the procedures for communicating with customers,
and is committed to providing customers with a safe, secure and
comfortable marketing process.

Customer data and privacy protection are one of the key concerns in the
business operation of the Group. The Group strives to protect the lawful
rights of its customers and secure their safety. The Group has formulated
the Implementation Measures for Employee Behaviour Supervision and
Disciplinary Action Management System, which clearly stipulate the
punishment of disclosing customer data to other parties by employees,
and the responsible personnel will be given a warning and demoted.
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Environmental Protection

The Group attaches great importance to the impact of its business on the
environmental and social development. On the premise of its own stable
operation, the Group is committed to promoting the concept of green
building and energy conservation and emission reduction, and
incorporates such concepts into the operation and management of the
Group. With sustainable development being the goal, the Group has set
a development strategy, and strictly abides by national and local
community laws and regulations on environmental protection, such as
the as the Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China and the
Catalogue for the Classified Administration Catalogue of Environmental
Impact Assessments for Construction Projects (2021 Version). The Group
will strictly require the management of its projects to implement green
operation strategies, reduce waste emissions, reduce energy
consumption and create a green environment.

The Group set targets for emissions, waste, energy efficiency and water
efficiency to maintain the level of 2021. For details of progress towards
the targets, please refer to the Environmental KPIs session. The Group
will continue to monitor various environmental data and gradually
determine future quantitative targets.

Green Building

The Group regards customers’ needs and industry development trends
as the cornerstone of enterprise development, and prioritises green
buildings in the Group’s development. The Group has revised the
management methods and guidelines related to environmental protection
buildings. In collaboration and response to the construction regulations
under the national 14th Five-Year Plan on Green Building and Energy
Conservation in Buildings, the Technical Rules and Administrative
Measures on Green Building Assessment Standards and other
regulations, the Group has formulated internal management measures
and guidelines related to environmentally-friendly buildings to ensure that
the Group’s green building development process keeps pace with the
social and national development.

To reduce the superficial and potential impact of the Group’s construction
projects on the environment during its lifecycle, the Group proactively
implements all-rounded environmental protection measures in respect of
architectural design and planning and construction management, and
strives to minimise negative impacts. In order to reinforce the
management of the impact of the Group’s activities on the environment,
the Group has formulated the Environmental Factors, Hazardous Source
Identification and Control Procedures to evaluate environmental risks and
implement control measures. At the same time, the Group has obtained
the ISO 14001 Environment Management System Certificate to ensure
the effectiveness of environmental management. The Group implements
the concept of building a harmonious and inclusive green city in its
operations to reduce emissions and pollution and improve energy
efficiency, while building high-quality buildings.
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During the reporting period of 2022, Hopson Ziyue Mansion successfully obtained the two-star green building
certification. Hopson’s green building certification projects include:

CEICEREHE LR ERS —ELCRERB L ESRECRERBNHE SR :

Guangzhou Region Hopson Joy Mansion One-star Green Building
J& W H [ R VN —ERERE
East Region Hopson Ziyue Mansion Phase | apartment, residential, basement, Two-star Green Building
RED = primary school and kindergarten

EEENUN—HAB I - HWTE -NERHZE —EBBREE

Shidai City Project Phase | apartment, residential, basement, primary One-star Green
school and kindergarten

KRARMIEE AR X - WTE- -NERHZE —EReBRgsE
Shidai City Project Phase | commercial Two-star Green Building
RARWMIEE — Sl —ERBRE
Hopson Xiaogui Bay Phase I, districts 5 and 6 One-star Green Building
BENEEZBHRSNE —EReREE
Hopson Seaside Garden One-star Green Building
a4 RIEE —ERBREE
Binhai City Hopson One Garden One-star Green Building
BEW A EEEE —ERERE
Hopson International New City Phase VII Group 1 One-star Green Building
BEEEFE A —ERER%E
Hopson International New City Phase VII Group 2 One-star Green Building
SHEEBEFRE A —ERBRESE
Hopson Yujing Bay Phase IV One-star Green Building
B A fa = E I E —ERERE
Hopson Yujing Bay Phase V One-star Green Building
Gl B0 Fil —ERERE
Hopson Yuijing Bay Phase VI One-star Green Building
Gl B0 AN —EReEE
Hopson Yujing Bay School Two-star Green Building
BERRESR —ERBREE
Shanghai Region Hopson International Garden S1 Phase IV One-star Green Building
&£ ERIEEST O —ERERE
Hopson International Garden S1 Phase V One-star Green Building
BEEBRIEESI T —ERERE
Hopson Sea Block One-star Green Building
aEMHE —EReBRESE
The Town of Hangzhou Bay One-star Green Building
B AN S B R T —ERERE
Hopson Crystal Garden Two-star Green Building
BEREIER “EGRBREE
Hangzhou Hopson Mansion Two-star Green Building
M & & Bl & & 5B — BB
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Green Building Design and Planning Stage

The Group’s long-term goal is achieving harmony between architecture
and the environment. The Group focuses on the great importance to the
relationship between to urban development, resources and land
utilisation, and grasps the balance between the project, the city and the
environment from multiple perspectives, including project site selection,
building structure, architectural form, building technology and equipment,
as well as the sustainability of building materials..

The Group’s construction projects reduce building energy consumption
through environmentally friendly design. The Group set up time or light
control within the natural lighting zone in its buildings, and reduced
electricity and energy consumption during daytime with thoughtful natural
ventilation and lighting design. In addition, specific projects, such as
Hopson Regal Court, utilise solar energy panels to make full use of
natural resources and renewable energy.

The Group has implemented various measures in construction materials,
equipment and indoor environment projects to improve environmental
management performance of buildings. To reduce energy consumption
in buildings, the Group specifically uses environmentally friendly materials
and electrical appliances in construction projects, such as environmentally
friendly refrigerants, energy-efficient lamps and low energy-loss
accessories. Meanwhile, the Group applies environmentally friendly
coatings, and adopts fresh air system technology in ventilation and air-
conditioning systems. By monitoring and controlling the concentration of
fine suspended particles emission, good indoor air quality can be
maintained. In addition to energy saving, making good use of water
resources is another area of concern of the Group in architectural design
and planning. Water-saving appliances and rainwater collection
equipment are installed in buildings, and the collected rainwater and
reclaimed water are recycled for landscaping, vehicle washing, toilet
flushing and other purposes.

In order to improve construction efficiency and environmental data
management level, The Group applies building information modelling (BIM)
technology to visualise, informatise and delicate design, management
and construction of projects, while ensuring that project blueprints are
consistent with sustainable development and green building principles.

As climate change has attracted increasing global attention, the Group
has taken relevant countermeasures to enhance the climate resilience of
our buildings. The Group has introduced the concept of a sponge city
into the project planning stage so as to respond to the extreme weather
such as rainstorm. By constructing green landscape and cultivating local
plants, sponge city can absorb and filter rainwater and reduce surface
runoff, thus effectively strengthening the resilience of nearby areas
against flood.
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Environmental Protection Measures in Construction
Stage

The Group strictly abides by the national laws and regulations such as
the Administrative Measures on Ecosystem Standard (2020) and the
Catalogue for the Classified Administration Catalogue of Environmental
Impact Assessments for Construction Projects (2021 Version) to strictly
define the discharge of pollutants and the use of natural resources during
the construction process. To identify the impacts of the Group’s activities
on various aspects such as water, land, noise, raw materials and natural
resources utilisation, energy use and waste, the Group formulates the
Environmental Factors, Hazardous Source lIdentification and Control
Procedures. Pursuant to the procedures, the Group will prevent and
control the hazards caused by construction activities and implement
control measures.

The Group implements strict construction management, proactively
develops prefabricated buildings, and strives to reduce environmental
damage during construction in four aspects: energy saving, water
conservation, waste treatment and environmental and natural resource
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Energy saving
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Water conservation
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Waste treatment
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Environmental and
natural resource
management
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Monitors the performance and operation of the engineering equipment

Uses the mechanical devices compliant with emission standards and the electrical
equipment that is highly energy-efficient,

Reduces the use of fuel and power consumption such as diesel and gasoline.
EEIIEREBHEFEILEE

KANGHMERENRBRREBEN S MEHEEERR

FRARSOm - R EMBNERRFEES

Implementation of wastewater and rainwater reuse measures

Uses water-saving equipment and appliances such as water-saving dust control sprinklers
HEITREK R RKE A A

A KB B G B KE SRS R KR @A A

Requires the employees to store and process hazardous wastes in accordance with the
internal guidelines of On-site Safe Construction Management Standard and the provisions
of the National Hazardous Waste List

Recycle steel bars and short headed reinforcing steel and other useful building
components to control waste production and reduce raw material consumption
BRETIMVNAET(RELENABEIERZE)RFIANAITES RERER
BEMEEIHEREN D BERNEENRTE

Bl ERBEEBENRY  SRMHE  BHEEVEELS  RORERE

Strictly prohibits any illegal logging within the scope of the construction sites

Adopts transplanting methods to establish new forest farms to compensate for
environmental damage during the construction process

Take reinforcement measures when necessary to protect hillsides and ecological
environment
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Green Property Management and Office Operations

While promoting green building and construction, the Group also strives
to create a low-carbon property management model and reinforce a
green office culture. To gradually implement green office practices, the
Group has formulated the Energy Conservation and Consumption
Reduction Management Regulations, which delineates the responsibilities
of engineering department, project leaders and various relevant
professional departments and units, such as to promote the internal
implementation of energy-saving measures, improve the energy-saving
technical requirements of property management projects and raise the
employees’ awareness of energy conservation and emission reduction. In
addition, the Group also records the water and electricity consumption of
property management projects every month, whereas data analysis is
used to identify abnormal situations. As of the reporting period, the
energy conservation and environmental protection management policy of
the Group’s office was accredited with ISO 50001 quality management
system certification.
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In order to actively realise the designated management policy in energy
conservation and environmental protection, the Group subtly guides
employees to cultivate awareness of energy conservation and emission
reduction and employs daily work education and guidance to create a
green office environment. The Group trains employees to save energy
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and reduce waste, which can help create a green office culture. The
Group formulates initiatives and encouragement for employees’ daily
behaviours, such as encouraging employees to switch idle electrical
appliances to “standby” mode, unplugging the chargers of computers
that have been turned off, and other measures. In addition, the Group
has also implemented various targeted environmental protection
guidelines in employees’ workplaces.
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documents or reports with Forest
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the ecosystem
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Not only does the Group attaches great importance to the green office
awareness of employees, but also strives to promote the awareness of
residents on environment protection in residential districts within the
management scope. The Group has initiated a number of waste sorting
activities in residential areas. Through organising volunteers, training and
waste categorization knowledge quiz, the Group promotes residents’
awareness on waste categorization.

Climate Change

The Group understands that the crisis brought about by climate change
is threatening industry assets and operational safety. The Group has
always actively faced climate change and is committed to effectively
identifying climate risks in the course of operations. The Group has
formulated the Climate Change Policy to guide its work on climate
change management, so as to strengthen its ability to resist and adapt to
climate change.

In terms of physical risks, acute physical risks including severe and
frequent extreme weather events such as typhoons, heavy precipitation
and floods, and chronic physical risks such as permanent changes in
weather patterns, average temperature and sea level rise may cause
structural damage to buildings, thereby increasing operating and
maintenance costs. Extreme weather may also disrupt supply chains,
interrupt business operations, and cause revenue loss. In addition, the
health and safety risks of employees may increase due to physical risks
such as typhoons and floods, resulting in an increase in the number of
work-related injuries and affecting the progress of the project and
business operations.
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In terms of transition risks, aggressive regional climate policies and
investors’ attitudes towards climate change pose challenges to the
Group. Hong Kong and Mainland China have adopted stringent
greenhouse gas emission policies and measures, and have set a clear
timetable for achieving carbon neutrality by committing to achieving net
zero emissions by 2050 and 2060 respectively. The Group has to spend
more to optimise the existing facilities in order to achieve the goal of
reducing emissions.

To address the risks associated with climate change, the Group has
formulated various strategies to mitigate, adapt and resist climate
change, thereby reducing the impact of climate change on the business.
The Group formulates and monitors carbon reduction and energy
conservation targets for business operations, enhances the energy
efficiency of its operations by developing green buildings and managing
energy use and carbon emissions in daily operations, and explores
renewable energy production and use opportunities where feasible.

The Group will assess the climate-related risks and opportunities in its
operations, and deepen its understanding of their impacts and related
financial risks and opportunities. In addition, the Group actively maintains
an effective crisis management process to predict, prevent and respond
to extreme weather-related events, and monitor low-carbon transition
market and regulatory changes.

Employment Relationship

Employment Practice and Labour Standard

Talent is the core capital for the sustainable development of an enterprise.
The Group is committed to create a fair and equal employment
environment, and optimise its human resources system and fringe
benefits. In strict compliance with laws and regulations, such as the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Company Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Group has formulated the
Administrative Measure for Human Resources, which covers the human
resources management structure and execution of employment related
policies. At the same time, the Administrative Measure provides
guidelines and procedures in areas including standardised recruitment,
training and performance management, so as to safeguard employees’
lawful rights and interests in terms of different employment issues,
including remuneration, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours,
leaves, other benefits and aspects. The Human Resources and
Administration Centre is responsible for the supervision of the
implementation of relevant policies. Once there is any non-compliances,
human resources departments at all levels are entitled to investigate and
handle the issues.
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As of 31st December 2022, the Group had a total of 10,482 employees, HE-—_E-_—F+_-_A=+—HB A&EBEH*H

and 78% of them are full-time employees.

Total workforce by gender

RiERE S EEAH
Female
M Male
3,518 BiM
6,964
Total workforce by age group
RERENEDEERH
Age 51 or above
51BR A Age 30 or below
1,770 0B AT

2,662

Age 41-50
41E505%
2,266

Age 31-40
31ZE40p%
3,784

10,4828 T ' 78% E L A HE T -

Total workforce by employment type
RERBELESESEH

Top-level management
BRERE
91

Middle-level management
hAREIRE
1,211

General staff
—fRET
9,180

Total workforce by geographical region
BB D ESEE

Hong Kong
&HE
54

Mainland China
AR A
10,428
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The Group aims to secure its sustainable development through the
recruitment of professional talents. In addition, during the recruitment
progress, the Group executes the procedures in accordance with the
Administrative Measure and adheres to the concept of recruiting based
on candidates’ abilities, aiming to make the procedures more transparent
and open. The Group has five major recruitment principles, including:

° The open, fair and just principle

° The morality-first principle

° The meritocracy principle

° The principle of internal promotion before external recruitment
° The family relationship declaration principle

The Group has formulated the annual recruitment plan, monthly
recruitment plan and campus recruitment plan in accordance with the
Administrative Measure. Meanwhile, base on the needs for business
development, the Group has set up three major development channels.
Employees can achieve in-depth development and reflect their personal
values within their specific channel.

Management Channel (E&M)
Senior management and

manager position
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Professional Channel (P)
Profession position
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Business Channel (S)
Sales position
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Three major development paths of the Group
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The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, including
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Disabled Persons.
The Group prohibits any form of discrimination, including gender, age,
nationality, ethnicity, physical and marital status, striving to ensure every
employee has access to equal treatment in terms of training, promotion,
position redesignation, dismissal, layoff, employment conditions and
others. No discrimination occurred in the workplace of the Group during
the reporting period.
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The Group has set up strict review system for recruitment and employee,
and child labour or forced labour is strictly prohibited in the Group. The
Group will conduct background investigation on new employees during
the induction based on internal verification mechanism to ensure the new
employees are legal workers. At the same time, the Group requires
Human Resources and Administration Centers at all levels to complete a
Background Report on job applicants before employment. Employment
approval will be completed before the induction of new employees. An
employee shall present his/her identification documentations on the date
of induction for identity, age and employment history verification. Human
Resources and Administration Centers at all levels will not deal with the
induction procedures in the absence of such identification documentation.
During the reporting period, the Group did not note any use of child
labour or forced labour.

Employees Welfare and Communication

The Group pursues the principle of making good use of top talents and
strives to create an ideal workplace for employees. To this end, while
complying with the relevant national regulations, the Group has
continuously optimised the remuneration system and established the
Administrative Measure for Salary to pay overtime employees according
to policies. The Group follows the relevant national laws and regulations
to formulate welfare policies for employees, including social insurance,
housing provident fund, marriage leave, funeral leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave, breast-feeding leave, etc. The Group also provides
employees with supplementary welfare items in appropriate times,
including festival fees, heating and cooling fees, work meals, travel
expenses, clothing expenses, medical examination fees, mobile phone
fees and transportation subsidies, etc.

The Group encourages employees to pursue work life balance, and
carries out a variety of activities for employees, which not only relaxes the
body and mind, but also enhances team cohesion and promotes the
Group’s sustainable development. In order to strengthen communication
with employees, the Group established an online communication platform
“Le Box” in January 2022. As an internal communication platform, “Le
Box” aims to promote the corporate culture construction and
dissemination and strengthen the employee interaction and care. Its main
functions include corporate culture promotion, cultural benchmarking,
cultural activity registration, self-organised community operation,
employee forum and live streaming.

Sports Club Activities

The Group attaches great importance to the employee health. In order for
the employees to better relieve the work pressure and maintain a healthy
body, the Group has established four sports clubs, including badminton,
football, basketball and snooker. Meanwhile, all employees of the Group
can use the gym of the Group headquarters.
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Badminton Club o 141 members

PERA e Participation rate 88%
° Occupancy rate for single event 100%
e  KE1HA

o  HEEHSHEKB8%
o EREZHMEE100%

Football Club o 142 members

EIREE e Participation rate 77%
° Occupancy rate for single event 100%
e  KE142A

s HEEHZ2EXRTI%
o EBRIEHHEE100%

Basketball Club

R
Snooker Club ° 129 members
RIRHE e Participation rate 77%
o Occupancy rate for single event 100%
e KE129A
o HEEEBHREERTT%
o  ERFFMEX100%
Cultural Activities XALSEE

To enrich the life of employees and increase team cohesion, the Group A TE2EEIMEERREABREE H A&
organised variety activities for employees. During the year, the Group BRTLEZYNEILEH - AFEE - &£
held 8 corporate culture activities for its employees, including festival 2 ¥ TEI B EWN - EHH E R XL/EEE8HE
celebrations, sports leagues and culture activities, etc. Apart from B LI EX(LEE -SEE Tk TR AHEEM
celebrating festivals, such as Lantern Festival and Dragon Boat Festival, RF—REEBEMTEE - mFTEFE R - JRol @
with other colleagues, employees can increase their team cohesion by BAE4EBHSERETFHREE T 2 HNEK
participating in sports activities such as Hopson Sports Day, and vitalise %% - JER TESRE o I REBEER K
working environment. In addition, the Group attaches great importance M E T#zH BHREELEE T EiH & -
to the rights of female employees and actively express its care on female BRI MBI EEE) -

employees. The Group has conducted specific activities at the Women'’s

Day and Mother’s Day.
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Mother’s Day cultural activities

A LTEE

To celebrate the Mother’s Day, the Group held the Best Gift List for AEWMTEHE  NEB LY T B ?1*
Mother's Day and the Competiton of Sharing Photos Taken with  ix3&5& 88| J//(&FA FHEBREZILE -
Mother. A total of 136 employees participated in the activity from the  Ejtt 136 A 228 - S R EBE @A EE - = - J:
Group headquarters, North China, Shanghai, Guangzhou and East (- EM B EE T - BHE T ET
China branches. The winning employee printed the photos, attached RBBH - WM FMEE R —RASXEE T &
greeting cards, and sent it to their mothers. HFEd o

o

# BRSEEN

RENSEE—TEARAENEE, 8FTF, ANEASE—ERT, LeERSIURET
Litetist, SREGRS, RAHBE, ORDWELISRAEER, WX, D05, M

(& © DExme Bom
@ > wmanx

@ swinm

“Best Gift List for Mother’s Day”
(BT EREEE]

The top three winners bought the corresponding gifts and delivered (EBEER =KLMW E THE THESLY - I
them to their mothers. REZEETHHEFH -

Hopson Sports Day
SHEHS

With the headquarters’ support, the Group’s Youth Foundation held HEEELHNLIFET  KEBSEES 8
the 2022 Autumn Games, covering field and track events and W T EB _ZEZT-_—_FHRFTEHe HWEMH
competing events, and built an online registration channel with the “Le & - ZFEHAZXEE > WA BILa]l ¥4 +
Box” platform. A total of 485 employees participated in this activity, }'K @ THRIERAEE - KR EFH HET485 A
and 48 winners were born. S AELTASHEEETF o
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Career Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to its employees’ growth and
development. By continuously enriching cultural of the Group, optimising
training system, improving performance appraisal and evaluation system
and adopting other means, the Group helps employees in realising their
personal values. At the same time, the Group has established diversified
career development channels, namely professional channel, management
channel and sales channel. Channels are interchangeable with each
other, and specific arrangement will be determined according to job
arrangements and individual development.

The Group continuously optimises its training system, striving to provide
effective target trainings for every employee. On the basis of formulation
of the Administrative Measures for Human Resources, the Group has
established the training management system, training course system,
training teacher system and training implementation system that are
compatible with the corporate development and personal growth of
employees. At the same time, in order to make employees actively
participate in trainings organised by the Group and improve their personal
abilities, the Group has adopted the training merit point management,
whereby employees can earn points by participating in training.

During the reporting period, the Group continues to provide diversified
internal training for staff at all levels, including new staff induction training
and regular training, thereby enhancing personal capabilities and
professional knowledge of the staff and realise his/her personal values.
During the reporting year, a total of 9,875 employees of the Group
pursued training with 4.07 training hours on average. The highlights of
some training programs during the year are as follows:
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HE Incentive Management

HEE) Hh EE

The Group attaches great importance to talent attraction and training,
and stimulates organisational vitality and driving force through various
activities and training. The Group has continuously broadened the
talent recruitment channels and implemented the "HE Manpower
Programme" to select college graduates with excellent management
potential. In 2022, the Group held a four-day HE Manpower Training
Camp for 95 management trainees. The activity is themed "Harmony
Hopson Dreams for Sailing", and the activity involves company
strategy, corporate culture, business model and professional courses,
so as to help the trainees study and research and step into the industry
with more confidence.

AEBSEERATRIINEE TEBS
RS RAIR - BEEBENBRES N K
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The Group also organised professional internal training for the project
general managers, the engineering managers and the cost managers,
and all the middle-level staff and general staff, carried out the talent plan,
helped the employees’ career and the enterprise to develop

synchronously, and cultivated key management talents and reserve

candidates.

CAFEBRRERS (A

AEBNMABHALE ITRERELEEKAK
B rEPEBE TR TEENRILE
HEEAE BHEIBRELENGERS
BROEEUREEEASBBESK -

Commander plan — General training camp for on-the-job and reserve projects

EAEE — TRERBEEARIE

In order for the general managers of on-the-job and reserve projects in
all regions of the Group to have a better understanding of their job
roles and improve their corresponding business capabilities, the Group
has launched the “Commander Plan — General training camp for on-

the-job and reserve projects”. The training camp discusses the industry

future, real estate life cycle management system and other topics
through senior management sharing, case sharing and topic

discussion. In addition, in order for the employees to have a more

accurate understanding of the role, they can also have a deeper
recognition of the work through operating sand table simulation,
benchmarking and other links. A total of 42 employees participated in
this activity.
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For the project managers and cost managers of various Hopson
projects, the Group conducted online professional empowerment
training on the key professional control points of project engineering
and cost lines. A total of 203 managers participated in this training.

2022 FERIRER

IREI Tisi21E
mfm%is
LFTAELS

il

The Group has conducted general competency training for all general
staff and middle-level employees. The training course is centred on four
levels of core consciousness, thinking tendency, behavioural skills and
methods, and released three special trainings through the Hopson
Academy platform, including “Asking for results from meetings”, “How
to communicate efficiently across departments” and “Project
management from structure perspective”. A total of 1,451 employees
participated in this training.
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Hopson Youth Foundation

The Group has also established Hopson Youth Foundation to encourage
young employees to sharpen their competitive edges. The council of the
foundation is operated under the principle “majority decision”, and the
members of the council are elected by all employees. The foundation
provides employees with professional courses, qualification examinations,
advanced studies in prestigious schools and other supports to improve
their work performance and professional ambitions.

The Group focuses on establishing sustainable development zone
between employees and the Group by providing performance incentives
to its employees. The Group has established its employee incentive
system through the Performance Management System of Hopson
Development Group. The Group conducts appraisal management based
on the principles of objectivity, fairess, justice, comprehensiveness and
truthfulness, aiming to improve the quality, ability and performance of
employees. At the same time, each employee’s performance is recorded
pursuant to the Administrative and Filing Management Measures, and
performance incentive is implemented pursuant to the Incentives
Management Measures of Hopson Development Holdings Limited.

Employees Health and Safety

The Group attaches high importance to employees’ health and safety.
Striving to the “Safety First” management attitude, the Group guarantees
to provide employees with a safe workplace. The Group strictly abides by
relevant laws and regulations, including the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Administrative
Regulations on the Work Safety of Construction Projects and the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as to prevent and mitigate
major safety risks at source, as well as continuously reduce the
occurrence of various incidents.

In terms of construction site safety, the Group formulated the Manual on
the Safety Standard for the On-site Construction Management, and the
Safety Committee was set up. In addition, the Group also requires its
employees to strictly abide by the safety policies and management
systems of the Group or affiliated contractors. In order to further prevent
serious safety incidents, the Group provides necessary protective
equipment to its employees on regular basis. In order to make employees
get aware of their physical condition, the Group arranges regular body
check and provides additional medical insurance for employees. In order
to improve the safety awareness of employees and reduce the chance of
safety accidents, the Group requires its employees to complete the online
training for on-site safe construction management. In respect of the
property segment, the Group regulates occupational health and safety
management in accordance with ISO 45001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management Standard. Moreover, the Group conducts property
fire drill, aiming to let employees understand the dangerous of fire, the
handling methods for small fire and the procedures and methods of
evacuation, thereby ensuring every employee get familiar with the
operation of fire apparatus.
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The Group strictly abides by the Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurance, and employees should truthfully report any work-related injury
occurred during working hours or on the way back to office or home in
accordance with the said regulation. During the reporting year, there
were O work-related fatalities (2021: 0; 2020: 0) in the Group. The
number of lost days due to work injury was 767 days (2021: 791 days;
2020: 1,851 days), representing 0.05% (2021: 0.03%; 2020: 0.07%) of
the total days scheduled to be worked for all headcount.

During our daily operations, the Group has installed surveillance security
equipment at office buildings to safeguard the personal and property
safety of employees. In addition, we set up emergency exits and
emergency access in each office, so as to evacuate employees and
vehicles to a safe place as soon as possible in case of safety emergency,
thus reducing number of causality. We have also installed air purification
devices and placed green plants in the office area to maintain good
indoor air quality and beautify the environment. At the same time, the
Group has adopted a series of measures to protect the mental and
physical health of employees.
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Internal online mental health training by Hopson
AHERNITRE LR EES

As emotional health becomes one of the important issues in the society,
the Group also attaches great importance to the mental health of its
employees. Hence, the Group has organised a series of online mental
health training to care for the physical and mental health of employees,
including stress management, self-motivation and emotion recognition
and understanding programme, aiming to increase employees’
awareness on emotional health and reduce their life and work pressures,
S0 as to improve work efficiency.
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In face of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has adopted various
measures and strictly implemented the requirements under government
pandemic prevention policies, working together with our employees to
overcome this challenging period. The Group has formulated the
COVID-19 Pandemic Prevention Guidelines, including work resumption
arrangements and guidelines, as well as daily pandemic prevention alert.
We will check the travel code and body temperature of employees before
letting them entering office. The Group conducted regular nucleic acid
tests and provided pandemic prevention items. At the same time, the
Group required regular comprehensive sterilisation in office area. Al
employees are required to wear masks at all times in the office. To
safeguard the safety of our employees and reflect the humane
management of the Group, based on the pandemic prevention policies in
the city where the employee is located, the Group arranged employees
to work remote from office, and they can check-in using WeChat
corporate version.

Social Responsibility

Hopson strives to actively assume social responsibilities and create value
for the society while increasing its profits. Adhering to the brand
philosophy of “enjoying high-quality lifestyle”, the Group has actively
assumed its social responsibility as a housing enterprise in many areas
for multiple years, such as student financial aids, pandemic fighting and
rural revitalisation. In the past 30 years, Hopson has changed the scope
and methods of performing corporate social responsibility according to
its own abilities and the needs of the times.

Establishing Sustainability in Communities

In order to unite social love and deliver positive energy together, Hopson
Development constantly innovates public welfare measures, brings public
welfare into the community, and drives more social forces to participate
in public welfare activities through its own brand effect. In 2022, when
Hopson Development celebrates its 30th founding anniversary, the Group
continued to launch a series of Hopson Heart-warming public welfare
activities with the theme of “Crossing over 30”, and launched different
activity themes by combining online and offline methods to enhance
people’s attention and experience, and also put more efforts into public
welfare undertakings to promote the sustainable community
development.

During the reporting period, the Group devoted itself to developing
diversified businesses and developing forward-looking strategies to
stabilise the market. The Group won the “2022 Socially Responsible
Enterprise” Award at the Futuristic Living 2022. Meanwhile, by actively
participating in a number of charity and sponsorship activities, the Group
has demonstrated its corporate social responsibility in a number of better
life areas, such as housing and public welfare, and has been recognised
by the public by winning the title of “Better Life Service Provider” for the
third consecutive year in 2022. In the future, Hopson Development will
continue to surpass itself, bring more beautiful changes to life and create
brand-new public welfare achievements.
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“Helping Farmers with Love” Charity Event

[EfREE ] BOMRLRED

In May 2022, at the 30th anniversary of the establishment of Hopson
Development, the Group proactively performed it corporate social
responsibility by continuously investing in charity work and sending love
to remote rural villages. The Group and Yiju Lenong, a cooperative unit
of the State Council’'s Poverty Alleviation Office, jointly organised a
charity event “Helping Farmers with Love” to promote the public
welfare concept of “purchase instead of donation” and build a
sustainable agricultural supporting ecosystem. Through the “Summer
Market” campaign carried out with a combination of online live
streaming and offline activities, the Group offered urban families with
selected quality agricultural products, such as wolfberry, millet congee
and Shayuan peanuts. The “selling-out” of quality affordable agricultural
products can revitalise the countryside. In addition, farmers can also
steadily increase their income sources in the long term by increasing
the sales channels of agricultural products. At present, the Group has
conducted the “Helping Farmers with Love” charity event for three
years, with a total of 30 activities under “Helping Farmers with Love”
were held. The Group has issued farmer subsidy couple of
approximately RMB50,000 in aggregate, placed over 2,400 charity
orders and made donations of nearly RMB120,000 to farmers, helping
over 2,400 rural households in Hebei, Shandong, Liaoning, Gansu,
Jiangxi, Sichuan, Fujian, Guangxi and Tibet.
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EREHIERTZE BEOMRIATES
TENE/RBINARES BEUEED
BRAEREE - AEEBBIEZME]EH
BOKBEAAT A - DR DIEEEE
BEER UWGLTEBERGETEHEENE
ANEEBTRE- BEEENEERIED
EINEETEA AR - EFE R
BRMENREREEEE RERBTHIE
MEARR - BHZER - BLOPEARSEHE
BEEBRIF AERTLBEEFEHION A
EREEDARBASESEL BAORE
EE2400% M0 BEREFGO12E L 51
bR FEHE I/ Wl wmE
& 70 & PO 5 i 2 P R 2,400 F o

o

Products under the “Helping Farmers with Love” activity

BOHRESR

Charity Donation Activities

Hopson Development is deeply involved in the public welfare and
agricultural assistance, and is committed to building a sustainable
community. The Group also continues to focus on charitable activities
and non-profit-making organisations, and actively supports the material
and fund donation. In 2022, the Group adhered to corporate
responsibility, and donated a total of HK$18,245,000.

DNEBEED

AEBIRAM AT RES B HERUF
BERIMBOAE THREBREESELTIR
EEFEE BEEREIBFEENERER -
ZZF  AEBFEACERMT BEBRAR
18,245,000/% JT °

AEHEIREBERAT —ZT__FFH® 155



In addition, the Group also encourages employees to give back to the
society by participating in different volunteer and charity activities, and
spreads love to more places by launching a series of public welfare
activities, such as “Hopson heart-warming Yi tea” and “Donating Books
to Build a Bright Future”. Meanwhile, the Group also shows up in the
anti-pandemic front line. During the pandemic, the Group assisted the
community nucleic acid testing and donated various pandemic prevention
materials to the front-line anti-pandemic workers. At the same time, by
integrating and optimising resources, the Group opened up an “in-house
purchase channel” for the owners to overcome the purchasing difficulties,
and sent a pandemic prevention and health package. Hopson
Development aroused fight spirit, actively responded to the government’s
call to fulfill its social responsibilities, and helped the pandemic prevention
and control through multiple channels and forms to build a pandemic
prevention fortress. During the reporting period, the Group had a total of
380 employees participating in the volunteer service.
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Rtz s AEBETHEREEESETRDN
ETIREELHOBELE  BBBEISRa
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B-RIRERITEERBZRNREME - Bty
R AEEEEAEAE(LER REXTAE
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FEER - A EAIRFETM L BERAREBF
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iiE - W EEHRERE - REHAR - A&H
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Hopson Heart-warming Yi Tea

SRz

YiRmR O

Under the guidance of Social Assistance of China and Leishan County
Rural Revitalization Bureau, Hopson Development and Yiju Lenong
launched the annual public welfare activity of “Hopson heart-warming
Yitea”. By innovating the tea cup form, the mountainous fragrance of “Yi
tea” floated into urban families. In response to the call of Rural
Revitalization, the Group vigorously supported the development of
agriculture, rural areas and farmers, and adopted diversified poverty
alleviation methods such as public subscription of tea cups, farmer
visiting and education assistance to help more farmers and promote
rural development. Every time Hopson subscribes for a cup of tea,
RMBO.1 would be donated to the public welfare fund. In addition,
Hopson Development and Yiju Lenong visited Leishan County together
to convey greetings to local farmers and understand the various local
difficulties, and followed up for return visit.

“';’} " :
oy

e

Hopson Development visited Leishan County
with Yiju Lenong
EHEIRESFELER —RIFELE

-

“Yi Tea';
REi%-

156

EHAREHSEERE FLUEBTIRER
HET BMESELREEISGREE ViR
ROJFEADEE - BBRIFAKRHEN
FEALUENYIR R IWBERAABTRE - &
SEHZEREBNEL KROAXBH=ZREX
BR O RAACERBEREKN  BEPEM - #
BEERBEZTIKESIRX EHEZEF
THBNBER - AEBRE-—MNRAN B
BOIXTBARTZES - RN BERIRES
FRE-EIFELE BHEEHEP, B
RS T B 10 % 05 T IR 2 - Y0 2 BEOE AN @
MEP - EERE-

“Hopson Heart-warming” activity for poverty
alleviation in Leishan County
SHAIRELRIGMMaR HEBERK
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Hopson Heart-warming: Donating Books to Build a Bright Future

BfREE FBERRE

In July, 2022, Hopson launched the love linkage for five regional —ZT=——&+ A 44 EIR2E A KNE1EHIE
projects in China, set up a “Donating Books to Build a Bright Future” EHE 0O S fIEBRBREIZEXRKK]|E
Love Donation Corner at the project site, and established a love maiing O BEA WHRAE LB FERBE X X
area to facilitate caring people to donate idle books, bringing hopes for R EEFRELATEREEZE  ARE
children in remote mountainous areas. The Group donated a total of |[NEMZFERKEZNF L - FHHEt AL
over 5,000 books to children in mountainous areas. This is the fourth [&ZFIEME 750008 A2 - E 2848 E
year of the “Donating Books to Build a Bright Future” activity, and also [ EZ X KK MW FE4FE B E2EF DL AR
the beginning of the continuous charity course transcendence and ¥ TETFB# - THIAL KHFI LA -

growth.

Internal book donation activity at Hopson
EEBIRADIBREE

e

TS e P T RS
38 Mg 1E P

DONATION CERTIFICATE
O T

asemum
BHBRLIUERPUNXONER , ARNEE . B
ERoINEE, cEATESRLOER,

)
# gL, S RS ",?‘f
tmEsTeERRLE
ZO=ZENAR
Corner of book donation Donation certificate
BEEZEZ A BREEE
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Hopson Development's “Pandemic Road Guarding” anti-pandemic activity

[ZEk~F#] BEARNEEE

In March 2022, with the escalation of pandemic prevention and control, —ZE-—-F€=H  -MBEZEEBEHEHH K&
the East China Service Team of Hooplife Esteem Property, a subsidiary ETAEETESEMEER RSB BAE[D
of the Group, responded quickly to cooperate with the residing strest & B & PAEHE  HRAEE S - Jk H 309
and community to stop the pandemic, sent 309 property volunteers to  Z )2 EFEE T IETE — &5 B4 EZE
support the anti-pandemic front line, set up 46 nucleic acid detection #3812 - FPFIREMBRABBI1E A RE
points, and delivered home more than 110,000 antigen reagents, 7 :T20& A K KX &8 [FE B8 17 o [ 85 -
which ensured the normal nucleic acid detection of nearly 200,000 EFEEEABHoE P ¥ 124 FP9x3
people. Meanwhile, volunteers also provided more than 100,000 home X BE &%) - R X RIE ~ £ PI UG B 87 3 & AR 75
delivery services for more than 20,000 owners, such as food delivery, FE10E X FEEEETRENIEFERE o
drug purchasing, courier delivery and garbage collection, to ensure

each owner’s normal family operation.

Delivery of anti-pandemic materials

MR E X

Assist in nucleic acid tests

15 Bh 1% B B A
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Part X: Sustainability Report (Continued) % + 3 %

Performance Data Summary

AYBBERE

Environmental KPIs'

ARERRRE (E) ||

REREENER

A1.2 Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in total and intensity*

BERBAEHEREE"
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2)

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
by project area

GHG emissions (Scope 1)°

GHG emissions (Scope 2)°

REREHRAESE (BE1R2)

iﬂﬂ

\ HH}

}

T BHEEEAE

HH}

REHME (FE1)®
BEREERE (BE2)C

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

FELERERENEBREE

Total hazardous waste

Total hazardous waste by project area
Lamp/Bulb-Disposal

Electrical and Electronic Waste-Disposal’
Electrical and Electronic Waste-Recycling”

Industrial waste oil-Recycling”

EEERMREE
BEEBEENRS/
BIEBHEEANE
BE/ BB -—REE
ErERRBE—REE
BETERRME-CWE

TXREm—ERET

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

FELEBREREYEEREE
Total non-hazardous waste’

Total non-hazardous waste
by project area
Food waste-Disposal
Food waste-Recycling
Construction waste from interior
renovation-Disposal
Domestic waste-Disposal
Construction waste from site work-Disposal”
Paper-Recycling”
Plastic-Recycling”
Glass-Recycling”
Metal-Recycling”
Metal recycled in construction site”

Wood recycled in construction site”

Earthwork-Backfill”

BERREVMRE’

BEEEEVRAS RBREE

AHE
RYMEH -REE

RYBEH - BRE

2= e e

REZLEEN —EES

ERNIR -RES

B/ THEN -—REE
M — e’

BB - OlE’

Wi — O E’

TE - OkE’

RS TS B E
RS T AN H B

T —mEE’

R HE A E (BE &2)

Tonnes of CO.e
INWE — % s ﬁ])_\ 2=
Tonnes of CO,e/m?
D _ElHE RS
oK
Tonnes of CO,e
A _AtmEE
Tonnes of CO,e
A AR EE

Kg
Fr
Kg/m?
FR/FTHHK
Kg
T
Kg
Fr
Kg
Fr
Kg
Fr

Tonnes
N
Tonnes/m?
NWE T T K
Kg
F5
Kg
Fr
Tonnes
N
Kg
T
Tonnes
N
Kg
F5
Kg
Fr
Kg
T
Kg
T
Tonnes
N
Tonnes
N
Tonnes
N

BEAIRS

EmBRRAA

53,796

0.0118

1,027

52,769

1,894
0.0004
1,848

22

15

200,526
0.0439
6,698,570
98,500
21,972
9,369,576
5,842
16,315
2,338
3,000
23,466

0

0

156,600

57,306

0.0088

1,299

56,007

2,535
0.0004
1,962
130
281

163

81,207
0.0125
7,877,540
104,800
23,801
9,938,040
705
23,692
4,521
3,530
26,308
835

1,388

36,500

T _FFHR 159



Part X: Sustainability Report (Continued) % + 8% :

Environmental KPIs'

REREENER

CIESE

2,

& (&)

& ¥R

A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity
REBEINEER/IEEEREAXEREE

Petrol” kil

Diesel” seom’

Natural gas’ KRR

Total direct energy consumption’ BERgEREREET

BEERERAERR REBEE
AHE
SNEESHRE

Total direct energy consumption by
project area
Total purchased electricity

Total purchased heat INBE B E

Total indirect energy consumption HiERREER

Total indirect energy consumption by project area L REFE LB B ME

FTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKEREE
Water Consumption’ FEKE
Total water consumption intensity by project area #8¥E/k 8 % & /1218 H H &
irE
Recycled water BIERAKE

The selection criteria for the environmental data in this report are:

)

The ownership of all selected projects is more than 50%.

) Hotels and property investment projects continuously operated by the Group
are selected.
) Property development projects with a higher proportion of turnover during the

year are selected, which represents 80% of the total turnover.

In 2022, the Group’s data covered 1 headquarters office and 25 property projects
including 1 hotel operation project, 8 projects under development, 16 operating
property investment and property development projects.

In 2021, the Group’s data covered 1 headquarters office and 25 property projects
including 1 hotel operation project, 8 projects under development, 16 operating
property investment and property development projects.

The Group’s GHG emissions are calculated with reference to ISO 14064 greenhouse
gas validation and verification specifications.

For the calculation of the GHG emissions from Scope 1, the Group uses the National V
standard automobile gasoline average density (0.747kg/L) and the National Standard
of the People’s Republic of China GB19147-2013 automobile diesel (V) average
density (0.83kg/L).

For the calculation of the GHG emissions from Scope 2, the Group uses the carbon
emission factors set forth in the “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”, guidance material on the ESG issued by
the Stock Exchange.

The reason for the sharp drop in this indicator is due to the change in the scope of
environmental data in 2022.

KWh 0 359
TRE

KWh 29,266 76,466
TR

KWh 5,096,293 6,395,463
TR

KWh 5,125,559 6,472,288
TR

KWh/m? 1.1209 0.9963
FRE/TFIK

KWh 80,837,736 80,514,574
TR

GJ 60,491 62,508
HE

KWh 97,640,940 97,878,135
TRE

KWh/m? 21.35 15.07
TFREFHK

m® 2,874,439 2,653,335
A K

m®/m? 0.6286 0.3931
m® 9,836 26,280
AR
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Social KPIs

HERBEARER

Part X: Sustainability Report (Continued) £+ % : AJFE R RS (8)

B1.1 Total workforce (by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region)
EEAHGRME ERERE FRANRLESZ)

Male S Number 6,964 7,697
A
Female pegcd Number 3,518 4,078
ANEL
Top-level Management =R E R Number 91 117
A
Middle-level Management R EIEE Number 1,211 1,251
ANEL
General staff —RET Number 9,180 10,407
N
Age 30 or below 307k A T~ Number 2,662 2,995
ANEL
Age 31-40 31 2 405% Number 3,784 4,246
A
Age 41-50 412 508% Number 2,266 2,547
ANEL
Age 51 or above 51553k A b Number 1,770 1,987
A
Hong Kong &5 Number 54 52
ANEL
Mainland China R[] A Number 10,428 11,723
N
B1.2 Employee turnover rate (by gender, age group and geographical region)
EERALE(RMER  FRANKBEE D)
Male Bk Percentage 33.63% 26.61%
AL
Female 7 Percentage 31.10% 23.49%
Bkt
Age 30 or below 308K A T Percentage 49.66% 40.60%
AL
Age 31-40 312 405% Percentage 34.33% 24.40%
Bkt
Age 41-50 41 E505% Percentage 21.76% 18.73%
AL
Age 51 or above 515580 A £ Percentage 18.19% 13.94%
[l
Hong Kong EF5 Percentage 18.52% 25.00%
AL
Mainland China FRE A Percentage 32.85% 25.53%
Btk
B2.1 Number of work-related fatalities and ratio
EIEBEMECHABRELR
Number of work-related fatalities TIEREMILT MW E TAZ  Numberand percentage 0 0
ABREDL
B2.2 Number of lost days due to work injury
EIGEAXIFAR
Number of lost days due to work injury TEBEANET TR Days 767 791
X
Lost day rate BAI(ER&E X Percentage 0.05% 0.03%
(Lost days/Total days
scheduled to be worked
for all headcount)
AL
(BAIERE 28
BT ItEmBE)
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
MR EEERNEIWEZIEETS L
Male Bk Percentage 81.73% 96.66%
Bot
Female e Percentage 100.00% 98.33%
Bk
Top-level Management EREREE Percentage 68.13% 100.00%
Bot
Middle-level Management RREEE Percentage 53.84% 100.00%
B
General staff —MET Percentage 99.79% 96.88%
Bot
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Social KPIs

HERBEARER

Part X: Sustainability Report (Continued) % + 8% :

CIES3:

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee (by gender and employee category)

BEEEZHZIN PR (U REERNE )

Male Esgia
Female Z
Top-level Management SRER
Middle-level Management PRER
General staff —H%RET

B5.1 Number of suppliers (by geographical region)

HEBEHE (RHLEES)
Mainland China A A

B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received

BERRERRBRENRFHA

Number of products and services
related complaints received

BIERNE & MRS R SR
#E

B8.2 Community Investment - resources contributed to the focus area

HERE-EEIERMBHAER

Total amount of donations to the community NmEEREEAE

Number of volunteers EFRERB A

Hours
/J\ =
Hours
/J\ H%
Hours
INEE
Hours
INEE
Hours
AN

Number

# B

Cases
=
7~

HKS$
BT
Number

AE
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3.64
4.66
14.08
12.70

3.39

507

1,935

(During the

year, 99.48% of
complaints were
followed up and
resolved)
(FABRER
527X 99.48% HY
%)

18,245,000
380

7.59
7.61
17.33
10.08

7.18

666

1,441

(During the

year, 96.11% of
complaints were
followed up and
resolved)
(FRERER
52X 96.11% K
(FES)

171,589,000
380
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Index
EBARGHM(RE HEREREE)ESIES

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER -EH —REERFERERER

Disclosure Section

a5 = o

TS

A. Environmental
Aspect A1: Emissions

General Disclosure
— MR

KPIA1.1

BB BUEIRATA

KPIA1.2

RS AE IR IRAL2

KPIA1.3

BBAE MR IRALS

KPIA1.4

HREMIERALA

KPIA1.5

HRERIERALS

KPIA1.6

BB ERIEIZA16

BE

BEA: Ry

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BER R R AR B Y -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BEE(BE) RfREZ (BE2)REREEENE (AN &) & (1
ER)BE(RESEN BIEREFE) °

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FMELEEEERNEECAMAE) R(WER)TBE (WMIASEEE

- SERIEHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FEEEEEEDRE UEHE) R(WER)BE(MUNEGEEE
fr - GERIEHH) -

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
M FAEI L MBENE B R RAREDE L B IZATERER A 2 5

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HREEESREFTEEMN A RIERAFIZHRERBRER
RIEDE L B RATER S 55

Aspect A2 Use of resources [BHA2 : ERfE A

General Disclosure
—RIEE

KPIA2.1

BE IR IR A2

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

RERBSMEER / XEELR(WWE - fof) 2FEE (U TE
FTREBAE)RERE(WNEESHE N BERBAE)

BEAREEER A

Environmental Protection

BRI

Not applicable — This
KPlis immaterial to the
business operation of the
Group

TE A (L ERE RN AR E
BB NEK )

Performance Data
Summary

BB

Performance Data
Summary

ERBIERE

Performance Data
Summary

BRBERE

Environmental Protection

R R

Environmental Protection

RIERE

Environmental Protection
BIARE

Performance Data
Summary

BRBERE

B _FEFER

137-143

159

159

159

137-143

137-143

137-143

160

163



Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Disclosure Section

FEHE - EH -

KPIA2.2

BRERIERA2.2

KPIA2.3

BB B IR IEA2.3

KPIA2.4

RS AE IR IRA2.4

KPIA2.5

PR ERIEIRA25

Aspect A3 The environment and Natural Resources [g HA3 : IR

General Disclosure
— MR

KPIA3.1

5 4B U IR A3

—RERERBARERER

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BEKERTE(WMABESEMN BHEKZMEHHE)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
HFTEI VM RERA NG ERERAREDE L EMRMN LR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

Sk EUE B KR 7] B E e R
MREFNELERMEMA T -

VA R BT RTS8 A 7K W zs B R

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

LRk T B

=
E-°

KM@ (UEAE)R(WER) BEEEAS

BRAARER

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

managethem
HREBFDEHBRERRAERNEAZERERNEEFHEY
BHITH -

Aspect A4 Climate Change EHA4 : RIFE 1L

General Disclosure
— MR

KPIA4.1

B8 4A BRI 1R A4

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions

taken to manage them.
HREARAEEHETAEEATENERAREBRSEE RE
178
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WEZE

Performance Data 160

Summary

BRBBEHE

Environmental Protection 137-143

RERE

Environmental Protection 137-143

RERE

Not applicable — This KPI
is irrelevant to the business
operation of the Group so
it is not applicable for the
disclosure.

TEA (LEFEERAE
SEMNFEXEBEEM
FEXTEA - MAAER

BEe)

Environmental Protection 137-143

RERE

Environmental Protection 137-143

RERE

Environmental Protection 142-143
— Climate Change
RARE — NIRE(
Environmental Protection 142-143

— Climate Change

s

RRRE - REZ
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Section

FELER -EH —REERERERER REEDH

B.Social #&

Employment and Labour Practices {Efg & % T ¥ #
Aspect B1 Employment EHEB1 : Ef&

General Disclosure Employment Relationship 143-154

— M= (R

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or Performance Data 161
part-time), age group and geographical region. Summary

B AE MR IR B RIER - EREAE(NME2BARRE) FRAMNRMEZSNESE BEUHBEHE
2o

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Performance Data 161
region. Summary

FAREMIEEBI2 RUER - FREJRMERESNEERKLE - BEHHEREE

Aspect B2 Health and Safety EHEB2 : R@EHZ &2

General Disclosure Employment Relationship 152-154
— Employee Health and
Safety

— = EEBER—
BEIRERRZR

KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the Employment Relationship 152-154
past three years including the reporting year. — Employee Health and
Safety
A A BUE 12 B2.1 BE=ZF (PEERFE)BFAI TS AR E - EEBER—
BETIRREEEZSR
Performance Data 161
Summary

BEHEERE

KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Employment Relationship 152-154
— Employee Health and
Safety

BAgEMIEEB22 BEIBEAIERS- EEEEFR—
BIREREZ:E
Performance Data 161
Summary

ERBERE

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Employment Relationship 152-154
how they are implemented and monitored. — Employee Health and
Safety
FRENIEIEB2.3 HAMRANBERRETE2REIE  ARBERTRERS X - ERAR—
BETRERLZE

Aspect B3 Development and Training & EB3 : 2 & & 3Z 3l

General Disclosure Employment Relationship 149-152
— Career Development
and Training

—REE ERAER—
B3 B R R aE

BHEIREEBRAR —T__FF® 165
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Section

TEER BFEH —REBERBEEERER REEEH

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Performance Data 161
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Summary

A 5245 MR 1R B3 RUEBKEEREN(MNMEREEE FREEEZ)HI>NIIE EUHERE
BEOH -

KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender Performance Data 162
and employee category. Summary

FAREMIEEB2 RUFIREEMEFES  BHEETKIZINFHRE - BREERZ

Aspect B4 Labor Standards B HEB4 : % T % 8

General Disclosure Employment Relationship 143-146
—Employment Practice
and Labour Standard

— BT BIEAR—
EIEEHI RS TEE

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review recruitment practices to avoid Employment Relationship 143-146

child labor and forced labor. —Employment Practice
and Labour Standard

PR ERIEIRBAT HILRA B EMOEEARRET RBHST - EERE —
BEEN RS THRE

KPIB4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Employment Relationship 143-146
discovered. —Employment Practice
and Labour Standard
FREMIEIEBL2 HAERRERB R ERE BB RATRIE o EEAR—

ERES RS ITHRE

Operational Practices & & 18
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management B EB5 : i fE §8 & 12

General Disclosure Responsible Operations —  127-129
Supply Chain Management

— R EE BEEYEE -
frrEEER

KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Performance Data 162
Summary

BREMIEEBS RMEBSKHERNHEAE - BREERE

KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Responsible Operations —  127-129

suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how Supply Chain Management
they are implemented and monitored.
B 45 IR 1EB5.2 W EEAERAEEINES MERTEEEMNNHERESE W 8aEEEE —

REBEMNNHITRERFE - HEHER

KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social Responsible Operations —  127-129
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and SuPPly Chain Management
monitored.

BREMIEIEBs.S M EHEZNHEZESERSNBRERMSEARNEE  ULE BETEE —
BRITRERFE- HpE e
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Section

FELER -EH —REERERERER REEDH

KPIB5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Responsible Operations —  127-129
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and SuPply Chain Management
how they are implemented and monitored.

BB AE MIEIEB5.4 Ml EREHEESEREZPARREQELBENETE  ULAKE BEEEE —
BITRERAE- HAERER
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility EHEB6 : EmEE
General Disclosure Responsible Operations —  129-133
Product and Service Quality
— = BEMFEE—
EmkR%mE
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Not applicable — This KPI
safety and health reasons. is irrelevant to the business

operation of the Group so
it is not applicable for the
disclosure.

42 18 IR 1% B6.1 EEICREXERAETRLY2ERREAMARKNE L TEAWESHREK
SENETEZERMLEM
S TER - WAER

)
KPIB6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and Responsible Operations —  133-136
how they are dealt with. Customer Service
FiREMIEEBS2 EEERERLRENRFEEIALEEIE- BEMEEE—
PR
Performance Data 162
Summary
ERBERE
KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Notapplicable — This KPI
intellectual property rights. is irrelevant to the business

operation of the Group so
it is not applicable for the
disclosure.

R AEIEB6.3  HMMEGEERRESZMEREAE@ENED - TEA (W ERERA
SEMNFEEBEEM
FYTER - WER

BEo)
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Responsible Operations —  127-129
Supply Chain Management
BAREMIEIEB64 THlMmERTRABELRERBKER - BEMEEE—
L 58 B 1P

Responsible Operations —  129-133
Product and Service Quality

BEMTEE—
EmkR%EmnE
KPIB6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and Responsible Operations —  133-136
how they are implemented and monitored. Customer Service
B4R 18 IR 1EB6.5 MEBEERHMRERLBEE  ARBERTRERS X - BEAEE-BPRB

BHEIREEARRAR —ZT__FFWm 167



Part X: Sustainability Report (Continued) % + % : B R R KRE (8)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Section

FEHER -EH —REERERERER REEH

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption EEB7 : R &5

General Disclosure Responsible Operations 126-127
— Compliance Operations
and Anti-Corruption

— MR BEMTEE—
AHREBRRRES
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Responsible Operations 126-127

brought against us or our employees during the reporting period — ComP”ance Qperations
and the outcomes of the cases. and Anti-Corruption
742 18 IR 1R BT .1 FE#&E@W:Y&H&EEE&&IE% WESHAREMHORE BEELE -

EEEA S ARELRRES
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Responsible Operations 126-127
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. — Compliance Operations
and Anti-Corruption
BSREMIEIEB7.2 MM EEERERIERF A REERITRERFE - BEAYE —
AamELRRENS
KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and Responsible Operations 126-127
staff. — Compliance Operations
and Anti-Corruption
BB MIEIEB7.  HMmMEZEREIRMOREISHEI - BEEEE—

BREERRENR

Community #&
Aspect B8 Community Investment EHBS : #t B&R &

General Disclosure Social Responsibility 154-158
— R HeEE
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Social Responsibility 154-158

concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
A8 48 5 12 B8 EXEREB(WHE BREBE - HIFK -@FE -t -BE) - (HeEfT

KPIB8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Performance Data 162
Summary
FREWIEIEB2 AEIBEMHAZARGNEENKER) - BREERZ
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Independent Auditor’'s Report ¥& 3/ #% & il 3§ &

EY:

To the shareholders of
Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 176 to 317, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted in our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HeLAREEERAAZERR
(RERZZMEZZBERRA)

=R

BMERAALEAREEAR AR (A TEHE
[ERARDEEFARATHEHREIESE]
FNRFIT6ENTAZEEMBHREK > BEN =
Z_F+-A=+—BzZRAFBRRAEK
LRBEZALFEZGERGER HEE2ENK
ARK HGEEDZEDRNGEERERER
ARGEMBHRRME BRIEZSHAERES

go

BMRE ZESREVBHRREBREET B S
MASEGNEEHBERELIEEMHT S
MR TESER-_ZE-__F+=-A=+—H
MEEMBRAREBEZB L FENLEE Y
BRERGEEESRE YEEREEIQA
BHM TR EX A5G -

RRMEAR

BMPCREFESFHMASHEMNIBTER
EANETE - RAEXFENTAENT
EEERRE KA B & ot 47 & B 75 88 K 4
EHEF/RBOREE—THL - REFES
SN RG R EE L AERZTAIOAT
BRI RMABIRNEEE XEETT
A EMmEREREME - RFAHEE - RFAMH
ESHNENBRIBERR AL A HMMER
BRIBMER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued) ¥& 37 #% E BT 3k & (&)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
HRESER

FAEEITER

AREBFETAEREBERMNFIXRHE B 5Y
AHARGEMBHRRNBARIEENSTHE-
FELEHRSERMBFEREAMB R G
ARARREEN RMALTSHELEREHR
EBENER BAYTEAE-—SFHEESTTE
BRI R AL BB R

BMEBITABRE & EE B F 476 BB #H
REAFEMHEET| —HEANET BRELF
FERBMNEME- Bt RANFFTIERRE
HOTRARHFGSEEMBRREABRR M
REEmMEOBRFEF KA TEFEFNG
R BERETAEBEMATHRERF  REM
MAEMBHRRBEREBTERIREER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESANTEEBARESSR

Valuation of investment properties

BREWMRNMGE

The Group owned investment properties in Mainland China which were
measured at fair value and their aggregate carrying amount was
HK$83,834 million as at 31 December 2022, which represented 28% of
the Group’s total assets. The Group has engaged an external valuer to
perform the valuation of these properties as at 31 December 2022.
EEERPEAMEEREME ZEWEDNRAFEFE B
TR CF+ - A=T-HWREAE RIS EEE T HE
REEBBEEN28%  EXEEEZBINFEEMBZEMER
—TECCF+ZA=+—HWHEETTGE

Significant judgement is required to determine the fair value of the
investment properties, which reflect market conditions as at the end of
the reporting period. The fair value of completed investment properties
was determined using the income capitalisation approach by taking into
account unobservable inputs, including prevailing market rents and
capitalisation rate. The fair value of investment properties under
construction was determined using the residual method by taking into
account unobservable inputs including market rents, capitalisation rate
and estimated cost to completion. Changes in these assumptions would
have significant effects on the valuation of investment properties.
Accordingly, the valuation of investment properties is identified as a key
audit matter.
BEREVENLRTEERRBESHROTSMARN) T EMEL
BAHE - BEENNEREMENRTFTERBRABR(LERTE
EREZEREIAAEENBARE BRERTOTSEE RER(L
K- ERREVENRTERBAIKEETE  EFZEREAAH
ENBRABE BETSEES BRMEEMMEFERKER - % F
BROFLCHEREMENREEEEATE At REWE
WL EREERBRESEE -

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

B EFREFER(EPRE)ATEE:

o Assessing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of the key controls of
management in valuation of investment
properties.
FEERTEEEBREREMEGLERD
BRI RE RETR AL

o Evaluating the competency, capabilities,
independence and objectivity of the external
valuer.

AESNE M EMEEE g B
FHREE -

o Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
methodology and key assumptions used by
the external valuer.

B i S BB (L B B 5 PR B9 (i 1B 79 0% % R 4

B -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued) %5 37 4% 2 i 3§ & (/&)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HRETER

FRETEIE @

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEAOMEEBERENSE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

BEWMRNMGEGE

The accounting policies and disclosures of the investment properties are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BREVMENEABRRNEBHNGEEM B HRERMF24 314

Involving our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the valuation
methodology and the key estimates and
assumptions adopted by the external valuer.
& A A B L B F X 5 B) 3k P18 50 2B
MEMRANEETE  BREREBR
HEITEAE -

Conducting site visits to investment
properties under development and discussing
with management the progress and
comparing the observed progress with the
latest development budgets provided by
management.

HERDPREMFETEMER  HER
BamERBL THBERINERIBR
HERERHNSNERAHEETHR

Evaluating the disclosures on the valuation of
the investment properties.

AERRENREENRE -
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HRESER

=
=

nE

)

FARETEE@

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFNNEERRETSHE

Recoverability of properties under development for sale and completed properties for sale

AHEEZERPYURRIHMEHEZEZRMEN TR E 4

The Group had properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale of HK$77,711 million and HK$36,502 million,
respectively, as at 31 December 2022, which represented 26% and
12% of the Group " s total assets, respectively. The carrying amounts of
properties under development for sale and completed properties for sale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ESEER -+ A=+ BEJHEEZERIYE
Ro#HEEZEERYES B A77,711 8 878 L &36,502EH B
T DREEREREBREEN26%K12% - AT EZHESR
MERAFEHEZEZXNMENREABERKARITZEFEOR
EEHE -

Determination of net realisable value of the properties under development
for sale and completed properties for sale involves critical accounting
estimates on the selling price, costs to make the sale and, for properties
under development for sale, the costs to completion. Given the significant
balance of properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale and the involvement of critical accounting estimates,
the assessment of net realisable value of properties under development
for sale and completed properties for sale is considered as a key audit
matter.
BEAHEECERTMERAHREE 2B AR MEN ] #IR)F
EPREHEBR HEXAR(AHEECERPYWEMNS)
TLIRKAWBERES GG EXNAHEECEERYERAHE
EZEBRRMENEREARAR S KBRS MG AT
EXBRERYERIHEE 2B EKYER T # IR FE R R H
RETTEIE o

The accounting policies and disclosures of the properties under
development for sale and completed properties for sale are included in
notes 2.4, 3, 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
AHEECBEERYERAMELEE 2B 8KYER S5 BUR A #K
BHNEE M BmEANMTE24 321 K22

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

BHMEFIEFER(EFREBE)ATEE:

° Obtaining an understanding of management’s
internal control and process of the assessment
of the recoverability of properties under
development for sale and completed
properties for sale.
BRTEEBHAHLEECERTYE
MAHEEE 22 EKYER A B YL
A B 12 1) A0 5T £ T A2

In relation to properties under development
for sale, evaluating the property construction
cycle with particular focus on, but not limited
to, reviewing the cost budgeting for estimated
costs to completion.
MRAIEHEZERTYEMS - KA
METRBHOFEEE  LEZIR
(ETBR )t & ff 5t 5% K R B9 K R 78
HEZ -

° Evaluating management’s assessment on the
estimated selling price less the estimated
cost to make the sale and the estimated cost
to completion by checking the recent market
transaction prices of properties with
comparable locations and conditions, where
applicable, comparing with the average
historical costs to make the sales of the
Group and comparing the latest estimated
costs to completion to the budget approved
by management and examining the
supporting document such as construction
contracts, internal correspondences and
approvals.
FEEREBYHMGAEERE G HEK
RAEET BN ARG - FARRE R
BEALUE MGG ERNLRTIER
SERNER): BESENTHESLH
ERANETLE BRI MEETTIAA
HEREHENTBEETHER KRS
BRANXM - BIANEEES L - NEREE kit
K o

172 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued) ¥& 37 #% EEf 3k & (&)

Other Information Included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lok Man Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss #5183 &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—T-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—=2-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt &t FET FET
Revenues U = 5} 27,252,008 30,734,196
Cost of sales 55 P AR (18,971,204) (17,589,322)
Gross profit EF 8,280,804 13,144,874
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMENFEKZ 14 10,072,467 10,450,776
Other gains, net Hilgzs 558 5 202,468 291,522
Selling and marketing expenses HELTHEEEHR (1,511,357) (1,442,246)
General and administrative expenses — B RITHER (2,986,151) (5,925,157)
Finance income B s A 7 563,138 568,030
Finance costs B 75 B AN 7 (1,515,817) (1,832,821)
Share of loss of associates DGR E A R E 18 (211,117) (110,254)
Share of profit of joint ventures DIEE & A A T 173,082 1,152,134
Profit before taxation % %54 B & 6 13,067,517 16,296,858
Taxation 18 10 (3,974,332) (5,952,174)
Profit for the year FERF 9,093,185 10,344,684
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity holders of the Company RAGIRERE A 8,762,461 9,759,179
Non-controlling interests FE P ) 15 2 330,724 585,505
9,093,185 10,344,684
Earnings per share attributable to AAREBEBREFE AEML (Restated)
ordinary equity holders of the Company EREAN (s E:5))
(in HK$ per share) (BRET)
— basic and diluted —EA R #EE 12 3.05 3.37
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %z & 2 MU A 3R &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—_ZE-_—"F+-_A=+—HI-FE

2022 2021
—_s—-= —E-—%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
K &t FET FAT
Profit for the year FERF 9,093,185 10,344,684
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hit2m (EHE), WA :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Hizn B S Em2HE -
profit or loss:
Assets revaluation reserve realised upon HEREHES ERYER
disposal of completed properties held for sale BR o EEEMHRFE (30,980) (1,039,682)
Deferred tax IREFIE 15,063 505,513
Currency translation differences BEE N E5 (9,618,177) 2,173,476
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to H & @& P E 1807
profit or loss: HAE :
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair EAFEEBEMEAEKA
value through other comprehensive income PR EEZ A FE
(B8), M= 19 (529,336) 609,524
Deferred tax IR RE R I8 92,556 (153,409
Currency translation differences HEE N ERE (969,741) 384,720
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHMZ2E (BB WA
for the year, net of tax HBRHER (11,040,615) 2,480,142
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EEZEER)WMABLE
for the year (1,947,430) 12,824,826
Attributable to: FEAh
Equity holders of the Company RATREREA (1,308,413) 11,854,601
Non-controlling interests FE 128 ] 1 #E 25 (639,017) 970,225

(1,947,430) 12,824,826
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H

A B IROR R

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M 2 FHExT AT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land W B8 1 b TE 1 BRIB 25 119,091 130,113
Loan receivables FE U E K 24 1,420,936 1,258,694
Properties and equipment MENEZE 13 3,873,735 4,437,221
Investment properties wEY 14 83,834,452 80,609,222
Intangible assets M & E 16 417,742 437,455
Investments in associates NEE AN Z2&E 17 8,516,836 9,966,131
Investments in joint ventures REERRIZHE 18 8,678,918 8,874,910
Financial assets at fair value through other BEAVFTEESAREMEEU
comprehensive income ANV Z BT B E 19 3,562,352 4,206,381
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFLESRERIERZ
profit or loss B 75 & B 20 1,189,119 2,183,192
Finance lease receivables Bh & E pE W s 23 113,294 151,033
Right-of-use assets CTRAEEE 15(a) 1,445,110 1,660,053
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE e REMIE
non-current assets mBEE 25 467,805 467,884
Deferred tax assets RETRIEE E 34 1,853,410 1,354,394
115,492,800 115,736,683
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land U BE + th T8 1 3k 18 25 27,416,412 31,887,962
Properties under development for sale At E ZEERYE 21 77,711,099 82,391,685
Completed properties for sale AIEEEZE B E 22 36,501,625 42,684,188
Financial assets at fair value through EAVTEERERIERZ
profit or loss WEEE 20 1,453,398 6,133,808
Accounts receivable FE U BE FX 26 4,622,198 4,882,649
Loan receivables FEUWE X 24 2,611,858 4,350,954
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets T~ 3038 « &4 & H MR
BEE 25 11,595,603 19,299,440
Due from joint ventures NI | 18 927,212 224,342
Due from associates JE Wi B 4 R FRIB 17 347,043 384,055
Due from related companies FEURREE N Al I8 27 21,402 26,621
Contract acquisition costs B AU B R A 28 1,619,534 1,919,188
Pledged/charged bank deposits B R RITER 29 4,285,354 6,267,556
Cash and cash equivalents R RESZEY 29 14,108,863 30,044,725
183,221,601 230,497,173
Total assets wmEE 298,714,401 346,233,856
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued) %= & Bl #% AR )7 & (4&)

As at 31 December 2022 HN-_ZT - —F+_-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—_sE—-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo 5E FET FBT
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to EAFREFEAEMLRE
the Company’s equity holders Kf#E
Share capital R& 72X 36 287,314 237,449
Reserves & 37 92,862,446 96,094,698
93,149,760 96,332,147
Non-controlling interests JE 5 ) M AE 2R 38 5,228,406 16,697,022
Total equity A 98,378,166 113,029,169
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Land cost payable JE £~ + b BR 2R 531,728 581,084
Borrowings ==y 32 71,607,058 86,686,648
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) 587,005 688,740
Due to non-controlling interests FERTIERE RIS o RIE 27 1,905,747 3,314,358
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTE A & 34 14,045,565 12,908,996
88,677,103 104,179,826
Current liabilities mEAE
Accounts payable, accruals and FERTBRER - FERT R K
other payables H b et RIE 30 31,121,224 47,269,314
Borrowings ==y 32 24,920,398 28,523,749
Margin loans REFELSEK 33 1,025,082 3,391,653
Contract liabilities AR ARG 31 45,175,820 39,488,948
Lease liabilities HEaE 15(b) 56,973 64,012
Due to associates e B &R A 2 TR 17 540,270 598,475
Due to related companies JENEEE R R ZFE 27 473,233 263,810
Due to joint ventures FERE &N TF ZFRIB 18 1,520,198 1,520,666
Current tax liabilities NEAFRTE & (& 35 6,825,934 7,904,234
111,659,132 129,024,861
Total liabilities BEH8E 200,336,235 233,204,687
Total equity and liabilities EERBEHEE 298,714,401 346,233,856
Net assets EEZRE 98,378,166 113,029,169
Chu Kut Yung Xie Baoxin
KER WESE
Chairman Director
*E EE
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e N 2

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #r & & & B XK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANARESEAES
Asset Currency Non-
Share Share Statutory Other revaluation  translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve differences earnings Total interests Total
Htt ZEEfE EBER FEH M
BRA  RHEE EERE & & £8  REEA @zt [ £ @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL Fi#gn FET Fign Fi#gn TET FEL Fi#gn FET FiEgn
(note 37()  (note 37(iv))
(HizEs7)  (Hs7iy)
Balance at 1 January 2022 i e =
i 237,449  15,302,872* 161,117* 842,809  575854*  5416,754* 73,795,292* 96,332,147 16,697,022 113,029,169
Profit for the year ERFHF - - — - - - 8,762,461 8,762,461 330,724 9,093,185
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  E 2 (B18),/
WA
ltems that may be reclassified HEEH 1 HZ
subsequently to profit or loss: BmZEA -
Assets revaluation reserve HeERERE
realised upon disposal of BEKMER
completed properties held 2RV BE
for sale Sl - - - - (30,980) - - (30,980) - (30,980)
Deferred tax EIERE - - - - 15,063 - - 15,063 - 15,063
Currency translation ERERER
differences - - - - - (9,618,177) - (9,618,177) - (9618,177)
ltems that will not be reclassffied HETEENHEZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmZEE
Fair value loss on financial BATERR
asses at far value Htt2EBA
through other 311 2 Bt 5
comprehensive income BEZATE
A - - - - (529,336) - - (529,336) - (529,33)
Deferred tax EEHIE - - - - 92,556 - - 92,556 - 92,556
Currency translation ERERER
differences - - - - - - - - (969,741)  (969,741)
Other comprehensive loss for the FREEMZEFE
year, net of tax nBkHE - - - —  (452697) (9,618,177) — (10070874)  (969,741) (11,040,615)
Total comprehensive (oss)income ~ EE2H (F18)/
for the year YNt - - - —  (452697) (9618177) 8762461  (1,308413)  (639,017) (1,947,430)
Issue of bonus shares BITHAR 49,865 (49,865) - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid BB - - - - - - (36,174 (356,174) - (356,174)
Capital contributions by non- FRFZFER R
controlling interests of subsidiaries & - - - 14,386 - - - 14,386 15,899 30,285
Acquisition of non-controlling BT AR 2 BIMER
interests - - - (1,532,186) - - —  (1,532,186) (10,845498) (12,377,684)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-B-_—&
+ZA=t-82
e 287,314 15,253,007* 161,117* (674,991) 123,157  (4,201,423)* 82,201,579* 93,149,760 5,228,406 98,378,166
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued) %= & # #5 & B) R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T_-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARRERE ARG
Asset  Currency Non-
Share Share Statutory Other  revaluation  translation Retained controling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  differences earnings Total interests Total
Hft EEER SEBER FiEsfE
A BROEE  ETREE 1] i B RERA it #ai Fohs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FAL TET FEL FAL FET FHT T FEL
(note 37(ii))  (note 37(j)  (note 37(iv))  (note 37(i)
(atari) (W) (Watsziy))  (Bas7)
Balance at 1 January 2021
219,137 15,558,932 161,117 - 1,514,096 3243278 67315409 88,011,969 9,856,187 97,868,156
Profit for the year EFHF - - - - - - 9,759,179 9,759,179 585,505 10,344,684
Other comprehensive (loss)income:  E {2 (B1#8),/ WA :
ltems that may be reclassified AGAEHHHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz ZEA
Assets revaluation reserve HERELE
realised upon disposal of BERMER
completed properties held BRIEE
for sale Et-1 - - - — (1,089,682 - — (1,089,682 — (1,039,682
Deferred tax EEHIE - - - - 505,513 - - 506,513 - 505,613
Currency translation ERELER
differences - — - - — 2,173,476 - 2,173,476 — 2,173,476
ltems that will not be reclassified AGTBENIHE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz BEE
Fair value gain on financial BATERA
assets at fair value Hth2EHRA
through other 3|8 2 Bt 7
comprehensive income BEZATE
g - - - - 609,524 - - 609,524 - 609,524
Deferred tax EEHE - - - - (158,409) - - (158,409) - (153,409)
Currency translation EREAER
differences - - - - - - - - 384,720 384,720
Other comprehensive (oss)income  EE E 2 E (1),
for the year, net of tax WA - MR FE - - - - (78,064) 2,173,476 - 2,095,422 384,720 2,480,142
Total comprehensive (oss)fincome ¥ 2 & (F18),/
for the year WABE - - - - (78,054) 2,173,476 9,759,179 11,854,601 970,225 12,824,826
Repurchases of own shares BERH R (3342)  (234,406) - - - - (660,195)  (897,943) - (897,943)
Issue of bonus shares BATEIR 21,654 (21,654) - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid BR%E - - - - - — (3479289  (3,479289) —  (3479.289)
Capital contrioutions by non- FRAZHFAER
controling interests of subsidiaries £ & - - - 842,809 - - - 842,809 6,264,353 7,107,162
Acquisition of additional interestin -~ B F A Al 2 BoMER
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (393,743) (393,743
Transfer of fair value reseve upon ML ER AT EE B
disposal of financial assets at fair H2EKBA
value through other SRz G EER
comprehensive income ERNTERE - - - - (860,188) - 860,188 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B-—-F
TZA=+—-H2Z
e 237,449 15,302,872 161,117 842,809 575,854* 5,416,754 73,795,292 96,332,147 16,697,022 113,029,169
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$92,862,446,000 (2021 * hWEREELEFRAUBARRNGE SRR

HK$96,094,698,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

92,862,446,0007% 7T ( = & = — % : 96,094,698,000 %

L)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow %8 HE £ 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—T-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—EsE=-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities RETH2EHERE
Profit before taxation b %5 71 % ) 13,067,517 16,296,858
Adjustments for: EEEASE
Finance income B 75 W A 7 (563,138) (568,030)
Finance costs B 7 B 7R 7 1,515,817 1,832,821
Share of profit of joint ventures PIEE &R REF (173,082) (1,152,134)
Share of loss of associates Ak (an A=/l = 211,117 110,254
Depreciation of properties and equipment MENKREITE 13 227,002 227,275
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREESERE 15 90,650 95,912
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EE Y 16 56,210 58,216
Loss/(gain) on disposals of properties and HEMERREER
equipment (Weas) 6 18,983 (230)
Provision for impairment of an associate —EEE R ElRE RS = 3,011,834
Provision/(reversal of provision) for impairment TRIEERBERE
of financial assets (B&m1) 6 72,927 (492,663)
Fair value gain on investment properties WEYENTFEWZE 14 (10,072,467) (10,450,776)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair BATEERERVEEY
value through profit or loss WMBEECANTFE
(W) EiE 20 (3,537,945) 4,018,574
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets at BEEERATEBEREZRYT
fair value through profit or loss R BEERER
&) 5,975,874 (634,057)
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries FRREREE 3 1,195
Gain on disposal of a joint venture RE—MB&eEAalks 865 —
Net exchange loss/(gain), net &N &R (M=) 558 17,375 (172,200
6,907,708 12,182,849
Decrease in finance lease receivables Rl E A S e U mkTE R 26,048 103,052
Decrease/(increase) in properties under AMHEEZERAYER
development for sale and completed AIHEEZEERME
properties for sale B (35 0) 4,168,546 (5,501,551)
Increase in accounts receivable JIE L2 AR X3 A0 (232,865) (2,157,035)
Increase in prepayments for acquisition of land g B8 £ $h 2 T8 45 FRIE 12 0 (930,693) (884,557)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits FERRE e REMRD
and other current assets BERL, (M) 6,336,516 (3,460,573)
Decrease/(increase) in contract acquisition BB AR (38 ) 143,140 (228,432)
costs
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable, JEMBRER - FEET B R H A
accruals and other payables JE A~ 513 Ot 4>),/ 32 hn (8,715,101) 10,544,324
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEEM 9,431,507 12,554,030
Addition of financial assets at fair value MIWIEAFEEBERY
through profit or loss R BEE (4,479,058)  (31,570,586)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at HEZRATEBEBIERS
fair value through profit or loss R EE 25 RIE 7,542,619 33,253,898
Cash generated from operations KEEAZHE 20,198,367 24,835,419
Interest received B U F B 558,183 562,936
Interest paid 2 AT F & (32,728) (35,574)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEBHNEH (125,054) (5,060)
Mainland China corporate income tax paid BENFREANESEMER (983,856) (2,558,747)
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid B A5 AR B K B+ b (A AR (1,503,802) (1,331,958)
Net cash generated from operating activities KETBEL IR FE 18,111,110 21,467,016
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow (Continued) &R £ H"E & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE—T-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Repayment of bank and financial institution
borrowings

BERTIMBGEEBEE

(85,400,270)

2022 2021
—EsE-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FET FAET
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZ2EERE
Additions of properties and equipment Iy N R E 13 (83,125) (274,914)
Additions of investment properties g E Y (46,942) (637,961)
Additions of intangible assets g mpEE 16 (74,321) (94,110)
Additions of loans receivable sl e (2,679,818) (2,584,776)
Repayment from loans receivable Ik [o] fE W & 3R 4,155,565 515,934
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at far B E&EZAFEFZBEMEE
value through other comprehensive income WAGNER 2 BEEE 2
BT 18 318 5,396 30,598
Capital injection in joint ventures and associates ;¥ & T & & A 7] Fl B & A 7 (407,470) (2,278,228)
Receipt of advances to an associate IR B — B & AR R E BN 481,159 1,272,812
Advances to related companies R T EERA (393,968) —
Repayment from related companies EEABEERA 145,748 71,006
Advances to associates BT HEE R A (298,728) (4,825)
Repayments from associates BEEHME AR 295,565 215,726
Advances to joint ventures BRTEERT (1,306,480) (122,823
Repayments from joint ventures EBEBEAZERA 675,934 180,806
Dividend income from joint ventures RN SSEL PN 150 =
Decrease/(increase) in pledged/charged bank B R RTEIORD
deposits (1 1n) 1,515,458 (4,410,008)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing RERDEL (TR ZES
activities F R 1,984,123 (8,020,763)
Cash flows from financing activities AEITE2HESRE
Interest paid 2~ F & (7,348,798) (8,264,794)
Additions of bank and financial institution FIBRIT R B EEEE
borrowings 30,365,234 26,618,883
Additions of convertible bonds g ARk E 1,893,608 —
Additions of asset-backed securities I EELTHZA — 741,194
Additions of commercial-mortgage backed FEEEEBERES
securities - 10,828,951
Additions of senior notes M ELEEZRE — 8,716,494

(27,751,404)

Repayment of asset-backed securities BREEEXHIES (776,213)
Repayment of commercial-mortgage backed EBENERFERES
securities (2,262,381) (6,361,250)
Redemption and repayment of senior notes EOREEELER (4,446,377) (8,271,072)
Repayment of margin loans EERBTLER (2,171,223) (5,954,102)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests JEIEH R EE 30,285 7,107,162
Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries WS TR alz BN E = (12,357,081) (393,743)
Repayment to non-controlling interests 1) FE 428 ) 1 4R 2 1 3K (1,188,795) (4,724,640)
Dividend paid to Company’s equity holders BENARAREREARE (356,174) (3,479,289)
Payments of principal of lease payments YNHEENTARE (60,043) (64,219
Repurchase of ordinary shares fE [ I 4 A% = (897,943)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBMA R 5 (34,078,228)  (12,149,772)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow (Continued) &8 H £ R 2% (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—T-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—_=E—-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FTET FET
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRRSZEEYW2 (R
cash equivalents 1 4058 &8 (13,982,995) 1,296,481
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REYPZIEERIRESEEY 30,044,725 27,908,584
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and ReENBEZFEMIIER
cash equivalents (B18), M= (1,952,867) 839,660
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REXRZEERRESEEY 29 14,108,863 30,044,725
Analysis of balances of cash and cash ReREACEBYERZDN
equivalents
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHER 14,108,863 30,044,725
Cash and cash equivalents as stated above and in A £ X & R4 & B Bk R AT
the consolidation statement of financial position MRS RIEEEEY 29 14,108,863 30,044,725
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: 45 Bf 7% 3R 3= Mf =%

General Information

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties, commercial properties
investment, property management and infrastructure business in
Mainland China, and investments business.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The ultimate holding
company is Sounda Properties Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

—REH

EHEAREEARARATARA]) RE
FRrA(BBIAEE]) TERPEKE
REEEVRER BARBERE BXE
EENERERY URKREXR -

AARARRBRETMKRNINERE
£ 7 - H 9= & i 4k A& Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda ° s £ IR A 7 & 00 B B L B
SAMKIHFEEXEFRAA -

ARFARBEEBAZSHARA R (B
RFL) £ o

ERETRATIMNER
ARRRZ—ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HH

31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of company

AR BB

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of
legal entity

= B SL B %
EEBERER

TBEFRANFBAOT:

Percentage of equity
Issued and fully interest attributable

paid capital to the Group
KEBEMN
EBRITRHBERE REBDLL
Directly Indirectly
HiE SE:3

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXRBREEHH

Hopson Development International Limited

AHAEBEEREAERARA

Sun Excel Investments Limited

HERERBR AR

Addup International Limited

KEBEBRERAA

Archibald Properties Limited

EEBEXARRAA

Bazhou Shengkai Property Development
Company Limited

BT EEREBRAR

Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Real Property
Development Company Limited

IEREIEEHEHEREBRA A

Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate

Development Limited

ERAELETFHEREFRAA

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

KERZES ARAERR

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

RERZES BRAEETRR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

2E AREMEAF

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

KERZES ARAERT

PRC/Mainland China, limited
liability company

REKE  BREMERF

PRC/Mainland China, limited
liability company
REKE  GREERA]

PRC/Mainland China, limited
liability company
HEAE - EREMERF

US$1,992 100% =

1,9923% 7T

US$2,600,001 100% =

2,600,001 3% 7T
HK$1 = 100%

18T
US$2 = 100%

2%
RMB20,000,000 = 100%

A R #20,000,0007T
US$61,920,330 = 100%

61,920,330 7T
US$220,580,000 = 100%

220,580,000 7T

BEAREEER A

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
NEBREZER

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREER

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREZER

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
NEBREZER

Property development in
Mainland China
R B K e B R W) 3

Property development in
Mainland China
iNGIC N I S

Property development in
Mainland China
NEICIPN =LY ES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) #R & Bt 7% 3R & Kt 5% (&)

1

General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

1 —RERm@m

FEFLAANER @

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
= i FR 3L 4t B % AL EEG
DNE BB EEBRER EBTRBERAE REBDLL FTEXEBREELR
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Beijing Hopson Longhui Restaurant PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB3,000,000 — 76% Restaurant management
Management Company Limited liability company in Mainland China
IIREEEEEREERRAA FEARE  EREEAA A F ¥ 3,000,0007T A R B K e B B AR
Beijing Hopson Lvzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB1,793,370,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
IEREEZNEHEREBRA A REAKE - BREMERA A R #1,793,370,0007C iNGEIETN 93 ES
Beijing Hopson Wangjing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB364,990,000 = 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
ERELEEZREHERBEERAR REIAKE - BREMERA] A R 364,990,0007T AR E KRR
Beijing Hopson Xingye Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited US$31,600,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
IREEERERMEREGRAA FEARE - EREEAF 31,600,000 7T PR B K e B R W) 3
Beijing Hopson Yujing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited US$165,760,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
EIREeEMEEHEREBRAF REIAKE - BREMERA 165,760,000 7T iNGEIETPN 93 ES
Beijing Longyuan Shunjing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB20,000,000 = 100% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
IRERIESFEHMEREFRA A REAKE - EREMERA A R 20,000,000 7T R B REZERYE
Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Real PRC/Mainland China, limited US$67,385,504 - 100% Property development in
Property Development Company liability company Mainland China
Limited
IREAEERMEREGRAA REIAKE - BRECERA 67,385,504 7T R EREERYDE
Beijing Xinjingrun Property Company PRC/Mainland China, limited US$444,540,000 — 82.5% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
IERFREEERRA R FEARE - EREEAF 444,540,000 7T PR B K R B R W) 3
Believe Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$200 = 82.5% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
EEREERAA EBRELES  BRAEEAA 2003 7T REBREER
Chia Lung Group Company Limited Samoa, limited liability company US$6,500,000 = 100% Investment holding in
Hong Kong
EEEEERAA EERRE  AREMERA 6,500,000 7T REBZEZR
Dalian Hopson Fubang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited US$32,747,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
AREAEERFMEREFRAA FEARE EREEAF 32,747,000% 7T MBI KRB RY %
Dalian Hopson Xingye Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RECHEREEHERBEBRAF REIAKE - BEREMERA A R ¥50,000,0007C iNGEIETPN 93 ES
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General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) %= &

1 —RERm

FETFRANESR

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully

interest attributable

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
= AR 3L 4t B % AEEEMN
IR EEBRER EBRTRBERAE REBDLL FTEXEBREELR
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
BAREBR QA BB BEREEQF 10,0007% 7T REBREER
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$2 ordinary shares = 100% Investment holding and
company HK$3 non-voting property investment in
deferred shares (note 1) Hong Kong
EBHEXERAA BB AREEQA 2B TR REBREERRIKRE
SETLERE %
RERIER D (1)
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited us$2 = 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
EREXARRAA KERXES BREEAA 2% 7T REBREER
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$22,500,000 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
YEBR A A BB BEREMERF 22,500,000 7T RE B EER
Guangdong Esteem Property Services PRC/Mainland China, limited HK$5,000,000 — 84% Property management in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BERERMERBERRA A REARE - EREERF 5,000,000/ 7T NGl PN =gz S
Guangdong Hopson Dijing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited US$37,500,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BRAETREHEARRRA hERE EREMERA 37,500,000 7T T R B K e B R ) 3
Guangdong Hopson Hongjing Real Estate  PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB200,280,000 = 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BREENLREHERRARA hE AR EREMERDF A R 200,280,000 70 iNGRIETPN 93 S
Guangdong Hopson Lejing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB44,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BERAEESFMERRAA REARE - EREMERF A R # 44,500,0007T NGl PN 98 S
Guangdong Hopson Minghui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB41,500,000 — 91% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BRALEREFHERRRA HERKE - BREMERQA AR # 41,500,000 7T A R B K ek B R W) 3
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB41,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BREEVERMMEGRAQA hE AR EREMERQF A % 41,500,0007¢C iNGEIETPN 953 S
Guangzhou Huajing Business Management  PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB93,500,018 — 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNEZERFBERBRRAA HEKRKE BREMEDA AR #93,500,018 7T AR R E
Guangdong Huanan New City Real Estate ~ PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB464,750,000 - 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BRERHBEHEFRR A HERE BREMERQA A B 464,750,000 7T TR B K R B R W) 3
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1

General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

1 —RERm@m

BFETFRANESR

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
= i FR 3L 4t B % AEEEN
DNE BB EEBRER EBTRBERAE REBDLL FTEXEBREELR
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB10,010,000 - 100% Investment holding in
Investment Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BERHAEFHEREBRRA A FEARE  EREEAA AR #10,010,0007C T R B K e 4% & 2 AR
Guangzhou Chuangda Investment PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB600,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNEZEREERBR AR REAKE - BREMERA A K% 600,000,000 7T iNGEIETN 93 E S
Guangdong Hejian Construction Company  PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB1,200,000,000 = 100% Provision of construction
Limited liability company service in Mainland
China
BREBRIREEBDERADA PERE - EREMTAF A R % 1,200,000,000 7T A B R B4R 4 2 28
AR %5
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB53,550,000 = 97% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNEERSFEMERRR A FERAKE - BREERAA A R % 53,550,0007C B AR B K B B B W
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB42,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNEERFREHERRRA A FEARE  EREEAA AR # 42,600,000 7T PR B K e B R W) 3
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB221,670,000 — 95% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMEERSEHERTRQA FEARE ERETAF AR #221,670,0007T P B R BE B R 1) 3
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Real PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB133,340,000 = 95% Property development in
Estate Limited liability company Mainland China
BMEEMKBEREMESRA A FERKE - BREERAA A R #133,340,0007C B AR B K B B B W
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Water PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB3,000,000 - 84% Water supply in Mainland
Supply Limited liability company China
BINE EFRFKRERRA A REAKE - BREMCERA A F #3,000,0007T A HR B K e 0K
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Business PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of clubhouse
Services Limited liability company and residential
services in Mainland
China
BMNEEERABERRA REIAKE - BREMERA] A R #500,0007T R B RREER & P R
EER®
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB131,420,019 — 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNEEREREMESRRRA A FEARE - EREEAF AR #131,420,0197C WA B KRB R Y%
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB82,040,000 - 99.5% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMEERsEHERRAQA REIAKE - BEREMERA A R ¥82,040,0007C iNGEIETPN 93 ES
Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB47,250,000 = 70% Property development in

Limited
BMNEEMRFEHESRRRA A

liability company
REIAKE - BREMERA

A R #47,250,000 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

General Information (Continued)

1 —RERm

AR A B SRR M EE ()

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EREFRATINER @
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
establishment and kind of Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
= AR 3L 4t B % AEBEMN
IR EEBRER EBRTRBERAE REBDLL FTEXEBREELR
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Guangzhou Huayue Longting Restaurant PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant management
Limited liability company in Mainland China
BMEBEEBRERAR A HERE BREMERQA A R #3,000,0007T R B K e B B R
Guangzhou Jiannan Property Development  PRC/Mainland China, limited US$12,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNEZEEEZERBRRAA hE A EREMERA 12,000,000 7T iNGEIETPN 93 E S
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Construction ~ PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB2,170,243 = 100% Property development in
and Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNTEIRERFAEERAA hE AR EREMERF AR¥2,170,2437C iNGRIETPN 293 E S
Guangzhou Wanxiangying Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB1,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
EMTEEEMEERBR QA HERKE - BREMEQA A R #1,000,0007T A B RREE R %
Guangzhou Xinchangjiang Development PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB60,000,000 - 95.5% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMHRIERAEERAQA hERE EREMERF A R ¥ 60,000,0007C iNGEIETN 93 ES
Guangzhou Yihui Real Estate Development  PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB37,000,000 = 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNTREEMEREGRA A hEAE - EREMERF A R % 37,000,000 7T iNGEIETPN a3 ES
Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB43,800,000 = 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
EMNEAFEREERAR REARE EREERF A R # 43,800,0007T NGl PN 98 S
Guangzhou Yisheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB52,500,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
BMmEREMERZEFRA A HERE EREMERA A R ¥ 52,500,0007C P B R e B R W 3
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB535,500,000 = 99.5% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BMNKIBEHEMERRRAA hE R EREMERDF A R #585,500,0007T R B KRR
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB522,110,000 = 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BMEZELEFEMERBRRAR REARE - EREERF A R#522,110,000 7T A R B K ok B R W) 3
Guilin Fenghuang Wentou Properties PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB119,260,600 — 42.8% Property development in
Company Limited (note 2) liability company Mainland China
EMBEXIREXBRAR (Mit2) hE AR EREMERDF AR #119,260,6007C iNGRIETPN 953 ES
Hangzhou Xincheng Yuehong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Property Development Company liability company Mainland China
Limited
NS 2 P st EE F B A PR A &) RE AR EREMLERF A K #100,000,0007C eI 9y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) #R & Bt 7% 3R & Kt 5% (&)

1

General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

1 —RERm@m

BFETFRANESR

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
= i FR 3L 4t B % AEEEN
DNE BB EEBRER EBTRBERAE REBDLL FTEXEBREELR
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$2 ordinary shares — 100% Investment holding in
company HK$10,000 non-voting Hong Kong
deferred shares (note 1)
AHEEEERAA &% AREEAA 2B T E A REBREER
10,0008 T & 1X &
RERIERR D (1)
Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Limited PRC/Mainland China, limited US$4,830,000 - 100% Property development in
liability company Mainland China
AEBEMNEEERAA REIAKE - AREMERAA 4,830,000 7T R B K e B R W) 3
Hopson Development (Consultants) British Virgin Islands, limited US$2 - 100% Provision of consultancy
Limited liability company services in Hong Kong
SEAIR(BER)BRA A EEBREXES AREERAA e REBREE AR
Hopson Development (Properties) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
AHAR(BX)ERAA BB - BEREMERQA 10,0007 7T REBIREER
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$1 = 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
AEREFHERRRA A EBELEE  AREEAA 1€ REBREER
Huidong Zhongfu Real Estate Company PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB45,760,035 — 92.2% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BERPEEXARQA REAKE - BREMERA AR % 45,760,035 T AR B K R B R W) 3
Huizhou Daya Bay New Coastal City PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB100,000,000 = 60% Property development in
Development and Investment Company liability company Mainland China
Limited
BMAEENEFRTEIRERR REIAKE - BREMERA A % 100,000,000 7T P HR B K e B R Y 3
NG|
Huizhou Hopson Youtian Property PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB584,843,979 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BMTEERREXEERAQA] REIAKE - BREMERA A R 584,843,979 7T iNGRIETPN 953 ES
Huizhou Hopson Xieyuan Property PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB590,411,061 = 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BMTEEBTEMEBR QA REIAKE - BREMERA AR #590,411,061 7T G lE PN g Y/ E S
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Company Mainland China, limited liability RMB260,870,000 — 95.8% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BEMTmERIREMESRA A FEARE ERETAF A R # 260,870,000 7T R B KRB R Y 5
Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Company PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB119,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BEMNTEHEMESRA A FEKE - BREERA A K% 119,000,000 7T iNGIC N 3 B
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General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) %= &

1 —RERm

FETFRANESR

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully

interest attributable

Bt 75 R R B R (&)

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
MR R AEBEMN
NEEB EEBERER EBRTRBERSE REBDLL TEXBREBEHLE
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Ji Run Property Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1,000,000 — 82.5% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
HHEXKREFRQA BB BAREEQA 1,000,0007% 7T REBREER
Jiangmen Hopson Xinjing Property PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB100,000,000 = 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
AfFTmEESREMERRAA REKEE  GREERA] A R #100,000,0007T iNGE N R 3 B
Kunshan Hesong Property Development PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB433,486,700 = 55.4% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RBlLEEFHEREBRAA FRAKEE  GREERA AR # 433,486,700 T iNEIEPNGE: 37 ES
Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EMEEFRAR BB BEREEQA 10,0007% 7T REBREER
Kunshan Hopson Property Development PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB200,000,000 = 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RBLUEEFEHEREBRAF hE R EREMERF A K #200,000,0007T T H B K B B R Y 3
Langfang Hongchang Jiatai Property PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB15,000,000 = 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BHmEEEZEMEREARAR A hE AR EREMERF A R # 15,000,000 7T A R B K [k B R W) 3
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited HK$25,000,000 = 55% Property development in
Development (Guangzhou) Limited liability company Mainland China
BMEBHIENBERERAQA hE A EREMERA 25,000,000 7T iNGEIETPN 93 E S
Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EEREBRRA BB BEREMERA 18T REBIREER
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited USs$2 - 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
FAEEXARDA EBELER AREEAA E REBREER
Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Sports PRC/Mainland China, limited US$10,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
ERSERBREREERARAA hERE EREMERA 10,000,000 7T iNGIC N I B
Ningbo Hopson Kam City Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB157,900,000 = 95% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
ERAERBEHERRRQF] HE AR EREMLERDF A R % 157,900,000 70 MABRKERREYE
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BERAEERUMFEHMERRRAA REARE EREERF A R #10,000,0007T A R B K e B R W) 3
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Company PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB220,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
BEREEEREMWEBRAF hEAE EREMERA A % 220,000,0007T TR B K B B R W) 3
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1

General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

1 —RERm@m

BFETFRANESR

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
= i FR 3L 4t B % AEEEN
DNE BB EEBRER EBTRBERAE REBDLL FTEXEBREELR
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Outward Expanse Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
BAREBRRAF EBELEE AREEAA E REBREER
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Company PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
HERHRIFHERRRAA REAKE - BREMERA A E % 100,000,000 7T iNGEIETN 93 ES
Plaza Royale Water Palace Convention PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB72,000,000 — 70% Hotel operation in
Hotel Tianjin Company Limited liability company Mainland China
REFRBRBERRR A PEARE - EREETAR A R % 72,000,000 AR B KR &L EE
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
ABREXBR AR EBELEER  AREMEAA e REBREER
Prestige Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
BEERERAA B BREEAA 10,0007% 7T REBREER
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EREBEBRERAA BE - AREBEERA 18T REBIREER
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Management  PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB3,050,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
FHREREBEHEABRAA REIAKE - AREMERA A R #3,050,000,0007C TR B K e B R W) 3
Shanghai Hechuang Linhai Property PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB900,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
FEBAEBEEHERERRAR FEARE - EREETAF A E % 900,000,000 7T P B R RE B R 1 3
Shanghai Hopson Jinting Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
FEEEBERMERBEBERAR REIAKE - BREMERA A &% 50,000,0007T B R B K B B B W
Shanghai Hopson Property Development PRC/Mainland China, limited US$59,900,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
LA EFHEREBRRAA FERKE - BREEAR 59,900,000 7T PR B K e B R W) 3
Shanghai Hopson Sanlin Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
EEEE=BEHEREARAA REAKE - AREMERAA A B 50,000,000 7T R B K B B R W) 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 44 Bt 7% 3R 3% Mi &F (48)

General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

1 —RERm

FETFRANESR

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully

interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
o AR 3L 3t B % AEBEMN
RAEEB EEERER ERTRBERSE REBD L TEXBREBHE
Directly Indirectly
HiE =
Shanghai Longjia Properties Limited PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB20,000,000 - 100% Property development in
liability company Mainland China
FEEZEXBRAA hEARE EREMERA A R #20,000,0007C A AR B K Bk B R W) 3
Shanghai Longmeng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited US$44,370,000 = 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
LEERERMERERR QA hE AR EREMERQF 44,370,000 7T A B A RE R R
Shanghai Sanxiang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited US$8,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
FE=RFEERBRRAA REARE EREMTERF 8,000,000 7T NGl PN =98 S
Shanghai Shangshi Haiyun Properties PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB800,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
FEEESEEXEARAA HERKE BREERQA A B 800,000,000 7T R B K e B R W) 3
Shanghai Tongzhen Investment and PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB5,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Consultant Company Limited liability company Mainland China
EERIRREFABRRAA hE AR EREMLERDF A R #5,000,0007C iNGRIETPN 953 S
Shanghai Yutai Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB400,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
FEERFEHEERBRAA hEARE - EREERF A R % 400,000,000 7T AR B K B R 5
Shanghai Zeyu Properties Limited PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB50,000,000 — 94% Property development in
liability company Mainland China
EEEFEXRBRAA REARRE EREMERA A B 50,000,000 7T TR B K R B R W) 3
Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
LB ERFEMERRRAA hE A EREMERQF A R ¥50,000,0007C iNGEIETPN 93 S
Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB990,753,900 — 96.6% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
WAEEEFRERERAA hEARE - EREMERF A R #990,753,900 70 A R B K [k B R W) 3
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$1 — 100% Provision of consultancy
liability company services in Hong Kong
SEERABRADA EEELEE AREEAA 13€7T R E IR AR RS
Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
E#HKREGRAA BE BREEAA 1T REBIREER
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1

General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

1 —RERm@m

BFETFRANESR

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
o M FR 3L 3t B % 7 5 E FE 4
ARER EEERER EBRTRBERSE REBD L TEXBREBHE
Directly Indirectly
HiE i =
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$100 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
SEBEXARRAA EEBREXES AREERAA 1003E 7T RBEBREER
Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Development ~ PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 = 51% Property development in
Corporation liability company Mainland China
BRERIREEXERERAA REIAKE - BREMERA A . #10,000,0007T iNGRIETPN a3 S
Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$1 = 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
HERERRR A EBELER  BAREEAA 1€ REBREER
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited us$2 — 84% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
MABXARRAA EEBRELEES AREMEAA 2%ETT REBREER
Suzhou Ruiyin Properties Limited PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB493,311,100 — 97.3% Property development in
liability company Mainland China
BHMNImIREZFR DA PERE  EREMTAF AR #493,311,1007C iNGEIETPN 953 S
Taicang Hopson Property Development PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB285,429,800 = 98.1% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
AEREFMEREBRRAA REIAKE - BREERA A R #285,429,800 7T A R B K e B R W) 3
Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB30,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
REMEBEEMERZEARAQ A FEARE  EREMEAF A B #30,000,0007C B KRB R W) 5
Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB375,826,000 = 98.9% Property development in
Development Company liability company Mainland China
REGHEBBEHERBEBRAF REAKE - BEREMERA A R #375,826,000 7T iNGEIETPN 93 E S
Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB280,000,000 — 92.3% Property development in
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
REGEWIGHERZEBR AR FERKRE - BREERAR A R % 280,000,000 7T R B A RESR B
Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB3,000,000 — 100% Architectural design in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RAEEHMBRERFTARRAA REIAKE - BREMERA A R #3,000,0007T iNGEIETPN G g ==
Tianjin Royal Garden Hot Spring PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB190,000,000 — 100% Hotel operation in
Development Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RERIFTRBRAZERAA REAKE - AREMERAA A R #190,000,0007T A R B K e 4 B S
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
HREXERAA EBELEER  AREEAT 2% 7T REBREER
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General Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

1 —RERm

FETFRANESR

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
=E M R SZ it B R AEBEMN
RAEEB EEERER ERTRBERSE REBD L TEXBREBHE
Directly Indirectly
HiE =
Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$5,000,000 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
CRRERRADA BB - BEREMERA 5,000,000 7T REBREZR
Value-Added Guangzhou Limited PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB8,000,000 = 70% Property development in
liability company Mainland China
BN s AR A hE R EREMERF A R # 8,000,000 7T iNGEIETN 93 S
Wilcon investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$49,320,002 = 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EERRKRERBRAR B2E BREMERAF 49,320,002/ 7T REBREER
Yao’an Batteries Power Supply Technology PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property investment in
(Shenzhen) Company Limited liability company Mainland China
BZEMEREE ORI BR A A hE AR EREMERF A R % 50,000,000 7T iNGIETPN = ES
Zhejiang Kehua Digital Plaza Company PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 = 95% Property development in
Limited liability company Mainland China
AR EZE ES B R A A hE R EREMERA A R ¥10,000,0007C iNGEIETN 93 E S
Zhongshan Hopson Haojing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 = 95% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RUTEERSEMEBRAR HERE BREMERQA AR #10,000,0007C R B K ek B R W) 3
Zhongshan Hopson Hongjing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RLUTEERRBEHERRRF hE AR EREERF AR #10,000,0007C iNEIE NGS5 37 ES
Zhongshan Hopson Xijing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB11,215,800 = 84.7% Property development in
Company Limited liability company Mainland China
RUmEERSEMEBRAA hE AR EREMERQF AR¥11,215,8007C iNGRIETPN 93 S
Zhongxian International Company Limited PRC/Mainland China, limited RMB2,250,000,000 — 100% Property development in

HEBRZERERAR

liability company

REXE  BREERR

A B #2,250,000,0007C

Notes: it
(1) The holders of non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not (1)
entitled to any dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are distributable to holders of the
non-voting deferred shares.
) The entity is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group because the Group 2)

owns more than half of the voting rights even though the equity interest in the
entity attributable to the Group is less than 50%.

BEAREEER A

Mainland China
TR B K R B R W) 5

BRERECROIERERE EE KR
FARSIERERNFREZE DR K IE
100,000,000,000,000 LB 9k T & @R FFH
A BIEREBEZ —FA DR TEREREELT

BOFAEA -

ZRBDERAEENFRAAARK  REZH
AAEERAZEBOEDENE0%  BAKE
EREBEE—FNERERE-

—EC_FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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2.1

2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB RELERIFEIFR UBETA)

2.1

2.2

im B E X )
e EE @
WEEREBRER b REHNE=ERE

R —ERZEHREY  MAEEESE
A EREEIRIEET - FRARMA
RESNEPETEREZHENBER
THRERZHIIER-

fis] 2N 58 Bl 2K X8 7 2 5) B 12 il 4 - Rl AR
LtERI)ZTAINEE(BEBE)RE
& -+ (ii) £ A7 SE 4% 1) 15 4 2 &9 BR T B K (iii) 7
EmANARNRFELY 258 WERNE
KRENATE  ((EANRBEENAFE
B K (i) 1825 A A mE LRSS
Ao REBEMZATREMEE K AR
NP EBREAEEEETYEHBEEE
HEBEMRENEREESHDEERE
mRRBE A (EA) -

BT RRESHRIKE

AEEE B ANFE S RK )46 )R
UTRETREHBRELER -

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
HE M2 HE A

Amendment to HKFRS 16
BEAMBRELERFE 165 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 16
B G EAFE 165 (IBE]A)

Amendments to HKAS 37
BB ERFEI7THR (UBFTA)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

BB B RE R -F—\FE
SE-TENEENE

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
—E - —FRNH=1THEHCOVID-1916FH - E%

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
V¥ BERRZE: BHEHRLHZEHE

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

ERIEEH — BITEAZ KA

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

BEEMBMEEMNE 1R BEUBRELENFR BE
MR EERFE 16N RS R EA G ERE
4155 (B FT )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) %= 4&
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 S BEKREBRFE @

Disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued
in June 2018 without significant changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As
there were no contingent assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities within the scope of the amendments arising in the
business combination that occurred during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

(b)  Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items as determined by
HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied
the amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after 1 January
2021. Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below: (Continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fuffiling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfiling that contract (e.g., an allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfiling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and
are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was
no modification or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.3 Issue But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 23 EEMEMAERZE BT

Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

EBMBRELELF105E LB B S EL
F28F(ZZE——F) (BT A)

Amendments to HKFRS 16
ek ER AL ACIEN)

HKFRS 17
BERMBREEAEATH

Amendments to HKFRS 17
EB MRS ERETH (ST A)

Amendment to HKFRS 17

FAMBHREEEATHR(EFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

ER G ERE 1R (EFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 1
BB ENF1RUSETAN)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
BEAGHEANZIREEENBRE
R EBHmEFE 298 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ST ERFE 8 (BRI A)

Amendments to HKAS 12

ER G ERE 125 (BRI A)

1

T 3F

\

ﬁtt:

AEBAETEBRNZEMHHRRTER T
ERGERRERZIFTREETERE
M mEER -

]

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

REERAEBENAHXEERNAZEREEL &EHTA°

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®
HERE#®MERHEE A&

Insurance Contracts’

wmEEH)

Insurance Contracts"®

RBREAK®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

BREREBHBMECREI7HERE B HHEEREI
5 — L BEH

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)?*

BESERBRBKIF B ([ FE=-FFEFTX])*

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)?

Wi RE IERB R E ([ —F = —F B K])?

Definition of Accounting Policies’

B HRZEE'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Bitlhat ZEE'

Deferred Tax related Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

E-—XGHELNEERBEHBELZHE
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2022
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January
2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification
overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.3 Issue But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 Issue But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, in particular the determination over whether
an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the
HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only
those with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or non-
current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when is has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.3 Issue But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial
application of these amendments, the Group will recognise deferred
tax for all temporary differences related to leases at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented. During the year, the
Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
amendments to HKAS 12. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures
is included as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than properties
under development for sale, completed properties for sale, contract
acquisition costs, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

@iy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of
the post-employment benefit plan;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Properties and equipment and depreciation

Properties and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of properties and equipment is classified as
held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held
for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of
an item of properties and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of properties and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of properties and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of properties and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Hotel properties (superstructure) 28 to 30 years

Buildings Shorter of useful life of

50 years and lease term
Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 3to 10 years

Where parts of an item of properties and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of properties and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of properties and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

208 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) #R & Bt 7% 3R & Kt 5% (&)

24 EXRETHERE @)

MERRBEERTE

MERRE(ERIRZRIN RKAAR R
AAITEREMREBEER 2 -BEYE
RRBESBASFEHELESERR
EHEARNN —F D8 BWFHIELE
MSEREEE R HEMAR M5 BRRE
—*Fﬁﬁi HBBEFEMERETENH
RELENFESKEAR - WERR T%IEEZ
EJZZK’E%E%,J, REFAEEEEEZE
AR R ERE R B R BERA -

MEREEREREREENEE IR
ﬁﬁﬁi —RRELEHETAREER -
R B ERZENBRT - A28 X
AABEREEE FREERLK WY
ENMRBZEEHNATHER  AIAE
BERAZEMOIREABEERFH A
PABEEWHEEEITE -

FTEDREREIEGRAERFHRAEY
ELRBEZBEBORAMOREEF R E
BE-FUERHEZEFRMT

B IE Y ¥ (B8 28 & 304F

B 504 A £ B F # &
ARG A

FREPRAEERE 5F

RBETE 3&10%F

WMERZEEE ST H>NERFHT

A - @'JEZIEHEI’JEX$TE BEENEES
Mo EFAEFE -FREE ERHF
HEFERZELIREPRFEREER
mEl  WRNEERAR -

EﬁEmE’J%%& REEB (BREMER

DIRNEEXTBHEAXLETSHE
ERREENGR R ILTHER - REERLE
HREFEEBRSREDNEMHEHR
BEERE  ABEENEMRSHRFHER
REEBEZE®R-

ERIRBELERZRNET  HEMAR
ERREEEARK - B REHRITE - KA
BREERBEER Eﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ&m?ﬁﬁ
ABEHWEREERKAR - EETER
RARBEFRDOBENERRENE
1Rl o

>¢



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.
If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Properties
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use
asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation and dealt with as movements in
the asset revaluation reserve. For a transfer from inventories to
investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed properties
for sale are included in current assets at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale consist of land costs, construction expenditures,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and cost to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 to 5
years. The useful life of software is determined mainly with reference
to (i) maintenance expenditure required to obtain the expected
future economic benefits from the software for continuous
operations, (i) expected usage required from the operations of the
Group and the infrequent change of the software, (i) product life
cycles for the similar software used in the past, and (iv) the period
of control over the software.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding three to
five years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost
of a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Land leases
Properties

40 to 70 years
Over the lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at
the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with
the Group’s policy for “inventories”. When a right-of-use
asset meets the definition of investment property, it is
included in investment properties. The corresponding right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s policy
for “investment properties”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment
ocCeurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g. a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

214  Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

Bt 75 R AR B = ()

24 EXETHEME @)

BREREMBMBEEE @
DEERRFTTE (B

REFHEERBHKALIR A FER
AEMEAEBRAETHERAE  FELE
FLREE AR S /AR B A 3R ([ 48 A
ENRDORERE - REMEL IFALHE
AENFOMBEE  TwmEXHEAD
]l B AFEFABEDBRFTE -

AEBEEEMBEENEBREAEED
MEREMBEENELRSRE - X1
BEABEETRERERERBEUMAEHR
TRE HEVHEEXMEREETT -
EERAMBEEAKRBANEASRE
MEBBEAP BN EEREHNX
ADERGE MEERAUBKEENK
BReatRenERLEVBEENER
BAPHENPBEENRIFEA
Hitr A WA D BRFTE - WIFN LR
BRAKANMBEERAFESAR
SmOBRFE-

RERERAABENLENMBEE
RRXZGABIREEAGFBERHEZE
EZR)BER - ZERTABEIHER
BEIHERE —RIETHRRLIED
BENHBEAXNOHEEE -

®rRETE

MBEENREAEIRRENTHE:

BRBERATENMBEE(EEIR)

BEEKNAGENYHEERRERE
RAFEFESRBEZE - EEEKLL
R EHRER  KaMEERER
&R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments) (Continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4z & Bf 7% ¥R 3| Mi 5% (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
hi